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July 5, 2018 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.O. BOX 1806 

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806 

603-271-5610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609 
TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 

www.nh.gov/nhdoc 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Executive Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Helen E. Hanks 
Commissioner 

Robin H. Maddaus 
Director 

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Corrections to exercise a retroactive two-year contract renewal 
option, Amendment Agreement #1, to PO # 1051378, with Catholic Medical Center (VC# 177240), JOO 
McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102, to increase the contract amount by $1,900,000.00 from $1,900,000.00 
to $3 ,800,000.00, for the provision of Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services, effective upon Governor 
and Executive Council approval for the period beginning July I, 2018 through June 30, 2020. The original 
contract, Agreement, was approved by Governor and Executive Council on June 29, 2016, Item #64. 100% 
General Funds. 

Funding for this contract is available in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46-46-465010-8234-101-500729, as follows 
with the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed 
and justified. Funding for SFY 2020 is contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds. 

I Original Contract, Agreement: Catholic Medical Center 

I Account Description SFY 17 SFY 18 Total 

I 02-46-46-465010-8234-101-500729 Medical -.Dental 950,000.00 I 950,000.00 I 1,900.000.00 I 
!Amendment Agreement# 1 

!Account Description SFY 19 SFY20 Total 

I 02-46-46-465010-8234-101-500729 Medical - Dental 950,000.00 I 950,000.00 I 1,900,000.00 I 
jTotal Contract Amount: 1$ 3,800,000.00 I 

EXPLANATION 

This contract is retroactive due to administrative delays in obtaining contract documents from the Contractor. 
This contract is for the provision of Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services for the residents of the 
Concord Area consisting of the NH State Prison for Men (NHSP-M), Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU), Residential 
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Treatment Unit (RTU), NH Correctional Facility for Women (NHCF-W) and the Community Corrections of 
Concord and Manchester, NH. 

The New Hampshire Department of Corrections utilizes hospital services for short-term medical treatment for 
residents having an acute illness or injury that is beyond the scope of primary care services provided by the 
medical staff within the prison facility. These services include inpatient surgery, medical services and outpatient 
procedures such as ambulatory surgery, diagnostic and emergency services. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

',J£.~ 
O/f(nE.Han 

Commissioner 
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STATE-OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.O. BOX 1806 

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806 

603-271-5610 FAX: 1-88S.90S.6609 
TDD Access: 1.S00-735-2964 

www.nh.gov/nhdoc 

AMENDMENT AGREEMENT# 1 

Helen E. Hanks 
Commissioner 

Robin Maddaus 
Director 

This amendment is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the STATE OF 
NEW HAMPSHlRE, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS ("State" or "Department"), and Catholic 
Medical Center ("Contractor"), a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation with a place of business at 100 
McGregor Street, Manchester, NH 03102. 

WHEREAS, the State and Contractor entered into an agreement with an effective date of Jun 29, 
2016 for Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services, Agreement 2016-64 ("Agreement"). 

WHEREAS, the State and Contractor have agreed to make changes to the Completion, Price 
Limitation and Scope of Services of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended only by 
an instrument in writing signed by the parties and after approval of such amendment by the N.H. 
Governor and Executive Council. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained in the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: June 30, 2020. 

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: "$3,800,000.00" a total 
increase of $1,900,000.00; 

3. To amend the Contractor's original response to NHDOC RFP 16-10-GFMED by deleting the 
Exhibit A, Scope of Services, inserted after page 29 of 33 of the original Contract, titled 
"Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services" of the Agreement. 

and inserting in its place 

the Contractor's response to NHDOC RFP 16-10-GFMED by adding the attached Exhibit A, 
Scope of Services, titled "Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services, Amendment 
#1." 

4. That all other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS. 
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SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDMENT AGREEMENT #1 TO: Inpatient & Outpatient 
Hospital/Medical Services Agreement 2016-64. 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF 

• 

CORRE~TI NS ~ 
By: ~ lo 
Name: ~E.H 
Title: Commissioner 
Date: 

CATHOLIC D CAL CENTER 

By: 
Name: Joseph 
Title: President & hief Executive Officer 
Date: 

STATE OF Mw J/a117fUi1,.IL 
COUNTY OF l/ifkbn1~ (, 

On this I'~{~ of r l.l.'\t 20Ji_, before me,~ Ptll~e undersigned officer, 

personally appeared Jos'('h f 'f"'1 HD , known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the 
person 

whose name is signed above and acknowledged that he/she executed this document in the capacity 
indicated above. 

In witness thereof, I hereto set my hand and official seal. 

JOY c. llEU..EMARE 
Notary PubRc - New lfampshJm 

My ~on E"xpfrns September 13, 2022' 

My Commission Expires: S~ff / 3, .2/),;1.:J. 

,:··:··'.·~~~i~t"·.,:. ', : . . 
\' ,f'2.)• .~e<'C0Co0 ' _!, '., 

' .~~-.", ~·..' 

~4-iQ_____ pprovaI bYN.H. Attorney General 
::+-/ I 'Z. Lt Y' 

Date ' 1 

(Form, Substance and Execution) 

Approved by the N.H. Governor and Executive Council Date 
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Exhibit A 
Scope of Services 

RE: RFP Title: Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services, Amendment# I. 
RFP Number: NHDOC RFP 16-01-GFMED 
Contractor's Organizational Name: Catholic Medical Center ["Contractor'' or "CMC''] 

!. Description of Services: 
1.1 Inpatient Hospital Services 

!.!.!. Inpatient Coefficient - $7507.45 which represents 110% of the Catholic Medical 
Center's ["CMC"] FFY 2018 Medicare Coefficient 

1.1.2. RSA 623-C:2: CMC is requesting the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. 
CM C's bid is 110% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this 
Amendment. 

1.1.3. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at 
CMC. 

1 .2 Emergency Services 

1.2.1. Reimbursement - CMC is proposing an overall reimbursement rate for these services 
at 110% of Medicare. CMC is now capable of billing through our updated system at 110% 

of Medicare, therefore we do not need to translate into a percent of charge. In addition to the 
Emergency room services, CMC does offer an Urgent care center located in Bedford. 

RSA 623-C:2: CMC is requesting the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. 
CMC's bid is 110% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this 
Amendment. 

1.2.2. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at 
CMC. 

1.3 Outpatient Hospital Services 

1.3.1. Outpatient Laboratory and Radiology NH Fee Schedules - 110% of the NH 2018 
Medicare Laboratory and Radiology Fee Schedules. 

Catholic l\fedical Center 

National Level II Codes (including all pharmaceuticals) -110% of Medicare 
reimbursement for all outpatient, non-fee schedule, services. 

1.3.1.a. RSA 623-C:2: CMC is requesting the Senate mandated maximum 
reimbursement. CM C's bid is 110% of Medicare compared with 110% 
allowed under this Amendment. 
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1.3 .2. All Other Outpatient Services -110% of Medicare reimbursement for all outpatient, 

non-fee schedule, services. 

1.3.2.a. RSA 623-C:2: CMC is requesting the Senate mandated maximum 

reimbursement. CM C's bid is 110% of Medicare compared with 110% 
allowed under this Amendment. 

1.3.2.b. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial 
contracts at CMC. 

1.4 Rate Adjustments 

1.4.1. The second year rate adjustment will be tied to the most recent annual Medical 

Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. These will be 
determined through the federal government BLS website as of May for a July I st 

implementation. 

Likewise, for year two, the percent of Medicare will be adjusted such that CMC's 
annual July !st rate increases do not yield an increase in reimbursement by the NH 

Department of Corrections (NHDOC) in excess of the annual Medical CPI for the 
Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. This will be determined through the federal 

government Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) website as of May for a July !st 
implementation. 

The inpatient Diagnosis Related Group (DRG) coefficient will increase on July I st of 

year two by the annual Medical CPI for the Boston-Cambridge-Newton region. This 
will be determined through the federal government BLS website as of May for a July 

!st implementation. 

Additionally, each October I st, the Medicare DRG tables, including updated weights 

and DRGs will be employed. In the event Medicare makes adjustments to DRGs 

and/or weights outside the typical annual October 1st updates, such changes shall 

apply to the reimbursement terms under the proposal. 

1.5 Hospital Claim Processing: Process and attach a sample claim 

l.5. l. CMC calculates estimated claims reimbursement using internal contract management 

software. CMC will utilize the standard CMS 1500 and UB-04 claims forms for 
submission. 

I .5 .2. CMC understands that the NHDOC reserves the right to audit any claims and/or seek 
clarification. 

I .6 Physician Services: 

Catholic Medical Center 
Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services 
Amendment #1, 2016-64 
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1.6.1. A listing of current providers, including specialties, 1s enclosed with this 
Amendment. 
Primarv Care - Family Practice and Internal Medicine 
Cardiology - Medical, Interventionists and Electro physiologists 
Cardiothoracic Surgeons 
OB/GYN - While not listed on the attached as they are not employed by CMC, CMC 
will bill for OB/GYN services out of its Pregnancy Care Center. 
General Surgery 
Rates-110% of the NH 2018 Medicare Fee Schedule 

RSA 623-C:2: CMC is requesting the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. 
CMC's bid is 110% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this 
Amendment. 

1.6.2. The rate is significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at 
CMC. 

1.6.3. Non-Hospital Based Community Physicians - From 2003 - 2014, CMC has been 
committed to working with the NHDOC to ensure comprehensive physician 
coverage. On occasion, when the NHDOC has experienced access issues with respect 
to certain specialties, CMC would place calls to such specialists to assist the NHDOC 
in its efforts to arrange for such specialty care. 

I. 7 Physician Claims Processing: 

CMC will bill physician claims at I 10% of the Medicare rate in a timely manner to the 
NHDOC consistent with industry standard. 

1 .8 Other Considerations 

1.8.1. Not applicable 

1.8.2. Inpatient Rehab PAF -110% of Medicare Reimbursement. Medicare reimburses 
inpatient rehabilitation on a case-mix basis (CMG) basis. 

Because CMC does not have the ability to price inpatient rehabilitation services at a 
CMG rate, CMC is proposing using 1I0% of the Medicare rate, for these services. 

Clarification response to NHDOC RFP 16-01-GFMED 

1.9 Other Considerations: 

1.9. I. CMC will provide access to other service not already listed, including outpatient 
rehabilitation services, including PT/OT and SLP services at our outpatient locations. 
CMC will propose these services at 110% of the Medicare allowable rate. The 
locations are listed below: 

Catholic Medical Center 
Inpatient and Outpatient HospitaUMedical Services 
Amendment #1, 2016-64 
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Catholic Medical Center 

Main Location, Outpatient Rehabilitation Services at Dartmouth Commons 
769 South Main Street, Suite 201 
Manchester, NH 03102 
tel: 603 .641.6700 

Hooksett Medical Park Physical Therapy 
27 Londonderry Turnpike 
Hooksett, NH 03 1 06 
Mon-Thu 7 AM -7 PM; Fri 7 AM -4 PM 
tel: 603.314.5970 
fax: 603.314.5971 

CMC Outpatient Physical Therapy at Bedford 
188 Route, Suite 101 
Bedford, NH 03110 
tel: 603.314.4560 

CMC does not offer Radiation Therapy. 

CMC will provide access to chemotherapy. CMC is in collaboration currently with 
another provider so the NHDOC may be billed separately from that provider. 

CMC can offer IV therapy and the insertion of PICC lines or access ports for the 
provision of IV fluid or IV treatment modalities at 110% of the Medicare allowable 
rate at the hospital. 

Urgent Care: CMC does offer an Urgent Care location 
Bedford Medical Park, 
5 Washington Place, Suite lB 
Bedford, NH 03110 
tel: 603.314.4567 

CMC will collaborate with the NHDOC to ensure appropriate and dignified access 
for all patients utilizing this service. The hours are: 

Weekdays-Mon-Fri: 8 AM-8 PM 
Weekends-Sat-Sun: 9 AM-5 PM 
Holidays: 9 AM-2 PM 

CMC does not anticipate charging additional for further services, if so; it will be 
discussed with the NHDOC 

Page 4 of4 
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CATHOLIC MEDICAL 

CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 07, 1974. I 

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as 

far as this office is concerned. 

Business ID: 62116 

Certificate Number : 0004093991 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed 

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire, 

this 8th day of May A.D. 2018. 

William M. Gardner 

Secretary of State 



(,./U!CkStart 

Business Information 

Business Details 

Business Name: CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 

Domestic Nonprofit 
Business Type: . 

· Corporation 

Business Creation 
1110711974 

· ·Date: 

Date bf Formation in 
071 7 4 

J : d" . 11/ 19 
uns 1ct1on: 

Principal Office 100 McGregor Street, 

Address: Manchester, NH 03102, USA 

Citizenship I State of . /N H h. 
Domestic ew amps ire 

Incorporation: 

Duration: Perpetual 

Business Email: NONE 

Notification Email: NONE 

Principal Purpose 

S.No NAICS Code 

OTHER/ To establish and operate an acute 

care hospital in the City.of Manchester, NH 

1 without pecurijary gain and without 

distinction as to race, color, creed, sex or 

ability to pay. See am~nded Art II 12/30/16. 

Page 1 of 1.records 1 to 1.of 1 
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Business ID: 62116 

Business Status: Good Standing 

Name in State of N .
1 

bl 
. ot Ava1 a e 

Incorporation: 

Mailing Address: 100 McGregor Street, 

Manchester, NH, 03102, USA 

. last Nonprofit 
2015 

Report Year: 

Next Report 
2020 

Year: 

Phone#: 603-663-8760 

Fiscal Year End NONE 
Date: 

NAICS Subcode 

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/ online/Businessinquire/B usinessinformation ?businessID=28707 5/7 /20 18. . . 



Certificate of Authority# 1 (Corporation or LLC- Non-specific, open-ended) 

Corporate Resolution 

I, hereby certify that I am duly elected Clerk/Secretary of 

-----,,,,..-~C~a=th""'=ol~ic~M~e=d=ic=a=l_,C~e=n=te=r,,.------- . I hereby certify the following is a true copy of a 
(Name of Corporation or LLC) 

vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on April 

21 '20 
(Day) 

(Month) 

2016 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting. 
(Year) 

VOTED: That Joseph Pepe, MD, President & CEO (may list more than one person) is duly authorized to 
(Name and Title) 

enter into contracts or agreements on behalfof ------'C"'a,,,t,,h,,ol .... ic"""M"'e"d'"'ic.,a,.l_,C"'e"n"te.,r ____ _ with 
(Name of Corporation or LLC) 

the State ofNew Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any 

documents which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. 

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of 

the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is understood that the State of 

New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the 

position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits 

on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all 

such limitations are expressly stated herein. 

DATED: :J:,,/\C 



ACOR " I 
DATE (MMIDDIYYYY) 

~ 
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 05131~018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT 
MARSH USA, INC. NAME: 

99 HIGH STREET rA~~N.~ ... J>, j~No\: 
BOSTON, MA 02110 E-MAIL 

ADDRESS' 

INSURER/SJ AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

715651-ALL-GU-18-18 Non MD INSURER A: Pro Select Insurance Comoanv 
INSURED INSURER e : Arch SN>f'ia!tv Insurance Comoanv 21199 

Catholic Medical Center 
100 McGregor Street INSURERC: 
Manchester, NH 03102 INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· NYC-010296032-02 REVISION NUMBER· 7 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN rs SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE e:_' SUBR ,.i:g15itmn ,~g~c;,t~!.' .. LIMITS CTR POLICY NUMBER 

A x COMMERClAL GENERAL LIABILITY 002NH000016052 07/01/2018 10/01/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 
f- ==1 CLAIMS.MADE 0 OCCUR PR~EMiSES 'i'E~-o~;encel ' 50,000 
f- 5,000 - MED EXP (Anyone person) $ 

f-
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE ' 
3,000,000 f1 POLICY o r~& o LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 3,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIAEllUTY fE~~~~~~t~INGLE LIMIT $ 
-

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) ' -
OWNED - SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) • f- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED rp~~~;c~d~RAMAGE • - AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS ONLY 

s 

" x UMBRELLA LIAB 
lx-i OCCUR 

UHL0050896--05 0710112018 10/01/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE • 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 EXCESS LIAB X CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED f I RETENTION$ s 
WORKERS COMPENSATION 

\ ~f~TUTE I I OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 
ER 

YIN 
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE D NIA 

E.l. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.l. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $ 

g~;~~I~~~~ Q'}:db'°PERATIONS below E.l. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS /LOCATIONS /VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Add/tlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required) 

State of New Hampshire is included as additional insured where required by written contract. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

State of New Hampshire SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
Department of Corrections THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
P.O. Box 1806 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
Concord, NH 03302 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
of Marsh USA Inc. 

Elizabeth Stapleton 6..7;. .....: A:o....-~ 
' © 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016103) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



ACORD"' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/00/YYYY) 

L..---' 0711212018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT 
NAME: MARSH USA, INC. 
~.f!QN~o Ex•I: J iffc No\: 99 HIGH STREET 

BOSTON, MA 02110 E-MAIL 

Attn: Boston.certrequest@Marsh.com Fax: 212-94S.43IT 
ADDRESS: 

. 

INSURERfSl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

CN109021768-ALL-GAWXP-18-19 INSURER A: NIA NIA 
INSURED INSURER B: Safetv National Casualtv Corn. 15105 

CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
100 MCGREGOR STREET INSURER C: N/A NIA 
MANCHESTER, NH 03102 tNSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-010318409-01 REVISION NUMBER: 2 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOlWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WJTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO All THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

1r~ TYPE OF INSURANCE 
ADDL SUBR 

POLICY NUMBER ,&ggg~, I '~~fr\%'f~~f- LIMITS 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE • - D CtAIMS-MADE" D OCCUR 
f- ~~~ES 1E~"O~~ence1 $ 

f-
MED EXP (Any one person) • 

f-
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY .. 

~=r AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PE!< GENERAL AGGREGATE • 
DPRO· D PRODUCTS- COMP/OP AGG • POLICY JECT LOC 

OTHER: • 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ' f-

fEa accident\-

ANY AUTO BOD!L Y INJURY (Per person) $ 
-

OWNED 
- SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) • f- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 

HlRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE • f- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS ONLY IPer accidentl 
$ 

UMBREUAUAB 
:--\OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ -
I ClA!MS-MADE EXCESS UAB AGGREGATE· • 

OED I I RETENTION$ • 
B WORKERS COMPENSATION SP 4058916 vuvo/<000 1010112019 x I ~f~TUTE l I OTH-

ANO EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 
YIN 

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 0 E.L EACH ACCIDENT • 1,000,000 
OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUOED? NIA 

' 
{Mandatory in NH) 'SIR$750,000 E.L DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000 

g~s~~~fi~~ ~n~gPERATIONS belo~ E.l. DJS EASE- POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remari<s Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

Stale of New Hampshire SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
Department of Corrections THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
PO 1806 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
Concord, NH 03302 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
of Ma!"Sh USA Inc. 

' 
Elizabeth Stapleton 6 ""'1.:; • """'- .,,q;_,.~ 

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rrghts reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



Catholic Medical Center 
Manchester, NH 

has been Accredited by 

The Joint Commission 
Which has surveyed this organization and found it to meet the requirements for the 

Hospital Accreditation Program 

January 12, 2018 
Accreditation is customarily valid for up to 36 months. 

ID#5467 
Prinr!Reprint Date: 04/20/2018 

df4t?f~L. 
Made R. Chassin, MD, FACP, MPP, MPH 

President 

The Joint Commission is an independent, not-for-profit national body !hat oversees the safety and quality of health 'care and 
other services provided in accredited organizations. Information about accredited organizations may be provided dh'ectly to 
The Joint Commission at 1-800-994-6610. Information regarding accreditation and tbe accreditation performance of 
individual organizations can be obtained through The Joint Commission's web site at www.jointcommission.org. 

~~~'Ir:; 
MEOICA~~ 
ASSOCIATION 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

OFFICE OF LEGALAND REGULATORY SERVICES 
HEALTH FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 
ANNUAL LICENSE CERTIFICATE 

Under provisions of New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter RSA 151, this annual license certificate is issued to: 
Name: CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 
Located at: 100 MCGREGOR STREET 

MANCHESTER NH 03102 

To Operate: Hospital 

This annual license certificate is effective under the conditions and for the period stated below: 
License#: 00646 
Effective Date: 01/01/2018 Expiration Date: 12/31/2018 

Administrator: JOSEPH PEPE, MD 
Medical Director: WILLIAM GOODMAN, MD 1. 

Comments: 
Number of Beds: 330 1. CRIM WAIVER 802.17(c){1&2) 

Manager, Bureau of Licensing and Certification 



Catholic Medical Center 
2018 Board of Trustees 

John G. Cronin, Esq., Chair 

Cronin, Bisson & Zalinsky, P .C. 

Maria Mongan, Immediate Past Chair 

Manchester, NH 

Neil Levesque, Vice Chair 

NH fustitute of Politics 

Matthew Kfoury, Secretary 

Central Paper Company 

Donald St. Germain, Treasurer 

St. Mary's Bank 

Joseph Pepe, MD, President/CEO 

Catholic Medical Center 

Rick Botnick 

Bolnick 5 I Ventures Inc. 

Robert A. Catania, MD 

Surgical Care Group 

Carolyn G. Cla.ussen, MD 

Willowbend Family Practice . 

Pamela Diamantis 

·Curbstone Financial Management Corp 

Katie L. Dionne 

Saint Anselm College 

Louis I. Fink, MD 

New England Heart & Vascular Institute 

Catholic Medical Center 
Inpatient and Outpatient Hospit.al/Medical Services 
Amendment #1, 2016-64 

Powen Hsu, M.D. 

New Era Medicine 

Susan M. Kinney 

Saint Anselm College 

JohnJ.Munoz,MD 

President ofCMC Medical Staff 

Manchester Urology Associates, PA 

Diane Murphy Quinlan, Esq. 

Bishop's Delegate for Health Care 

Diocese of Manchester 

Fr. Patrick Sullivan O.S.B, RN 

St. Anselm College I Abbey 

Updated: Janl8 



Position 

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Chief Information Officer 

Chief Nursing Officer 

VP Operations/Emergency 

Services 

VP Surgical Services 

VP Phvsician Practices 

VP Strategy/General Counsel 

Chief Quality Officer 

Chief Medical Officer 

Catholic Medical Center 

Catholic Medical Center 
Key Personnel & Salaries 

CY 12 Salarv 

$495,192 

$423,816 

$296,437 

$257,640 

$193,180 I 

$201,731 

$213,101 

$302,093 

$147,920 

NIA 

Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services 
Amendment #1, 2016-64 

CY .16 Salary 

$535,600 

$360,506 

$215,009 

$235,206 

$187,533 

NIA 

$236,812 

$350,189 

NIA 

$429,562 



==CMC CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

POSITION TITLE~ 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

11/12 

Exempt 

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
Finance · · 
PresidenUCEO 

.11111 ,-------·- - --~ - -. '"". ·- ...... 

The EVP, CFO is responsible for the' development, interpretation, coordination and administration of 
the system's policies on finan·ce, accounting, insurance, investments, financing, internal controls and 
auditing. The position is also responsible for the maintenance of records and procedures required to 
adequately safeguard the assets of the system. The EVP, CFO participates in strategic planning, 
compatible with the system's objectives and financial business plan. 

Under the overall direction of the PresidenUCEO, and within established departmental policies and 
procedures, the incumbent performs the following functions: 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Develops, interprets, coordinates and administers the corporate policies on finance, 
investments, insurance, accounting systems, internal controls and auditing. Maintains 
knowledge of national, state and local economic conditions and determines their impact on 
current operations. Keeps abreast of all regulatory activities which may influence the fiscal 
management of the system. 

2. Prepares and presents consolidated, system-wide, operating and capital budgets to the Board 
of Trustees for their review and approval, in conjunction with the CEO. 

· 3. Reviews each service provider's business plan and correlates the plans with operating 
budgets for appropriateness. Provides a corporate-wide review process of actual performance 
against budget to ensure that operations are maintained within allocated funding levels. 
Develops and maintains a corporate-wide auditing system. 

4. Prepares and presents to management and the Board of Trustees periodic reports outlining 
the corporation's financial position in all areas by assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. 

5. Prepares and files all federal, state and local financial reports. 

Page 1 of4 



6.. Prepares and ensures the distribution of any dividends, cash distribution or other remuneration . 
due investors for the for-profit corporations. Files required financial information with the Office 
of the Secretary of state. · · · 

7. Reviews and provides for current and adequate insurance protection to guard CMC from 
liability and/or loss. 

8. Researches and acquires funding for varioµs corporate ventures and jnitiatives. 

9. Evaluates the system's rate structures and recommends changes, when needed. 

10. Evaluates for management and the Boai:d .of Trustee$, the system's objectives and programs . 
as they relate to third-party reimbursement. 

11. Negotiates agreements with health maintenance organizations, preferred provider 
organizations, and outside groups contracting for healthcare .services. 

12. Oversees the medical records and admissions functions. 

13. Participates in the function1> and activities of the CMC Executive Management Team, including 
but not limited to serving on committees and task forces, preparing reports as requested, and 
representing administration as needed or requested. 

14. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in 
. appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations aci:ording to 

location. 

15. Exercises care in the operation and use of equipment and reference materials. Maintains 
work area in an orderly manner. 

16. Is responsible for complying with and enforcing all established organizational and 
departmental policies and procedures. 

17. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget, and company matters. Maintains good 
communications; establishes and maintains positive working relationships with· employees, 
regulatory agencies, vendors, the public and among the hospital organizations. 

18. Performs similar or related duties as required or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions.of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and t~ possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job: 
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1. Ability to bend the body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist. Ability to extend 
hand(s) and arrn(s) in any direction. Ability to stand for sustained periods oftime. ·Ability to move 
about on foot to accomplish tasks, particularly for.long periods of time. Ability to raise objects from 
a lower to a higher position or moving objects horizontally from position to position. 

2. ~bilityto pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers ratherthan the.whole and or arm 
as in handling. · · · · 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Incumbent must convey 
detailed questions to elicit information from others. 

· · 4. Abilify to exert up to 1"0 pounds of force occasionally and or a negligible amount of force frequently 
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

5. · The incumbent is subject to both environmental conditions and activities that occur inside and 
~~- . . . 

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting, 
and extensive reading. 

7. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems 
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and 
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable 
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret 
results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work 
of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. · 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Limited 

• Generally works Monday through Friday day shift; expectation of evening, night, weekend 
scheduled or unscheduled requirements; periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational 
programs, etc. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

. Education: 
• Bachelors Degree or a combination of related education, knowledge and related experience; 

Masters Degree in a related healthcare or business discipline preferred. 

Experience: 
• Sufficient previous experience as a Senior Level Manager in health~re. 
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::CMC · CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTJ-!CARE SYSTEM 
JOB, DESCRIPTION 

C..THQUC MECICA.L CENT'EA. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: June,2014 

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt 

POSITION TITLE: VP,CIO 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: IS l::xecutive 
REPORTS TO: Executive Vice President I CFO 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

' " Ill ~ • ~ 

·.·i l l l 1 
.·- - - - ·-

Responsible for all information and communication·systems for the Health System Network, including 
voice and data communications networks, information systems business and cflnical applications, and 
other related technologies as adopted by service lines and departments. Must ensure the continuous 
delivery of available and responsive systems, and timely and accurate data throughout Catholic 
Medical Center and its affiliates as appropriate. As a member of the senior management team, · 
formulates plans for maximizing the use of information technology in support of corporate business 
objectives. Participates with senior management in a proactive manner to build strategic plans for the 
organization through the effective collection, organization and delivery of critical information to insure 
that information resources and services are in place to support established business.plans. Manages 
a complex infrastructure supporting a diverse user base, utilizing applications provided by multiple 
vendors, including custom written and designed applications. The user community resides across 
multiple locations. The network operates 24x7x365, supporting over 250 individual applications 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBIL:ITIES: 

Under the general direction of the Executive Vice President/CFO and within established policies and 
procedures, .the incumbent performs the following functions: 

1. Directs and manages the information and communication technologies and services for fiscal, 
operational, clinical and decision-support uses for CMC and its affiliates. 

2. Provides strategic and tactical planning; development, evaluation, and coordination of the 
information and technology systems for the health care network. 

3. Facilitates communication between staff, management, vendors, and other technology 
resources within the organization. 

4. Responsible for the management of multiple information and communications systems and 
projects, induding voice, data, imaging, and office automation. 
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5. Plans, develops, implements, maintains and continuously enhances all network hardware a.nd 
software for the corporation · · 

6. Responsible for minimizing the investment required to produce established service 'levels. This 
requires the incumbent to maintain contact with suppliers and leasers of equipment and 
suppliel!, and to maintain a current knowledge and awareness of technology, equipme.nt, prices 
and terms of agreements. The incumllent sub6equentiy evaluates all factors, performs ' .· . 
appropriate cost/benefit analysis and favors alternatives that minimize costs commensurate with 
acceptable risks. Defines, develops, designs and implements plans and strategies to maintain . 
state-of-the-art solutions .. 

7. Designs, implements, and evaluates the systems that support end users in the productive use of 
computer hardware and software. 

8. Develops and updates an information systems strategic plan for meeting ctJITent and future 
needs of CMC and its affiliates. · 

9. Coordinate!! the core steering group, and insures that it functions as a mechanism which 
improves the overall value of IT consistent with CMC priorities. 

10. Serves as the principal developer of corporate policies and standards aimed at minimizing costs 
and maximizing controls related to the acquisition, implementation and operation of information 
and communication systems. 

11. Coordinates alloeation of resources to provide high levels of service for development of new 
technology solutions to support CMC strategies and priorities. 

12. Provides periodic reports of IT activity, status, and costs to senior management, executive 
management, the board of directors, and various committees as required. 

13. Provides leadership to multidisciplinary task forces and committees in defining and acquiring 
technology solutions to meet business requirements and CMC strategic priorities. 

14. Participates in formal and informal CMC task forces and meetings involving planning, quality 
improvement, and other matters of priority to the Executive Management Team. 

15. Ascertains, establishes and offers education and training programs for existing and future users.· 

16. Prepares, presents and administers plans, capital and operating budgets for the information 
services group. The incumbent has responsibility for monitoring IT activities and.costs as they 
relate to the overall utilization of resources required to meet Corporate l/S targets. 

17. Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients, trains, supervises, directs,· 
schedules and assigns work of subordinates. Outlines scope of authority as well as job 
responsibilities of employees under supervision. Initiates and approves personnel actions 

. including, but not limited to, hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, assigning, rewarding, 
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disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel. Prepares and conducts 
fonnal/informal perfonnance evaluations and recommends merit increases. · 

18. Negotiates all hardware, software and integration contracts, soliciting involvement and 
participation of other management team members as appropriate. 

. . . 
· 19. Provides direction and monitoring of progress on major EDP/IS projects, including the rapid 

mobilization of resources to diminish implementation time lines and organizational impacts. 

20. Develoj:>s and Implements user-training programs. 

21. Develops, implements and monitors the federal meaningful use requirements related to health · 
information technology to ensure successful timely compliance with the financial incentives. 

22. Interacts with senior management in determining systems needs, changes, i!Tlprovements, and 
· subsequently provides direction for new systems from project inception through installation and 
· functional operation. 

23. Develops and executes plans and programs to inform and communicate with users. 

24. The incumbent must take a corporate view of systems and problems, and generate strategies 
that are consistent with the strategic goals of CMC, and in the best interest of the overall system. 

25. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Senior Management Team, including but 
not limited to serving on committees and task forces, preparing reports as requested, and 
representing administration as needed or requested. 

26. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional 
affiliations to keep abreast of latest trends in field of expertise. -

27. Exercises care in the use and operation of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work 
area in a clean and organized manner. ' 

28. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, clienUpatient; budget and all company matters. · 

29. Participates in appropriate role in disaster and fire drills, fires, and other emergency situations. 

30. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or .be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perfonn the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities1 and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perfonn the 
essential functions of the job: 
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1. Physical requirements include the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; raise 
objects fr:om a lower to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position to position; 
pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole hand or aim; apply 
pressure to an object with fingers and palm; sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or 
fingers. 

2. Ability fo express or exchange ideas by means of th1;1 spoken word. 
' ' ' 

3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to niake fine discriminations 
In sound. -

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently 
. or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. -

5. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures, 
accounting, transcription, computer tenninal work, and extensive reading. 

6. AbilitY to endure periods of heaiiy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions 
and respond appropriately to unexpected situations. · 

7. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations. 

8. Requires the ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing 
problems where there is nttle accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the 
formulation and carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. 
Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily 
evaluated, interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and 
coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Limited 

• Generally Monday through Friday, days; occasional requirements to cover special events, periodic 
overnight travel, etc. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Bachelor's degree in a related field required. 
• Advanced degree (MBA, Master of Health Care Administration, Master of Computer Science) 

preferred. - -

Experience: 
• A minimum of fifteen years information systems managem~nt experience preferably in the 

application and delivery of information system technologies in a health care environment.-
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• System integratio!'l experience implementing systems which involve multiple vendors and 
multidisciplinary teams under specific; schedules and budgets wjth committed deliverables. · 

• Must have a strong background and experience with project management methodologies 
including a successful track record of large scale infonnation systems project implementations. 
Must understand and be capable of coordinating a healthcare business strategy to the. application 
of information technolpgy. Must be capable of anticipating ttie infonnation l!i!Chnology needs oHhe 
organization as a result of the strategic initiatives which have been established. · · · 

• The successful candidate will have strong skills in .information technology components including · 
but not limited to local and wide area network topologies, hardware components, voice 
communication technologies including tariffs and regulatory considerations. Knowledge of 
computer hardware and data base architectures, Including relational, basic, objected based 
technologies, arid electronic data exchange, programming languages; and fourth and fifth 
generation tools. The candidate must have a strong understanding of the personal computer 
industry, the trends that drive it as well as the IT industry in general. 

• The c_andidate must have a background in business and clinical systems, including eXJlerience in 
their implementation in a hospital system with a Strong ambulatory presence. Merger,.conversion, 
and consolidation experience is a must. 

• The individual must be capable of evaluating the effectiveness of the l/S staff across a variety of 
disciplines including communications, systems development, operations, people management , 
strategic planning, and personal computer deployment and use. 

• Strong planning and accounting skills including the ability to construct strategic plans, analyze 
cash flows, along with the long term implications of capital and expense eXJlenditures. 

• Strong communication skills including the ability to interact with executive level management, 
physicians, community business leaders, patients, employees and agencies. The ability to speak 
in a public forum, present ideas, and generate acceptance of concepts and strategies. 

• Training and experience in contract Jaw, and contract management, including the preparation and 
management of system integration. contracts which have fixed time frames, penalties, and 
deliverables. Training and experience in the preparation and development of software license 
agreements. 

• Training and experience in the development of llT lease arrangements including step leases, · 
capital leases, operating leases, and technology exchange leases. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the 
requirements contain~d within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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::CMC 
CATHOUC MED$CAL CEN?ER 

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
· JOB DESCRIPTION Jilli 

... - - - - -·. 

. ....,.,,,J<..~Wf'"""="'"""'1V~ .. " -~ };~\1l~.i~2t,'m,l!I~!~0'.&i~E ·,. ~u.'~ _ r. E 
The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers 

innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity of every individual who 
seeks or needs our care as art o Christ's heali thro h the Catholic Church. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

POSITION TITLE: 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

August, 2013 

Exempt 

SVP, Clinical Operations I CNO 
Chief Nurse Officer 
Executive'VP, CFO 

Administers the interpretation and implementation of the standards of nursing practice throughout · 
CMC, assures that competent, c:Qmpassionate standards are uniformly applied in the provision of 
patient care across all service lines. Plans, organizes, implements and evaluates supportive and 
evaluative services that provide to all patient care and hospital areas mechanisms to achieve a clinical 
environment that provides for the comfort and safety of all patients. 

Supervises and directs patient car.e services leadership toward attainment of identified short- and 
long-term goals and objectives; executes strategies and plans designed to achieve said objectives 
and collaborating with other hospital executives to meet organizational g9als and objectives. 

Provides for an efficient and effective mechanism of communication that assures consistency across 
all service lines and within all hospital departments. Assists the Chief Executive Officer in the 
administration of the hospital. 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Under the general direction of the Executive VP, CFO and within established CMC and departmental 
policies and procedures; the incumbent performs; the following functions: 

1. Interprets and oversees the implementation and evaluation of uniform quality standards for 
nursing practice that are approved by recognized experts and other accreditation agencies. 

2. Identifies and articulates the vision and strategic direction for tl)e delivery of patient care and the 
discipline of Nursing across all patient care settings, directs and collaborates on the 
implementation of strategies to achieve them. 

3. Creates an environment in which collaboration is valued and excellence in clin.ical care, education, 
and research is promoted and achieved. 
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... 

4. Establishes vision and is accountable for programs which support the nursing profession such as 
professional recognition programs, nursing leadership development, nursing research and nursing 
tuition programs. · · · · · 

5. ··Oversees the development of educational programs that will assist with the interpretation of the 
standa~s of practice and their application to direct patient ~re. 

6. P11rtners with. Pl and Chief Quality Officer to promote patient safety and quality patient care • 

. 7. Partners with Office of Catholic Identity to ensure the Ethical and Religious Directives of the 
Catholic Church are evident in provision of patient care 

. . 
8. Serves as the senior spokesperson for Nursing. Advises the senior leadership, the medical staff, 

board and individual clinical facilities and other internal and extemai groups by providing input 
about the implications of decisions and change on the quality of patient care, on nursing practice, 

. and on nursing care provider 

9. Develops and ensures a safe and effective patient care environment through participation in 
institutional planning, product evaluation, and evaluation of new systems and programs that 
impact nursing care in the organization. 

10. Disseminates Information to responsible departments and promotes communication exchange 

11. Assures the provision of a clinical environment for students in nursing and other related health 
fields. Assures that the educational objectives of the students and the placement within the 
organization are consistent. Ensures that the State Board of. Nursing receives the student 
affiliation schedules. 

12. Assures compliance for the JC, HCFA and other State and Federal regulatory bodies. 

13. Maintains an appropriate patient classification system. Assures that the appropriate numbers and 
classification of personnel are assigned to provide patient care. Reviews, with the appropriate 
executive, any discrepancies that exist. 

14. Assures that the appropriate contractual agreements are current and meet insurance and legal 
requirements for the use of outside nursing agencies. Assures that appropriate orientation and 
evaluation of the agency nurses are completed and kept on file. 

15. Maintains a system for assuring that the licenses of the nursing personnel are current. Maintains 
communication with the State Board of Nursing and communicates any chal)ges or disciplinary 
action necessary to the nursing personnel. 

16. Promotes and fosters an inter-professional approach to patient care, and the coordination of care 
among disciplines. · 

17. Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients; trains, supervises, directs, schedules 
and assigns work of subordinate staff whether through own efforts or by delegation to subordinate 
supervisory staff. 
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18. Outlines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities of employees under supervision. 
· Initiates and approves personnel actions including, but not limited to, hiring, transferring, 
suspending, discharging; assigning, rewarding, disciplining or adjusting'of grievances involving 
assigned personnel. Prepares and conducts formal/informal performance evaluations and 
recommends merit increases. 

· 19. Provides 'readership and direction for the development of strategies to promote the recruitment, . 
retention, and recognition of excellence in Nursing; Including but not limited to the oversight and 
recommendations regarding compensation and benefit programs for nursing staff 

20. Prepares or directs preparation of departmental budgets and works within established budgetary 
guidelines. Reviews specifications and coordinates purchase· of equipment, technology, services 
and/or manpower to achieve cost-effective. acquisitions to meet the needs and goals of the 
departments and subsidiary companies. Evaluates results of purchases and monitors contractual 
agreements to ensure value is received . 

.. 21. Oversees the Nursing Shared Governance Structure and leads the Nursing Leadership Council 

22. Serves as the administrative liaison as a voting member to medical staff, Joint Conference, Ethic 
Board Committees, and other board committees as requested. Attends and serves on 
professional/civic service organizations as a·CMC representative. 

23. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional 
affiliations to keep abreast of latest trends in field of expertise. 

24. Exercises care in lhe use and operation of CMC equipment and reference materials. 

25. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and CMC matters. 

26. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job: 

1. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force 
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

2. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions 
and respond appropriately to unexpected situations. 

3. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations. 
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4. Ability ~o plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular 
field and the use of a wide rl:!nge of procedures. Involves the .exercise of judgment in the 
analysis of facts and conditio·ns regarding individual problems or transactions to determine what 
actions should be taken, modifying or adapting standard procedures to meet different conditions 
making decisions based on precedent and policy. ' 

OSHA RATING:· 

PHI ACCESS: 

· WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to. blood borne pathogens) 

Limited 

• GeneraHy Monday through Friday; ·days; occasional requirements to cover special events, periodic· 
overnight travel, etc. · 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Graduate of an N.L.N. approved nursing program. 
• Masters Degree in Nursing required. 

Experience: 
• Minimum of seven (7) or more years of experience in Nursing Administration at the executive 

level. 

Licensure/Certification: 
• Current registration in the State of New Hampshire as a Registered Nurse. 
• Nursing Administration certification strongly preferred. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be con!!trued as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you coniply with the 
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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REVISED: . 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

POSITION TITLE:. 
. DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 

REPORTS TO: 

PRIMARY PURPOSE 

08111 

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

Exempt 

Eiceclitive Direc;tor of Emergency Services and Disaster Management . 
Emergency Department 
Senior Vice President Chief Operating Officer 

Responsible for planning, diteciing and managing the provision of all emergency servii:es for 
Catholic Medical Center. Maintains relationships with physicians, staff, hospital departments, EMS and 
other organizations that refer patients to Catholic Medical Center, The Division of Emergency Services 
includes the Emergency Department, EMS Disaster Management, Trauma, stroke Services, and 
Respiratory Service. · · · 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Under the general direction of the SVP/COO and within established policies and procedures, the 
incumbent performs the following functions: 

Emergency Department Essential Functions: 

1. Develops productive, influential relationships within the service area with physicians, EMS, HMO 
management, government officials, vendors, and other individuals or representatives of companies 
necessary to conduct the affairs of the business of Emergency Services. 

2. Ensures the highest possible level of patient care, maintains the patient care focus of the service and 
is an advocate and leader in maintaining and promoting customer satisfaction. 

3. Establishes the Emergency Services line as a recognized community resource known for providing 
excellent care. Maintains high visibility profile in the organization and atthe local and state level. 

4. Develops and monitors budgets and ensures the efficient fiscal solvency of all direct reporting 
departments. 

5. Ensures that daily operations are in compliance with all laws and guidelines of federal, state and local 
accrediting agencies and regulators. Implements and interprets all policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations affecting the operations of Emergency Services. 

· . 6. Participates in the development and negotiation of Emergency Services eontracts and monitors the 
contract results and viability. 

7. Implements and manages an organizational structure which effectively delivers the required services 
to the commu"nities served and provides an appropriate structure for"the organization's employees. 
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8. ·Works collaboratively with all areas of CMC management to assure quality, diversified and price 
competitive services which are.supported by the emergency room.physicians and local medical staffs. 

9. Interviews and selects candidates for employment Orients as appropriate. Outlines scope of 
authority and job responsibilities of employees under supervision. Initiates personnel actions. 
Prepares and conducts formal/informal performance evaluations and recommends merit awards for 
employees· under supervision. · 

10. Maintains an effective marketing network that supports all aspects of emergency services for 
CM~ . . 

11. Responsible for the successfUI operation of the Trauma and Stroke programs. 

Disaster Management Essential Functions: 

1. Ensures CMC is in. compliance with all Homeland Security, Federal, State, NHHA and The Joint . 
Commission emergency management requirements. Accountable for the compliance and revision 
of the CMC Disaster Plan as mandated by the preceding organizations. Represents CMC at all 
Disaster. Preparedness meetings at the local, state and federal levels. · 

2. Manages federally allocated ASPR funds for required purchases of emergency/disaster rerated 
equipment Submits quarterly balance sheets to New Hampshire Homeland Security office and 
provides documentation for federal and state audits. 

3. Chairs the CMC Disaster Management Committee. Provides required education for the CMC 
·Incident Command System and for the CMC management team. 

4. Plans, organizes, and enacts all required disaster drills to meet federal, state and local 
requirements. Applies for federal training money by writing grant proposals, preparing master 
scenario event lists and after-action reports. 

5. Establishes and maintains all memorandums of understanding for emergency management 
partners supply agreements. Responsible for the distribution/safekeeping of pandemic/epidemic 
prophylaxis for the CMC organization. 

6. Assures maintenance and safekeeping of all acquired vehicles and stored supplies. 

7. Maintains all required Emergency Preparedness certifications. 

Emergency Medical Services Essential Functions: 

1. Maintains CMC participation in the State of New Hampshire EMS Registry to include all files, 
records, licenses, and contracts for CMC as a medical resource hospital. 

2. Ensures quality reviews of -EMS transports actions. 

3. Develops quarterly param~dic and EMT education programs. 

4. Facilitate EMS relationships for The New England Heart Institute. 

5. Ensure Stark Law compliance with all EMS exchange of medical su.pplies and pharmaceutical" 
suppfies. Maintains all compliance records as mandated. 

6. Performs duties of CMC liaison for the State of New Hampshire ·EMS Institute. 

VPOperations-Emergency Servlces.doc:X 
Page 2 of4 



Secondary· Functions: 

1. Maintains professional growth and development through s~minars, workshops, and professional 
. affiliations to keep abreast of the latest trends in field of expertise. 

2. Participates in committee meetings. Attends and serves on professlonaUcivic service 
organizations as the hospital representative. 

3. Participates in appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations. 

4. Exercises care in the use and operation of equiprnent and reference materials. Maintains work · 
area in a clean and organized manner. 

5. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed. 

KNOWLED~E, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individual must possess the knowledge, skills and abilities listed or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the indiVidual can perfof'IT1 the essential functions of jhe job, with or without · . 
reasonable accommoi:(ation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements with or wiihout the aid of mechanicai devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job. 

1. Ability to designate patient care delivery in a manner that is appropriate to patient's age, physical 
ability·and intellectual development. Must demonstrate proficiency in assessing treatment and. 
responses and adapting care to meet the needs of the patient population served. 

' 

2. Physical requirements include the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; pick, 
pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers. Essential functions involve sitting most of 
the time. Walking and standing may be required. 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include 
activities in which incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken instructions to patients, 
physicians, families and other employees. 

4, . Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine 
discriminations in sound. 

5. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force 
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects. 

6. Ability to wear safety glasses, gloves, gowns, masks and other safety equipment as necessary. 

7. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and 
figures, accounting, transcription, computer terminal work, extensive reading, and visual 
inspection involving small parts/devices. · 

8. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload and stress. 

9. Ability to work with frequent interruptions and respond appropriately to unexpected situations. · 

10 •. Ability to travel to meetings and conferences which are held off-site. 
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11. · The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constanUy changing 
problems where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the , 
formulation and carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. 
Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily 
evaluated, interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and 
coordinate the work of subordinate supervisiori in order to att.ain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: Category I (Exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

ACCESS TO PHI: Complete 

WORK SCHEDULE: 
• Generally Monday through Friday, days. Evenings and weekends as necessary. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Bachelor of ScieJ'.lce Degree in nursing. Mal!ters Degree in Management of Administration 

preferred. 
Experience: , 
• At least three years of management experience in operations, program planning and strategic 

development for emergency services. Demonstrated leadership ability. 

Standard of Business Conduct 
Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. Requires 
that suspicion or knowledge of any persons violation of the Code be reported to the Corporate 
Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the requirements contained within the Code 
will be a factor ·in evaluating your overall job performance. 

Statement of Other Duties: . 
This document describes the major duties, responsibilities, and auihorities of this job, and is not 
intended to be a complete list of all tasks and functions. It should be understood, therefore, that 
incumbents may be asked to perform job-related duties beyond those explicitly described. 

This job description supersedes all other versions. 

Review/Approvals: 

Signature of Director and/or VP 

Signature of Human Resources Representative 
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

TITLE: 

DEPARTMENT: 
REPORTS TO: 

PRIMARY PURPOSE 

Vice President 
Patient & ·Physician 
Support Services 
Administration 
CEO, President, & SVP,COO 

COMPENSATION 
APPROVAL:·---,-----­
EFFECTIVE:. __ ~/-~~'-__ 
APPROVAL:--------

The Vice President, Patient and Physician Support Services, :Is responsible for the administrative direction 
including planning, organizing, budgeting, implementing, evaluating and ensuring the efficient, economic, and 
quality performance of all assigned· departments/areas of responsibility to support or provide· quality health care 
services, assures that standards are uniformly applied in the provision of patient care across services lines. 
Acco.untable for the following departments: Admissions, Health Information Management,· Social Work/Case 
Management, Pastoral Care, Patient Complaint Program, Quality Management (Hospital and Medical Staff), 
Credentialing, CME,' Attendant Services, Risk Management, Corporate Com'pllance, the Medical Management 
Program, CMC Medical Director, and the Physician Advisor for Medical Management 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Under the direction of the Chief Executive Officer and SVP, COO, and within established organizational and 
departmental policies and procedures, JCAHO standards, and all-applieable state and federal regulations, the 
incumbent performs the folloWing functions: 

Primarv Functions: 

1. Provides leadership, direction and general management to the department.directors and programs including, 
but not limited to, developing goals and objectives, establishing and Implementing policies and procedures for 
the operational and long-range planning of services of Catholic Medical Center. 

2. Develops collaborative, influential relationships With the medical staff, third party payors, community agencies, 
nursing homes, and the QIO to assure efficient systems and resource utilization along the continuum to 
provide the consistent delivery of high quality services to patients, the community, and medical staff. 

3. Assists In maintaining a hospital-wide Quality Management Program that evaluates the quality of care 
provided to patients and meets the requirements of accrediting agencies, including the Medical Staff. Serves 
as the Senior Management representative to the Board of Directors for the Quality Management Committee. 

4. Responsible for the Patient Complaint Program supporting the rights of patients, addressing their needs and 
ethical concerns, and evaluating patient satisfaction. · 

5. Assure5 that the Admission Department supports the financial and informational needs of all departments to 
have correct demographic and billing information. Assures systems are in place for bed placement throughout 
the hospital, including pre-admissions and direct admissions. 

6. Assures the provision of Social Work/Case Management services meet resource management, discharge 
planning, medical management (Including physician profiling, clinical resource utilization, nursing unit profiles, 
avoidable days), patient rights, ethics and legal requirements of Catholic Medical Center and its subsidiaries. 
Identifies opportunities for improvements With length of stay reduction, practice variation, and cost savings 
proce5ses without c<impromising quality patient care .. 

7. Assures the provision of Pastoral Care services to patients, family members and staff. 

8. Provides leadership and overall direction for Quality Management, Medical Staff Support Services, CME, the 
Medical Staff, including medical staff committees, (i.e., Credentials Committee, Medical Executive Committee,. 

· Professional Health Committee) and Peer Review. Assures appropriate processes and systems. are in place 

Administration\Vicc Pl§idcnt Patient & Physician Support Services 
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for the credentialing of medlcal staff members (initial appointments and reappointments), and serves as the 
Senior Manager responsible for medical staff quality, risk management functions, corporate compliance and 
patient complalnts. - · · 

9. Assures the Health Information Management Department meets the needs of Catholic Medical Center, 
physicians, payors and hospital-wide departments in accordance with state, federal and JCAHO regulations. 
Provides leadership arid direction for appropriate education of medical staff and hospital employees including 
compliance, coding, documentation, and reimbursement functiqns. · 

10. Provides direction for system wide programs, policies, and procedures to ensure compliance with applicable 
federal and s~te laws (i.e. CMS and Medlc;aid) and JCAHO for all CMC ~mployees, medical staff and. 
volunteers. 

. . . . 
11. Provides facilitation for process Improvement within departments in order til Impact on overall cost, quality and 

satisfaction for patient care. · . . · . -

12 .. ProvidllS support to all hospital de11artments to assist them in the provision of patient care. 

13. Interviews and selects candidates for employment Orients, trains, supervises, directs, schedules and assigns 
work of subordinate staff whether through own efforts cir by delegation to subordinate supervisory staff. 
OuUines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities of employees under supervision. Initiates and 
approves personnel actions including, but not limited IO, hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, 
assigning, rewarding, disciplining or adjusting of grievanciis invoMng assigned personnel. Prepares and 
conducts formal/Informal performance evaluations and recommends merit increases. 

14. Prepares or directs preparation of departmental budgets and works within established budgetary guidelines. 
Reviews specifications and coordinates purchase of equipment, technology, services and/or manpower to 
achieve cost-effective acquisitions to meet the needs and goals of departments and subsidiary companies. · 
Evaluates results of purchases and monitors contractual agreements to ensure value Is received. 

15. Keeps the Chief Executive Officer/COO informed of all events, activities, or problems, which will, or may have, 
a significant effect on hospital operations. 

16. Assures appropriate policies, procedures and guidelines are In place with managed care contracting impacting 
on financial reimbursement, quality medical management and satisfaction including capitated contracts .. 

17. Participates in Strategic Planning functions of the hospital, including the management, organization, 
participation and timely completion of special projects assigned by the CEO. 

18. Provides direction and participation in the development of organization-wide management educational 
activities. · 

19. Attends Executive Committee of the Medical Staff and other medical staff committees as needed. Facilitates 
and/or chairs medical staff work teams to assure that the planning and development of services is completed. 

20. Works closely with members of the medical staff, their elected officers and department chairs/chiefs to resolve 
issues, advance new and improved clinical programs, and ensure quality of care. 

21. Works with medical staff members to maintain and Improve performance in financial, utilization and 
patien!/payor satisfaction matters. 

22. Develops and maintains effective relations with internal and external constituents. 

23. Provides educational activities and written communication to physicians related to the following: policies and 
procedures that affect their practices directly, Initiatives within the organization as well as current market 
activities in the surrounding geographic market 

secondarv Functions: 
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1. Attends/participates and serves on professionallcivic service organizations a5 a Catholic Medical Center 
Senior Management representative. · 

2. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in appropriate role in 
disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations according to location. 

3. Maintains professional growth and deveiopment through seminars, workshops, and professional affiliations to 
keep abreast of latest trends In field of expertise. 

4. · Serves as the administrative liaison to Medical. Staff, Ethics Board Committe.es, Quality Management 
Committee, and other board committees as requested. · 

5. Exertise5 care In the use and operation of Catholic Medical Center equipment and reference materials. 

6: Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and Catholic Medical Center matters. 
. . 

7. Performs s!m!lar or related duties as requested or directed. 

Knowledge. Skills and Abilities 

Individuals must possess the knowledge, skms, and abilities listed or be able to explain and demonstrate that ihe 
individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without reasonable accommodation, using some 
other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the necessary physical requirements with or without the aid . 
of mechanieal devices to safely perform the essential functions of the job. 

1. Ability to deliver patient care in a manner that is appropriate to patient's age, physical ability and Intellectual 
development Must demonstrate proficiency in assessing treatmentand responses and adapting care to 
meet the needs df the patient population served; neonatal, pediatric, adolescent, adult and/or geriatric. 

2. Physical requirements include ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) In any direction; raise objects from a lower 
to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position to position; pick, pinch, type, or otllerwlse work 
primarily with fingers rather than the whole hand or arm; apply pressure to an object with fingers and palm; 
sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or fingers. 

3. Abllity to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include activities In 
which incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken Instructions to employees, physicians, patients, 
families, and external contacts. 

4. AbDity to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discrimination in sound. 

5. Ability to exert up to 1 O pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently or 
constantly to Ifft, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures, accounting, 
transcription, coniputer tenn!nal work, and extensive reading. 

7. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Abnity to work with frequent interruptions and respond 
appropri.ately to une:<Pected situations. · 

8. Ability to transport seif to and from off-site locations. 

9. Ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems where there is 
little accepted method or Procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and carrying out of policies, 
objectives and programs for majordivisions or functions. Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgment 

· required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret results and make decisions canying a great deal of 
responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. . 
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10. Working knowledge of_ hospital organization, manag~ment, and operations. Basic knowledge of hospital 
accounting and finance, JCAHO standards, state and local government regulations, and human resources 
principles. · · 

11. Ability to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular field and the use 
of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in the analysis of facts and conditions 
regarding individual problems or transactions to determine what actions should be taken, modifying or 
adapling standard procedures to meet different conditions, making decisions based on precedent and policy. 

12. Ability to receive training and guidelines from supervisor before assuming prog.ram responsibilities. Functions · 
independently followiog training._ 

13. Familiarity with database, spreadsheet and word pro995Slng software. 

14. Ability to interact effectively with people of varied educational, socioeconomic and ethnic backgrounds, skill 
levels and value systems. Ability to work closely and professionally with representatives ·of regulatory, ciVic, 
and service o.rganizations, healthcare pro~sionals and members of the_ medical staff • 

. 15. · lndiViduals are required to refrain from parlicip!'lting in any'activities that could be construed as fraud and 
abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Cente~s Standards of Business Conduct in any 
instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the raw, Responsible for 
detecting offenses by employees within ones department Requires that suspicion or knowledge of any 
person(s) violation of the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to. which you 
comply with the requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job 
performance. 

OSHA RATING: 
ACCESS TO PHI: 
WORK SCHEDULE: 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 

Exoerience: 

2 
Lim~d . 
Generally Monday through Friday, day shift; expectation of 
evening, night, weekend scheduled or unscheduled requirements; 
Periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational programs, etc. 
Ability to take Administrative On-call. 

Masters Degree In Hospital or Health Care Administration or Business 

Minimum of seven years experience in a management position in 
health care, including Operations, program planning and strategic 
development 
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

EFFECTIVE DATE; . · 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

November, 2012 

Exempt 

'·'"""" ~····" •:•J'll' "·· . ., •.. 

·.I D I I I ··- - - - -
~--· .. -·-;··~-:7'"~---

POSITION TITLE: · 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 

Senior Vice President, Operations /'Strategic Development 
General Counsel 

REPORTS TO: President/CEO 

POSITION. SUMMARY: 

The Senior Vice President of Operations and Strategic Development is responsible for overseeing· 
long-term strategic initiatives of the Hospital both internal and external to the institution. The Senior 
Vice President of Operations and Strategic Development participates in all strategic development and 
planning, including the management, organization and implementation of special projects assigned by 
the President/Chief Executive Officer. The Senior VP Operations/ Strategic Development will also 
function as the General Counsel. General Counsel is responsible for overseeing and directing all of 
the legal affairs of Catholic Medical Center and its affiliated entities and subsidiaries. The General 
Counsel is responsible for protecting the organization from legal and regulatory risk. 

Under the overall direction of the President/CEO, and within established departmental policies and 
procedures, the incul!lbent performs the following functions: 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Responsible for overseeing long-term strategic initiatives both internal and external to CMC. 

2, Participates in all strategic development and planning, including the management, organization 
and implementation of special projeCts assigned by the President/CEO. 

3. Responsible for overseeing Vice President of Strategy. 

4. Serves as General Counsel to the CEO and the Board of Trustees on matters affecting Catholic 
Medical Center and its affiliated entities and subsidiaries. Maintains knowledge offederal and 
state laws and regulations and determines their impact on the organization's operations and. . 
strategic initiatives. Keeps abreast of all legal and regulatory activities which may influence the 
operations of the system. 

5. Maintains, develops and reviews policies, procedures and practices to ensure compliance with 
federal and state laws and regulations. Develops, recommends and implements changes to 
existing policies, procedures and programs as necessary. 

Page 1 of5 



6. Responsible for oversseing Vice President of Human Resources and the Human Resources 
department as it relates to employment, compensation, benefits administrations, employee/labor· 
relations, policies and procedures,· organization development and training and employee records. 
Outlines scope of authority and job descriptions of employees under supervision; initiates 
personnel actions, including but not limited to hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, 

. assigning rewards and di!}ciplinary of adjusting of gri!lvances involving assigne~ personnel. 
Prepares and conducts formal and informal performance evaluations and recommends ·. 
appropriate merit awards for employees under supervision. 

7. Responsible for overseeing the Quality department, including the Data Center. 

8. Responsible for overseeing and participation -in all strategic planning initiatives, including 
identifying and pursuing opportunities to grow th_e organization, through strategic transactions. 

9. Responsible for Community Relations and Governmental Affairs. Responsible for maintaining 
strong relationships with community.and business leaders to enhance the goodwill and reputation 
of the organization though regular and active participation in eommunity events and service on 
appropriate non-profit boards. · 

10. Keeps the CEO informed of all legal and regulatory events, activities or issues which may have a 
significant effect on hospital operations. 

11. Managers and oversees all legal and regulatory actions which may be brought against the 
organization, including hiring and overseeing outside legal counsel. 

12. Prepares and presents to management and the Board of Trustees regular reports outlining the 
organization's legal and regulatory affairs. 

13. Manages and oversees all the organization's governmental affairs and relations at -federal, state 
and local levels. Responsible for maintaining strong relationships with governmental leaders and ·. 
elected officials for the benefit of the organization. 

14. Oversees corporate compliance and risk management for the organization. 

15. Maintains personal and professional training and development. Keeps abreast of changes and 
maintains status in the field. Maintains professional affiliations, attends outside seminars and 
conferences, and confers with peers at other hospitals and organizations. 

16. Serves as management representative to the Board of Trustees on appropriate committees. 
Serves as representative of the hospital and /or CEO on various affifiated boards of the 
organization. 

17. Participates in the functions and activities of the Catholic Medical Center Executive Management 
Team, including but not limited to assigned operations of the Hospital, serving on committees and 
task forces, preparing reports as requested, and representing administration as needed or 
requested. 
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18. Works within pplicies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in 
· appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, and other emergency situations according to location. 

19. Exercises care in the operation and use of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work 
area in an orderly. manner. 

20. Is responsible for complying with and enforcing all established·organizational and department 
policies and procedures. 

21. Ensures confidentialitY of employee, legal, budget and company matters. Maintains good 
. . communications; esta.blishes and maintains pos~ve working relationships ~ith employees, 

regulatory agencies, ·vendors, the public and among the hospital organizations. 

22. Performs similar or related duties and required or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job: 

1. Ability to bend the body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist. Ability to extend 
hand{s) and arm{s) in any direction. Ability to stand for sustained periods of time. Ability to move 
about on foot to accomplish tasks, particularly for long periods of time. Ability to raise objects from 
a lower to a higher position or moving objects horizontally from position to position. 

2. Ability to pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole and or arm 
·. as in handling. 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Incumbent must convey 
. detailed questions to elicit information from others. 

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and or a negligible amount of force frequently 
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

5. The incumbent is subject to both environmental conditions and activities that occur inside and 
outside. · 

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting, 
and extensive .reading. 

7. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems 
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and 
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable 
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret 
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results and make decisions canying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work 
of subordinate supervision In order to attain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Limited 

• Generally works Monday through Friday day shift; expectation of evening, night, weekend 
scheduled Or unscheduled requirements; periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational 
programs, etc • 

. QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Juris Doctorate Degree required. 

Experience: 
• Significant previous experience as a senior level executive, andlor counsel for a healthcare 

organization. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards. of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you C:omply with the 
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCA!{E SYSTEM . 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

~~Y&. ~ .. . 
• ;"-;:.~~ ·~n . J . 

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing. and hope in a manner that offers 
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity of every individual who 

seeks or. needs our care as art o Christ's hea/in throu h the Catholic Church, 

EFFECTIVE DATE: · 

POSITION TITLE: 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

COMPENSATION: 

POSITION SUMMARY 

October, 2012 

Executive Medical Director cif Catliolic Medical Center Healtli Systems 
Administration 
SRVP/Operations I NEHI & Physician Practices 

See Contract 

Executive Medical Director at Catholic Medical Center Health Systems (CMCHS) is responsible for 
advancing new and improved clinical programs, ensuring low cost, high quality of care and improving 
performance in finanCial, utilization and patient/family/payer satisfaction matters. · 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Under the general direction of the SRVP/ Operations/NEHI & Physician Practices, within established 
departmental policies and procedures and all applicable laws, through own actions or by delegating to 
appropriate co-workers, the incumbent, performs the following functions: · 

1. Cooperates and participates in the development of overall strategic vision and plan for the hospital 
system with an emphasis on physician integration and aligning hospital and physician interests as 
wen as creating value. 

2.. Works closely with the SRVP/ Operations I NEHI & Physician Practices in developing and 
maintaining intem_al and external stakeholder relationships and programs and initiatives. 

3. Works closely with the Chief Medical Officer (CMO) and the administration to help the hospital and 
its medical staff be more effective and efficient in providing care and develop lines of 
communication and flow of information between administration and the medical staff with the help 
of physician leaders. 

4. With the CMO and CMC Medical Directors, serves as a resource to the medical staff in regard to 
compliance and consistency in credentialing, reappointments, risk, quality, bylaws, policies, rules 
and regulations. 

5. Works in coordination with the CMO and others in administration to resolve grievances relating to 
the medical staff interactions with patients, families, nurses, hospital staff and administration. 



6. Assists the CMO and the medical staff in the process of risk/quality and corrective actions by 
education and communication. 

7. Supports the medical staff elements of The Joint Commission (T JC), Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid (CMS) and well as other.accreditation and regulatory bodies. 

B .. Identifies and encourages.future physician leaders. 

9. Meets with.and supports current medical staff leaders including elected medical staff and 
appointed medical directors to provide mentoring, guidance, education, and coordination of. 
services. 

10. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Management Team, including but riot 
. limited to serving on committees 'and task forces and performs other duties as physician leader 

when requested or needed. 
. . 

11. Participates in appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations 
according to location. 

12. Responsible for compliance and enforcement of all established organizational and department 
policies and procedures. 

13. Ensures confidentiality of employees, legal, budgetary, and company matters. Maintain good 
communications; establishes and maintains positive working relationships with employees, 
physicians, regulatory agencies, vendors, consultants, and the public. 

14. Performs similar or related duties as required or directed •. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the knowledge, skills and abilities listed or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and possess the 
necessary physical requirements with or without the aid of mechanical devices, to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job. 

1. Physical requirements include the ability to raise objects from a lower to a higher P.OSition or to 
move objects horizontally from position to position; the ability to extend hand(s) and arrn(s) in any 

·direction; pick, pinch, type or otherwise primarily work with fingers; PerceMng attributes of objects 
such as size, shape, temperature or texture by touching with skin, particularly that of fingertips; · 
use upper extremities to exert force in order to draw, haul or tug objects in a sustained motion; to 
press against something with steady force in order to thrust forward, downward or outward; apply 
pressure to an object with the fingers and palm; ability to substantially move wrists, hands and/or 
fingers; bending body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist; bending body 
downward and forward by bending leg and spine; ability to bend legs at knee to come to rest on 
the knee or knees. 
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2. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include 
activities.in wtiich incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken instructions to patients, 
physicians, families and other employees. · 

3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discriminations 
in sound. 

4. Ability to exert up to 20 pounds of force occasionally, and/or a negligible amount of force 
constantly to move objects. 

5. The incumbent is subject to hazards including a variety of physical conditions such as proximity to 
moving mechanical parts and electrical currents or exposure to chemicals. 

6. The incumbent is subject to normal inside environmental conditions. 

7. Th·e incumbent is not substantially exposed to adverse environmental conditions. 

8. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting, 
transcription, computer terminal operation and extensive reading. 

9. Requires the ability to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a 
particular field and the use of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in 
the analysis of facts and conditions regarding individual problems or transactions to determine 
what actions should be taken within the limits of standard practice. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

QUALIFICATIONS 

Education: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Complete 

• MD or DO degree 

Experience: 
• A minimum of 15 years as a Clinical Physician and experience as a Physician Leader such as 

Medical Director, President of the Medical Staff or Chair of the Department. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the 
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
CMC Healthcare System, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated :financial statemeots of CMC Healthcare System, Inc., which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2017, and the related consolidated statements of. 
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the fifteen-month period then ended, and the related notes 
to the consolidated financial statemeots. 

M{JJI(lgement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statemeots 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design; implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud.or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated :financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statemeots, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessmeots, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entiiy's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. · An audit also .. includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evideoce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of CMC Healthcare System, Inc. as of September 30, 2017, and the results of its 
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the fifteen-month period then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles geoerally accepted in the United States of America. 

&r ~f N~e) L\-t 
Manchester, New Hampshire 
February 13, 2018 

l 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Short-term investments 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for 

doubtful accounts of $20,432,260 
Inventories 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Prop.erty, plant and equipme!'t, net 

Other assets: 
Intangible assets and other 

Assets whose use is limited: 
Pension and insurance obligations 

September 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Board designated and donor restricted investments 
· and restricted grants 

Held by trustee under revenue bond.agreements 

Total assets 

$ 78,044,572 
27,221,800 

49,498,177 
3,406,820 

12.376.492 

170,547,861 

113,877,283. 

16,583,310 

16,777,534 

116,555,520 
51.479.065 

184.812.119 

$485 820.573 



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable aod accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, wages aod related accounts 
Amounts payable to third-party payors 
Current portion oflong-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

Accrued pension aod other liabilities, less current portion 

Long-term debt, less current portion 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Pennaoently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities aod net assets 

_See accompaoying notes .. 

3 

$ 36,101,613 
20,111,571 
14,351,322 
12.114.527 

82,679,033 

137,337,130 

119.685.392 

339,701,555 

136,393,011 
924,871 

8.801.136 

146,119,018 

$485 820.573 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

Net patient service revenues, net of 
contractual allowances and discounts 

Provision for doubtful accounts 

Net patient service revenues less 
provision for doubtful accounts 

Other revenue 
Disproportionate share funding 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 
Supplies and other 
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Income fi-om operations 

Nonoperating gains (losses): 
Investment income 
Net realized gains on sale of investments 
Loss on extinguishment of debt 
Unrestricted contributions 
Development costs 
Other nonoperating. loss 

Total nonop"°':ting gains, net. 

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses 

Unrealized appreciation on investments 
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement 
Assets released from restriction used for capital 
Pengio.n-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 

'. ' - ··- - .. ' - •' ' ... 

Increase in unrestricted net assets 

Unrestricted net assets at beginning of period 

Unrestricted net assets at end of period 

See accompanying notes .. 

4 

$530,258,031 
(22,167.913) 

508,090,118 

21,992,554 
16,102,280 

546,184,952 

297 ,460,532 
180,805,525 
23,129,419 
17,807,326 
2,937,514 

522.140.316 

. 24,044,636 

3,278,100 
3,381,479 
(105,628) 
650,656 

(510,487) 
(435,634) 

6.258.486 

30,303,122 

9,184,714 
422,469 

90,299 
21,451,059 

61,451,663 

74,941,348 

. $136 393 Oil 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

Balances atJune 30, 2016 

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses 
Restricted investment income 
Changes in interest in perpetual trust 
Restricted contributions 
Unrealized appreciation on investments 
Change in fair value of interest rate 

·'swap agreement 
Assets released from restriction 

used for operations 
Assets released from restriction 

used for capital 
Pension-related changes other than 

net J>eriodic pension cost 

Balances at September 30, 2017 

See accompanying notes. 

Unrestricted 
Net Assets 

$ 74,941,348 

30,303,122 

9,184,714 

422,469 

90,299 

21.451.059 

61,451.663 

$136 323 QI l 

5. 

Temporarily 
Restricted 
Net Assets 

$ 395,655 

2,784 

721,906 

(105,175) 

(90,299) 

529.216 

$ 224 821 

P=anently 
Restricted 
Net Assets 

.. $7,844,432 

54,487 
725,549 
114,032 
113,580 

(50,944) 

956,704 

$8,SQJ I 36 

Total 
Net Assets 

$ 83,181,435 

30,303,122 
57,271 

725,549 
835,938 

9,298,294 

422,469 

(156,119) 

21.451.059 

62,937.583 

$146112Ql8 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

Operating activities: 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets 

· to net cash provided by operating activities: 
·Depreciation and amortization 
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 
Restricted gifts and investment income · 
Net realized gains on sales of investments 
Increase in interest in perpetual trust 
Loss on extinguishment of debt 
Unrealized appreciation on investments 
Changes in fair value of intere~t rate swap agreements 
Bond discount/premium and issuance cost amortization 

· Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
·Accounts receivable, net · · · 
Inventories · · · · 
Other current assets 
Other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts 
Amounts payable to third-party payors 
Accrued pension and other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities · · - . ' ~ . .. -

Investing activities: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 
Payments received from note receivable 

_Net change in assets held by trustee under revenue bond agreements 
Proceeds from sales of investments · 

· Purchases of investments 
Net _cash 11Sed by investing activities 

Financing activities: 
Payments on long-term debt 
Proceeds from issuance oflong-term debt 
Payments on capital leases · 
Bond issuance costs 
Restricted gifts and investment income 

Net cash provided by financing activities 
·,:. 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equival_ents at_beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

··See accompanying notes. 

6 

$ 62,937,583 

17,807,326 
(21,451,059) 
. ' (893,209) 
(3,381,479) 

(725,549) 
105,628 

(9,298,294) 
(943,169) 
(212,639) 

86,338 
(207,510) 

(5,051,127) 
(639,999) 

13,428,959 
4,622,044 
1,482,033 
9.468.957 

67,134,834 

(34,607,687) 
800,600 

(47,534,017) 
71,477,070 

. (80,331.380) 
.. (90,195,414) 

; ·. --- .· . 

(15,793,182) 
74,013,417 
(1,248,314) 

(756,631) 
893,209 

57,108.499 

34,047,919 

43.996.653 

$ 78 044.572 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

1. Organization 

CMC Healthcare System, Inc. (the System) is a not-for-profit organization formed effective July 1, 2001. 
The System functioned as the parent company and sole member of Catholic Medical Center (the Medical 
Center) (until December 31, 2016, as discussed below), Physician Practice Associates, Inc. (PPA), 
Alliance Enterprises, Inc. (Enterprises), Alliance Resources, Inc. (Resources), Alliance Ambulatory 
Services, Inc. (AAS), CMC Ancillary Health Services, LLC (CAHS) (dissolved in September 2017), 
Alliance Health Services, Inc. (AHS), Doctors Medical Association, Inc. (DMA) and St. Peter's Home, 
Inc. · · . 

On December 30, 2016, the System became affiliated with Huggins Hospital (HH), a 25-bed critical 
access hospital in Wolfeboro, New Hampshire, and Monadnock Co=unity Hospital (MCH), a25-bed 
critical access hospital in Peterborough, New Hampshire, through the formation of a co=on paren~ 
GraniteOne Health.(GraniteOne). GraniteOnt< is a New Hampshire voluntary corporation that is 
recognized as being a Section 50l(c)(3) tax-exempt and "supporting organization" within the meaning 
of Section 509(a)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of1986, as amended (the Code). GraniteOne serves 
as the sole member of HH and MCH and co-member of the Medical Center, along with the System. 
GraniteOne is governed by a thirteen member Board of Trustees appointed by each of the respective 
hospitals within the GraniteOne system. The GraniteOne Board of Trustees governs the GraniteOne 
system through the existence and execution of reserved powers to approve certain actions by the Boards 
of Trustees. of each of the hospitals. Through GraniteOne, this more integrated healthcare system 
enhances the affiliated hospitals' ability to coordinate .the delivery of patient care, implement best 
practices, eliminate inefficiencies and collaborate on regional planning. These efforts strengthen the 
hospitals' ability to meet the healthcare needs of their respective co=unities and provide for a more 
seamless patient experience across the continuum of care. The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements for the fifteen-month period ended September 3 0, 2017 do not include the accounts and 
activity of GraniteOne, HH and MCH. · · · 

2. Significant Acconnting Policies 

Fiscal Year Change 

Effective July 1, 2016, the System changed its fiscal year end from June 30 to September 30. For the 
period from July 1, 2016 to September 30, 2017, the System has elected to present fifteen-month 
statements of operations, changes ill.. net assets and cash flows, ~d relatedfootnote information. . 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying. COJ1SOli_dated financial statements have. been prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. · · · · · · · · 

Principles of Consolidation 

: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Medical Center, PP A, Enterprises, 
Resources, AAS, CAHS, AHS, DMA and St. Peter's Home, Inc. Significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. . · · . · · . · · 

7. 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Use o(Estimates 

. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
as of the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The primary 
estimates relate to collectibility of receivables from patients and tbird-party payers, amounts payable to 
tbird-party payers, accrued conipensation and b.enefits, condi\iop.al asset retirement obligations, and self­
insur~ce r~serves. 

Income Taxes 

The System and all related entities, with the exception of Enterprises, DMA and CAHS, are not-for­
profit corporations as described in Section 50l(c)(3) of the Code and are exempt from federal income 
taxes on related income pursuant to Section 50l(a) of the Code. Management evaluated the System's 
tax positions and c<included the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any 
significant unrelated business income and had taken no. uncertain tax positions that require adjustment 
to the consolidate.d financial. statements. · · · · · 

Enterprises, DMA and CAHS (dissolved in September 2017) are for-profit organizations and, in 
accordance with federal and state tax laws, file income tax returns, as applicable. There was no provision 
for income. taxes for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017. There are no significant 
deferred tax assets or liabilities. These entities have concluded there are no significant uncertain tax 
positions requiring disclosure and there is no material liability for unrecognized tax benefits. It is the 
policy of these entities to recognize interest related to unrec.ognized tax benefits in interest. expense and 
penalties in income tax expense. · · · · 

Perfimnance Indicator 

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses is comprised of operating revenues and expenses and 
nonoperating gains and losses. For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be 

"ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as operating revenue and 
·. expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains or losses, which 
· include contributions, development costs, realized gains and losses on the sales of securities and property 

. ·and eqllipment, unrestricted investment income, loss on extinguishment of debt, oiher nonoperating 
loss.es, and contributions to co=unity agencies. . · · · · · · · · . · . "· .. 

. ' . . . . . . ' ' 

Charity Care 

The System has a formal charity care policy under which patient care is provided to patients who meet 
certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The System does not pursue 
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity .care;. therefore, they are not reported as revenues. 

' . . . . . ·. . ·. . . . ·. . . . ... 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen.-Month Perfod Ended Septem!Jer 30, 2017 . 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Of the System's $522,140,316 total expenses reported for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 
. 201 7, an estimated $7,200,000 arose from providing services to charity patients. The estimated costs of 
·providing charity services are based on a calculation which applies a ratio of costs to charges to the gross 
.. uncompensated charges associated with providing care to charity patients. The ratio of cost to charges 
is calc;ulated based on the System'.s total expenses divided by gross patient service revenue. · 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments which subject the System to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to. cash equivalents is minimized by the 
,System's policy of mvesting in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated 
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable.are primarily due from third-party payors and · 
amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and uncollectible amounts. The System's 
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. Investments 
that. exceeded 10% of investments include the SSGA S&P 500 Tobacco Free Fund and the Dreyfus 
Treasury Securities Cash Management Fund as of September 30, 2017. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when 
purchased and investments in overnight deposits at various banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude 
amounts whose use is limited by board designation and amounts held by trustees under revenue bond 
and other agreements. The System maintains approximately $76,000,000 at September 30, 2017 of its 
cash and cash equivalent accounts with a single institution. The System has not experienced any losses 
associ~ted with depos,its at this institution. · · . 

Net Patient Service Revenues and Accounts Receivable 

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different from 
its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge, 
reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient service revenue 
is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for 
services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement .agreements with 
third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated biµ;is in the period the related 
services are renderecl and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. . Changes in 

· · · these estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period in .which they occur. 
. - ' ' - '- - . .. . . ., ~ . . . 

·. ,· ·. -·: 

The System recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have 
·third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For uninsured 
patients, the System provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private insurance 
payors. 

9. 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fift~encMonth Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The provision for doubtful accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected 
net collections considering historical business and economic conditions, trends in health care coverage, 
and other collection indicators. The System records a provision for doubtful accounts in the period 
services are provided related to self-pay patients, including both uninsured patients and patients with 
deductible and copaymentbalances due forwhich .. third-party coverage.exists for a portion of their 
balance. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Periodically, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts based upon 
historical write-off experience. The results of this review are then used to make any modifications to 
the provision for doubtful acco\Jnts to· establish an appropriate allowance ·for doubtful accounts. · 
Accounts receivable are 'written: off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with 
internal policies. · 

Inventories 

Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) ornet 
realizable value. · · · 

. Related Party Activity 

The Medical Center has engaged in various transactions with GrauiteOne, HH and MCH. The Medical 
Center recognized approximately $2.4 million in revenue from these related parties from the date of 
affiliation, December 30, 2016, through September 30, 2017, which is reflected within other revenues 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The Medical Center also incurred 
approximately $251,000 in expenses from transactions with these related parties from the date of 

. affiliation, December30, 2016, though September30, 2017, which is reflected within operating 
·.expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of.operations. As of September 30, 2017, the 

System has a net amount due from these relate.d parties of approximately $865,000, which is reflected 
within other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balanc~ sheet. · · ·' ' .. · ·- . - - . - . .- - . . - - . 

Propertv, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or fair value at the time of donation, 
· less accumulated depreciation. The System's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major 
·improvements and charge maintenance and repairs currently. for. expenditures which do not extend the 

"·. lives of the related assets. The provisions. for depreciation and amortization have been determined using 
·: the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize.the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, 
· which rauge from 2 to 40 years. Assets which have.been purchased but not yet placed in service a:re 

included in construction in progress and no depreciation expense is recorded. At September 3 0, 2017, 
· the Medical Center has outstanding construction commitments totaling approximately $11. 7 million for 

expansion of various Medical Center departments, including the emergency department and intensive 
. care unit, as well. as renovations to the electrophysiology and cardiac cath~teiizl!tion I.abs. . · 

10 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN.TS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations 

The System recognizes the fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset retirements 
in the period in which the obligation is incurred, in accordance with the Accounting Standards for 
Accounting/or Asset Retirement Obligations (ASC 410-20). When the liability is initially recorded, the 
cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related 
Jong lived asset The liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the capitalized cost 
associated with the retirement obligation is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset Upon 
settlement of the obligation, any difference between the cost to settle the asset retirement obligation and 
the liability recorded is recognized as a gain or Joss in the consolidated statement of operations. 

As of September 30, 2017, $1,214,222 of conditional asset retirement obligations are included withio 
accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet 

Goodwill 

The System reviews its goodwill and other Jong-lived assets annually to determine whether the carrying 
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred, these assets 
are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the fifteen-month period ended 
September 30, 2017. The net carrying value of goodwill is $4,490,154 at September 30, 2017 and is 
reflected withio intangible assets and other in the accompanying balance sheet 

Retirement Benefits 

The Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan (the Plan) provides retirement benefits for certain employees 
of the Medical Center and PPA who have attained age twenty-one and work at least 1,000 hours per 
year. The Plan consists of a benefit accrued to July 1, 1985, plus 2% of plan year earnings (to legislative 
maximums) per year. The System's funding policy is to contribute amounts to the Plan sufficient to 
meet minimum funding requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, 
plus such additional amounts as may be determined to be appropriate from time to time.· The Plan is 
intended to constitute a plan described in Section 414(k) of the Code, under which benefits derived from 
employer contnlmtions are based on the separate account balances of participants in addition to the 
defined benefits under the Plan. 

Effective January 1, 2008 the Medical Center decided to. close participation in the Plan to new 
participants. As of January 1, 2008, current participants continued to participate in the Plan while new 
employees receive a higher matching contribution. tq the tax-sheltered annuity benefit program _discussed 
below. · · · · · · · · 

. During 2011, the Board of Trustees voted to freeze the accrual of benefits under the Plan effective 

. December 31, 2011. 

The Plan was amended effective as of May 1, 2016 to provide a limited . opportunity for certain 
. terminated vested participants to elect _an immediate Jump sum or annuity distribution option. . . . . ' . . . . . . ' ' . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The System also maintains tax-sheltered annuity benefit programs in which it matches one half of 
employee contributions up to 3% of their annual salary, depending on date of hire, plus an additional 
3% - 5% based on tenure. The System made matching contributions under the program of $8,868,571 
for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017. · · · · · 

During 2007, the Medical Center created a nonqualified deferred compensation plan covering certain 
employees under Section 457(b) of the Code. Under the plan, a participant may elect to defer a portion 
of their compensation to be held until payment in the future to the participant or his or her beneficiary. 
Consistent with the requirements of the Code, all amounts of deferred compensation, including but not 
limited to any investments held and all income attributable to such amounts, property, and rights will 
remain subject to the claims of the :Medical Center's creditors, without being restricted to the payment 
of deferred compensation, until payment is made to the participant or their beneficiary. No co.ntnlmtions 
were made by the System for the fifteen-mon!h period ended September 30, 2017. · · 

The System also provides a noncontributory supplemental executive retirement plan covering certain 
former executives of the Medical Center, as defined. The System's policy is to accrue costs under this 
plan using the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method" and to amortize past service costs over a 
fifteen year period. Benefits under this plan are based on the participant's final average salary, social 
security benefit, retirement income plan benefit, and total years of service. Certain investments have 
been designated for payment of benefits under this plan and are ii)cluded .in assets whose use is limited-
pension 311d insurance obligations. · . · · · 

During 2007, the System created a supplemental executive retirement plan covering certain executives 
of the Medical Center under Section 457(f) of the Code. The System recorded compensation expense 
of $595,080 for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017 related to this plan. . . . . ' . . 

Emplovee Fringe Benefits 

The System has an "earned tiJne" plan. Under this plan, each qualifying employee "earns" hours of paid 
leave for each pay period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacations, holidays, or 
illness. Hours earned but not used are vested with the employee and are paid to the employee upon 
termination. The System expenses the cost of these benefits as they are earned by the employees. 

·Debt Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium 

The debt issuance costs incurred to _obtain financing for the System's construction and renovation 
programs and refinancing of prior bonds and the original issue discount or premium are. amortized to 
interest expense using the effective interest method over the repayment period of the bonds. The original 
i~sue _discount or premium and debt.issuance costs are pres,ented as a component of Jong-term debl 

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted 

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under-indenture agreements, 
· . pension and insurance obligations, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees, over which the 

Board retains control and may, at its discretion, .subsequently use for. other purposes, and donor-restricted 
investmen(S. · · · · · · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

·Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Classification o(Net Assets 

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor 
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use 
by the System has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction 
expires (i.e., when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statement 
of operations as either net assets released from restrictions used for operations (for noncapital-related 
items and included in other revenue) or as net assets released from restrictions used for capital (for 
capital-related items). · 

. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in 
perpetuity. Income earned on permanently restricted net assets, to the extent not restricted by the donor, 
including net unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investments, is included in the consolidated 
statement of operations as unrestricted resources or as a change in temporarily restricted net assets in 
accordance with donor-intended purposes or applicable law. 

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions aremet within the same period as received are reported 
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated fioancial statements . . - . . ' ' . '• . 

Investments and Investment Income 

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. See Note 7 
for further discussion regarding fair value measurements. Realized gains or losses on the sale of 
investment secnrities are determined by the specific identification method and are recorded on the 
settlement date. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of revenues 
and gains over expenses unless the investments are classified as trading securities or losses are 
considered other-than-temporary. Interest , and dividend income on unrestricted investments, 

·unrestricted investment income on permanently restricted _investments _and unrestricted net realized 
gains/losses are reported_ as nonop_erating gains/losses. - " - - -- ' ' -

Derivative lnstro.ments 

Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value 
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrnment. Changes in the fair value of derivatives 
are recognized either in the excess of revenues and gains over expenses or net assets, depending on 

- whether the derivatiye.is speculative or being used_ to hedge changes _in fair value or cash flows. See 
-, also Note 5. - - -- ' · - · · · 

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trost 

- The System is the beneficiary of trust funds administered by trustees or other third parties. Trusts 
wherein the System has the irrevocable right to receive the income earned on the trust assets in perpetuity 
are recorded as permanently restricted net assets at the fair value of the trust at the. date of receipt. 

-income distributions from the trusts are reported as investment income that increase unrestricted net -
_ issets, unless restricted by the donor. Annual changes in the_ fair yiiJue of the_ trusts are _recorded as 
_ increases or decreases to permanently restricted net assets. · - --- ' ' ' . . . . , . . . ' . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies !Continued) 

Investment Policies 

: The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested 
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested .assets include 
endowment, specific purpose and board designated.(unrestricted) funds. 

. - ·•·. •. - ' '7·' - : . •, -

Endowment funds are identiffed as permanent in nature, intended to provide support for current or future 
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer­
term investment objectives and strategies designed to acco=odate relevant, reasonable, or probable 
events. . · . . . . 

Temporarily restricted funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the. 
donor or grantor. These.funds have various intermediate/long-term tim~ horizons associated with 
specific identified spending objectives. · · · 

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific 
spending objectives as d~t.ermined ,by the B()ard of Trustees. 

··Management of these assets is designed .to maximize total return while preserving the capital values of 
th.e funds, protecting the funds from inflation and providing liquidity as needed. The objective is to 
provide a real rate of return that meets inflation, plus 4% to 5%, over a long-term time horizon. · . . . 

The System targets a diversified asset allocation that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return 
objectives within prud~nt risk constraints. · · · 

Spending Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure 

In accor<lance with the .Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIF A), the System 
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted 
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and 
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of 
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; 
(f) other resources of the.organization; and. (g) the investment p91icies of the prganization. · 

.·· . . . . ·-- . . .. ' •. - . .. '. - . . . ! . . - '. ,' -

·. · Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for 
i:he support of key programs. The. spending policies . are structured in a manner to ensure that the 
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the 
.programs. The System currently has. a policy allowing interest and dividend income earned on 
· investments to be u,sed for operations with the goal of ke~ing principal, ip.cluding its appreciation, 
intact.. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures 

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs .are recognized as the related .expenditure is 
. incurred. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Acconnting Policies (Continued) 

Malpractice Loss Contingencies 

The System has a claims-made basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. A claims-made basis 
policy provides specific coverage for claims reported during the policy term. The System has 
established a reserve to cover prpfessioual liability exposure, which may not be covered by insurance. 
The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance 
coverage may be asserted against the System. In the event a loss contingency shonld occur, the System 
would give it appropriate recognition in its consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting standards. The System expects to be able to obtain renewal or other coverage in future 
periods. . 

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 
954): Presentation ofinsw·ance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2017, the 
System recorded a liability of $12,303,356 related to estimated professional liability losses covered under 
this policy. At September 30, 2017, the System also recorded a receivable of $8,819,106 related to 
estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential losses. These amounts are 
included in accrued pension and other liabilities, and intangible assets. and other, respecti.vely, on the 
consolidated balance sheet. · · · · 

Workers' Compensation 

The System maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insured plan. The plan offers; 
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against 
excessive losses. The System has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any, 
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $2,868,3 77 at September 30, 
201 7 have been discounted at 1.25% and, in management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss 
contingencies. At September 30, 2017, $1,253,352 and $1,615,025 is recorded.within accounts payable 
and .accrued expenses and accrued pension and other li.abilities, respectively, in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet. The System has also recorded $248,541. and $403,774 within other current 
assets and intangible assets and other, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet to 
limit !he accrued losses to the retention amount at September 30, 2017. · · · 

. '· . . ' . . - . ·. 

Health Insurance . 

· The System has a self,funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company 
·which assists in determining the =.en! funding requirements of participants. under the terms of the plan 
and the liability for claims an.d assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System 
is insured above a stop-loss amount of $325,000 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and 

. those claims incurred but not reported, at September 30, 2017 of $4,203,703 are reflected in the 
· accompanying consolidated bajance sheet within accounts payable anq accrued expenses. · · 

·.. . . . . . ' . . 

Advertising Costs 

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately $1,701,000 for 
the .fifteen-month period ended Septembei: 3 0, 2017. · · · · · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

·l'ifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which requires revenue to be recognized when· 
promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to 
which the System expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will 
replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. ASU 
2014-09 is effective for the System on October 1, 2018. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the 
retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The System is evaluating the impact that ASU 
2014-09. will have on its consolidated. financial statements and related disclosures. 

In February2016, theFASB issued ASUNo. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU2016-02). Under ASU 
201 (\-02, at the co=encement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to. the 
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset ASU 
2016-02 is effective for the System on October 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted. Lessees (for 
capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing 
at, or entered into after, the beginniog of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial 

. statements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases 
that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective 
transition approach. The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU 
2016-0Z ?n the Sy~tem's. 79nsolidated financial statet;:tents. · · · · · · · · · · 

In August 2016, the F ASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for­
Profit Entities (Topic 958) (ASU 2016-14). Under ASU 2016-14, the existing three-category 
classification of net assets (i.e., unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted) will be 
replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily restricted and permanently restricted into a 
single category called "net .assets with donor restrictions". ASU 2016-14 also enhances certain 
disclosures regarding board designations, donor restrictions. and qualitative. information regarding 
management of liquid resources. In addition to reporting expenses by functional classifications, ASU 
2016-14 will also require the financial statements to provide information about expenses by their nature, 
along with enhanced disclosures about the methods used to allocate costs among program and support 
functions. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the System's fiscal year ending September 30, 2019, with early 
adoption permitted. The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU 
2016-14 on the System's ~ons?lidated fioancial statements. · 

In November 2016, .the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): 
·Restricted Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force) (ASU 2016-18), which provides 
·guidance on the presentation of restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash 
flows. AsU 2016-18 will be effective for the System's fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, and early 
adoption is permitted. ASU 2016-18 must be applied using a retrospective transition method. The 
System is currently evaluatiog the iµJ.pact of the adoption of this guidance on its cons.olidated fioancial 
statements. · · · · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month period EI~ded September 30, 2017 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

In March 2017, theFASB issuedASUNo. 2017-07, Compensation-RetirementBenefits (Topic 715): 
Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost 

· (ASU 2017-07). ASU 2017-07 will require that an employer report the seivice cost component of net 
periodic pension cost in the same line item as other compensation costs arising from services rendered 
by employees during the period. The other components of net periodic pension cost are reqnired to .be 
presented in the income statement separately and outside a subtotal of income from operations, if oue is 
presented. ASU 2017-07 is effective for the System on October 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. 
The System is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of.ASU 2017-07 on its 
consolidated financial statements. · · · 

Subsequent Events 

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between September 30, 2017 and February 13, 
2018, th~ date. tl;ie consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

3. Net Patient Service Revenne 

The following summarizes.net patient seivice revenue for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 
;2017: . . . . . . 

Gross patient service revenue 
Less contractual allowances 
Less provision for doubtfol accounts 

Net patient service revenue . 

$ 1,531,737,782 
. (1,001,479,751) 

. (22,167.913) 

$ 508.090,118 

. The System maintains contracts with the Social Security Administration ("Medicare") and the Sta,te of 
New Hampshire Department .of Health and Human Services ("Medicaid"). . The System is paid a 
prospectively determined fixed price for each Medicare and Medicaid inpatient acute care seivice 
depending on the type of illness or the patient's diagnosis related group classification. Capital costs and 
certain Medicare .and Medicaid outpatient seivices are also reimbursed on a prospectively determined 
fixed price. The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost 
basis which are .settle9 with retroactive adjustme11ts upon completion and audit of related cost finding 
reports ... · · · · · · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · 

: Differences between amounts previously estimate.d and amounts subseque11tly determined to be 
· recoverable or payable are included in net patient seivice revenues in the period that such amounts 

become known. The percentage of net patient service revenues earned from the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs was 36% and 5%, respectively, for.the fifteen,m01;1th period ended September 30, 2017. . . ' ' . 

. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex. and subject to 
interpretation. The System believes that it is in compliance with all applicable)aws and regulations; 
complianee with such laws and regulations can be subject to foture government review .and interpretation 
as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare. and . 
Medicaid programs CNote 14). · · · · · · · · · · ·· · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

·Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 3,0, ;1017 

3. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued) 

The System also maintains contracts with certain commercial carriers, health maintenance organizations, 
preferred provider organizations and state and federal agencies. The basis for payment uoder these 

. agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge and per day, discouots from 
. established charges and fee screens. The System does not currently .hold reimbursement contracts which 

contai!i financial risk "':'mponents. · . · · · · 

The approximate percentages of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances and discouots 
and provision for doubtful accouots for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017 from third­
party payors and uoinsured patients are as foUows: 

Net patient service revenue, net of 
contractual aUowance and discouots 

Third-Party 
Payors 

99.15% 

Uninsured Total All 
Patients Payors 

0.85% 100.0% 

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenues, net of contractual aUowances, discouots and 
provision for doubtful accouots recognized for the fifteen-month period ended S.eptember 30, 2017 from 
major payor so.urces, is as foUows: · · 

.Private payors (includes coin-
.· surance and deducttliles) 

Medicaid . . . . 

Medicare 
Self·p.ay 

Gross 
Patient Service 

Revenues 

$ 568,278,862 
162,431,298 
,770,579,025 

30.448.597 

$ L53 l 731182 

Provision 
Contractual for 
Allowances Doubtful 

and Discouots Accouots 

$ (263,178,931) $ (10,143,416) 
(134,490,719) (774,771) 
(585,144,615) (3,764,372) 
(! 8.665,4:86) (7,485.354) 

$(1,0QI 472151) $ (22,167,213) 

Net Patient 
Service 

Revenues 
Less Provision: 
for Doubtful 

Accouots 

$ 294,956,515 
27,165,808 

181,670,038 
'4.297.757 

$ 5Q8,020 118 

. The System recognizes changes in accouoting estimates for net patient service revenues and third-party 
· . : payor.settlements as new events occur or as additional information is obtained. For the fifteen-month 

· period ended September 30, 2017, there.were no significant adjusttnents recorded. for changes to prior. 
yearestimates. ·· · · · · · ·· ·. · · ·· ·.··· · · · ·· · 

·Medicaid Enhancement Tax and Disproportionate Share Payment 

· Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement 
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% and 5.45%, respectively, of the Medical Center's net patient service revenues 
in State fiscal years 2017 and 2016 with certain exclusions. The amount of tax incurred by the Medical 
Center for the fifteen-month period end.ed September 30, 2017 was $23,129,419. · • · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 3 0, 2017 

3. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued) 

In the fall of2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New 
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH) 
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment 
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation 
created some level oflosses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains. 
DSH payments from the State are recorded in operating revenues and amounted to $16,102,280 for the 
fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017, net ofreserves referenced below. · 

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program 
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 through 2014, the first years that 
those payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals: It 
is possible that. subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has ~ecorded reserves to 
address its exposure b~ed on the audit results to date. · · · · · · · 

Electronic Health Records Incentive Pqvments 

The CMS Electronic Health Records (EHR) incentive programs provide a financial incentive for the 
"meaningful use" of certified EHR technology to achieve health and efficiency goals. To qualify for 
incentive payments, eligible organizations must successfully demonstrate meaningful use of certified 
EHR technology through various stages defined by CMS. The System filed certain meaningful use 
attestations with CMS. Revenue totaling $120,535 associated with these meaningful use attestations is 
recorded as other revenue for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017. 

4. Property. Plant and Equipment 

The major categories of property, plant and equipment at September 30, 2.017 are as follows: 

Land and land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Fixed equipment 

-. Movable equipment 
· Constn,iction in progress 

Less. acc;nmulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Useful 
Lives 

2-40years 
2-40years 
3-25 years 
3-25 years 

$ 3,060,081 
115,779,720 
43,526,110 

118,387,764 
9.065.141 

. 289,818,816 
. 1.75.941.533 

$113 877 283 

'.Depreciation expense amounted to $17,751,719 for the fifteen-month period ended September30, 2017. . . . . . \ . . . . . 

·The.cost of equipment under capital leases .was $7,844,527 at September30, 2017. Accumulated 
. amortization of the leased equipment at September30, 2017 was $6;367,077 .. Amortization of assets 

.. under capital leases is included in depreciati~I! and amortization expense. 
' . . ' . . . . . . . . . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

5. Long-Term Debt and Note Pavable 

Long-term debt at September 30, 2017 consists of the following: 

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities 
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds: 

Series 2012 BondS with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% 
per year and principal payable in annual installments 
ranging from $1,125,000 to $2,755,000 through July 2032 

Series 2015A Bonds with interest at a fixed rate of2.27% 
per year and principal payable in annual installments 
ranging from $185,000 to $1,655,000 through July 2040 

Series 2015B with variable interest subject to interest rate 
swap described below and principal payable in annual 
installments ranging from $195,000 to $665,000 through 
July 2036 · 

Series 2017 Bonds with interest ranging from 3.38% to 
5.00% per year and principal payable in annual 
installments ranging from $2,900,000 to $7,545,000 
beginning in July ·2033 through July 2044 

Note payable - see below 
Capitalized lease obligations 
Unamortized original issue premiums/discounts 
Unamortized debt issuance costs 

Less current portion 

$ 24,995,000 

22,845,000 

8,455,000 

61.115.000 
117,410,000 

8,082,093 
1,727,577 
5,871,018 

Cl.290. 769) 
131,799,919 
(12.114.527) 

$119.685 392 
'·. 

in May 2006, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $32,910,000 of tax-exempt 
fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2006). Under the terms of.the loan agreements, the Medical Center has 
granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing 
and future property, plant and equipment. The proceeds of the Series 2006 bond issue were used to 

. advance refund $9,010,000 of Series 2002A Bonds, to provide funding for renovating additional space 
and equipment at the Medical Center, and to provide a portion of the funding for the construction of a 

. parking garage. As descn'bed.below, the Series 2006 Bonds were refunded by.the Series 2015A and. 
2015B Bonds. · · · · ' · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · ." .'. · · 

In December 2012, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued. $35,275,000 of tax­
exempt fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2012). Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical 
Center has granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien 
on existing and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a 

·minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant 
.·..s of September 3 0, 2017. The proceeds of the Series 2012 bond issue were used to advance refund the 
. remaining 2002A Bonds, advance refund.certain 2002B Bonds, pay off a sl:10rt term CAN note. and fund 
certain capi~ purchases. · · · · · · . · · . · · · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

· Fifteen-MontJi_Period Ended September 30, 2017 

5. Long~Term Debt and Note Payable (Continued) 

On September 3, 2015, the Authority issued $32,720,000 of Revenue Bonds, Catholic Medical Center 
Issue, Series 2015, consisting of the $24,070,000 aggregate principal amount Series 2015A Bonds and 

. the $8,650,000 aggregate principal amount Series 2015B Bonds sold via direct placement to a financial 
·.·institution. Although the Series 2015B Bonds were issu«d, they were not drawn on until July 1, 2016, 

·as discussed below. Under the terms. of the loan agreements, the Medical Center has granted the 
Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien op. existing and future 
property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a minimum debt service 
coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical_ C_enter was in compliance with this covenant as of September 30, 
2017. . . . . . . . 

. The Series 2015A Bonds were issued to provide funds for the purpose of (i) advance refunding a portion 
of the outstanding 2006 Bonds in an amount of $20,655,000 to the first call date of July 1, 2016, 
(ii) funding certain construction projects and equipment purchases in an amount of approximately 
$3,824,000, and (iii) paying the costs of issuance_related to the. s~ries 2015 1;3onds. . . . 

The Series 20 l 5B Bonds were structured as draw down bonds. On July 1, 2016, the full amount available 
under the Series 2015B Bonds totaling $8,650,000 was drawn upon and the proceeds in combination 
·with cash contnbuted by the Medical Center totaling $555,000 were used to currently refund the 

. remaining balance of the Series 2006 Bonds totaling $9,205,000. As a result of this refunding, the 
remainirig portion of the. unamortized bond issuance costs and original issue discount related to the 
Series 2006 Bonds were included in the loss on extinguishment of debt, which totaled $105,628 for the 
fifteen-month period ended September 30, 20_17. · · ·· · · · · · 

'·':. - . ' . ' . 

On September 1, 2017, the Authority issued $61,115,000 of Revenue Bonds, Catholic Medical Center 
Issue, Series 2017. The Series 2017 Bonds were issued to fund various construction projects and 
equipment purchases, as well as pay certain costs of issuance related to the Series 2017 Bonds. Under 

· . the terms of the Joan agreements, the Medical Cente_r has granted the Authority a first collateralized 
interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing and future property, plant and equipment. 

. '.The Medical Center is required to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical 
Center was in compliance with this covenant as of September 30, 2017.. · · · · · . · · · · · 
........ · ........ ·- .. ~ .. . 

The Medical Center has an agreement with the Authority, which provides for the establishment of 
various funds, the use of which is generally restricted to the payment of debt, as well as a construction 
fund related to the Series 201 7 Bonds. These funds are_ administered by a trustee, and income earned 

· on certain of these funds is similarly restricted. · · · · · .. -. . - -- . - •'. . ·- . . 

· Interest paid by the System totaled $3,666,187 for the fifteen-month period ended September ,30, 2017. :. _·' - :: ._' .. ; - ·. - .-·., ;'·.· '· .. ·-. ··~ . ··-~:_;-.· ... : .... ·-..: . . -- -_ :· - : ·' 

. The aggregate principal payments due on the revenue bonds, capital lease obligations and other debt 
obligations for each of the.five years ending September 30 and thereafter. are as follows: · ·· · - - - . . . . . ' . . . - . . ' ' . . . . . ' . . - . 

2018 
2019 

. 2020 
2021 
2022 

.Thereafter 

21. 

. $ 12,114,527 
. 4,131,199 

3,924,080 
2,394,864 
2,470,000 

102.185,000 

$127.219 670 

. ... 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

5. Long-Term Debt alid Note Payable (Continned) 

The fair value of the System's long-term debt is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on 
the System's current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The fair 
value of the System's long-ten:i:t debt, excluding capitalized I.ease obligations, was $129,397,571 at 
September30, 2017.. ·· · · · ·· · · 

MOB ILC Note Payable 

During 2007, MOB LLC (a subsidiary of Enterprises) established a nonrevolving line of credit for 
$9,350,000 with a bank in order to fund construction of a medical office building. The line of credit 
bore interest at the LIBOR lending rate plus 1 %. Payments of interest only were due on a monthly basis 
until the completed construction of th.e medical office. During 2008, the building construction was 
completed and the line of credit was converted to a note payable with payments of interest (at the one­
month LIBOR rate plus 1.4%) (2.64% at September 30, 2017) and principal due on a mon,thly basis, 
with all payments to be made no later than April I, 2Q 18. · · 

Derivatives 

·The System uses derivative financial instruments principally to manage interest rate risk. During 2007, 
. MOB LLC entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional amount of $9,350,000 

in connection with its line of credit Under this agreement, MOB LLC pays a fixed rate equal to 5.21 %, 
and receives a variable rate of the one-month LIBOR rate (1.23% a.t September 30, 2017). Payments 
under the swap agreement began April 1, 2008 and !he agreement will terminate April I, 2018. 

. . \ - - . .. . 

The fair value of the MOB LLC interest rate swap agreement amounted to a liability of $184,767 as of 
September 30, 2017, which amount has been included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheet The decrease in the fair value of this derivative of $520, 700 

. have. been included within nonoperating .investni.ent incorpe for. the .fifteen-rµonth period ended 
September30, 20.17. · · · · · · .·. · · . . · · · · · 

In January 2016, the Medical Center entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional 
amount of $8,650,000 in connection with its Series 2015B Bond issuance. The swap agreement hedges 
the Medical Center's interest exposure by effectively converting interest payments from variable rates 
to a fixed rate. The swap agreement is designated as a cash flow hedge of the underlying variable rate 
interest payments, and changes in the .fair. value of the swap agreement are reported as a change in 
lln,estricted net assets. Under this agre~ment, the Medical Center pays a fixed rate equal to 1.482%, and 

'receives a variable rate of 69.75% of the one-month LIBOR rate. (0.86% at September30, 2017). 
· · :payments under the swap agreement began August I, 2016. an.d the agreement will terminate August 1, 

2025. ' ' . .·.' ' . .. . . . . .. . . ' ' ' .. 

Tue fair value of the Medical Center's interest rate swap agreement amounted to a liability of $40, 10 I 
as of September 30, 2017, which amount has been included within accrued pension and other liabilities 

· in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet The decrease in the fair value of this derivative of 
$422,469 has been included within the consolidated statement of changes in net assets as. a. change in 

· 'unrestricted net .assets for the fi~een-month period ended September 30, 2017. · · · 
. . . . . . . . : - . . . ' . - . . . . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

6. Operating Leases 

The System has various noncancelable agreements to lease various pieces of medical equipment The 
System also has noncancelable leases for office space and its physician practices. Rental expense under 
all leases for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017 was $5,916,100. 

Estimated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows: 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Thereafter 

7. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited 

$ 3,959,206 
3,138,556 
3,091,861 
3,047,966 
3,074,549 

11.654.455 

$ 27 966.593 

Investments and assets whose use is limited are comprised of the following at September 30, 2017: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
U.S. federated treasury obligations 
Marketable equity securities 
Fixed income securities 
Private. investment funds 

Fair Value Cost 

$ 11,619,660 
51,777,577 
40,021,449 
58,895,772 
49.719.461 

$ 11,619,660 
51,776,760 
33,576,238 
58,989,604 
26.245.350 

$212 033 919 $182.207.612 

Investment income and realized gains/losses and unrealized appreciation are summarized as follows for 
the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017: · . 

Unrestricted: . 
Nonoperating investment income 
Realized gains on sales of investments, net 
Change. in unrealized appreciation on investments 

: ·. '.·'' - . .. . . 

Restricted: 
· Investment income 

Change in unrealized appreciation on investments 
Changes in interest in perpetual trust . 
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$ 3,278,100 
3,381,479 
9.184,714 

$15 844 293 

$ 57,271 
113,580 
725.549 

$ 826,400 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month .Period Ended September 30, 2017 

7. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued) 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an 
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date. In determining fair value, the use of various 
valuation .approaches, including market, income and cqst approaches, is.permitted. ·· 

' . . . ' - . - . . ·. . 
A fair value hierarchy has been established based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are 
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from sources independent 
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's. own assumptions about how market 
participants would value an asset or liability based on the best information available. Valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observabie inputs and minimize the use 
of unobservable inputs: The standard descnbes a fair vaiue hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of : 
which the first two are considered ob~ervable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure 
fair value. · · ... · · · · ·· ·. · . · . . · · · 

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation 
methodologies used by the System for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
The three levels of inputs are as follows: · 

Level 1 - Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; 
' .. c • • . - . . • • ' 

Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or 
indirectly; and · 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data . . . . . . . 

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques. The 
three valuation techniques are as follows; · · · 

Market approach - Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving 
identical or comparable assets or liabilities; 

· Cost approach - Amount that would be required. to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e., 
replacement cost); and.. · . · · · 

. Income approach. - Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on . 
market expectations (including present _value techniques).. · · · · · · 

·-. . _•;; .· . ·. . - .·. · .. :. 
In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities . 

. There have been no changes in the methodologi.es used at Septem!Jer 30, 2017. 

·The followmg is a description of the valuation methodologies used: 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

.Fifteen-.!vfonth Period Ended September 30, 2017 

7. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited {Continued) 

U.S. Federated Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities 

. The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, external pricing providers, or 
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The System holds fixed income 
mutual funds and exchange traded funds, governmental and federal agency debt instruments, municipal 
bonds, corporate bonds, and foreign bonds which are primarily classified as Level 1 within the fair value 
hierarchy. · · · 

Marketable Equity Securities 

Marketilile equity securities are valued based on stated market prices and at the net asset value of shares 
held by the System at year.end, which generally results in classification as Level I within the fair value 
hierarchy. . · . . · . · . . · · ·. . . . . . 

Private Investment Funds 

The System invests in private investruent funds that consist primarily of limited partnership interests in 
investment funds, which, in tum, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly comprised of equity and 
fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other less liquid investments. 
Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in. which. the System values these 
investments, which orcjinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata interest in the net assets of the 
limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each investruent manager from time to 
time, usµally n10nthly and/or qui)rterly. · 

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the 
consolidated financial .statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial 
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions. Because of inherent unc.ertainty of valuation 
·of certain private investruent funds, the estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from 
actual values, and differences could be significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its 
private inves1µlent funds at the co.nsolidated balance sheet dates are reasonable. . ' ·. . . . . . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

7. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued) 

F'_air Value on a Recurring Basis 

·The following table presents information abont the System's assets and liabilities measured at fair valne 
· on a recurring bru;is based upon the lowest level of significant input to the. valuations at September 30, 

2017:. .. . . .. . . . . . . . . . 

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,619,660 $ $ $ 11,619,660 

. U.S. federated treasury obligations .51,777,577 51,777,577 
Marketable equity securities 40,021,449 40,021,449 

. Fixed income securities 58,895,772 58,895,772 
. ;, 

$162 314 458 $-=- $ 162,314,458 

Investments measured at net asset value: 
Private investment funds 49.719,461 

Total ass.els at fair. valne $212.033.919 

Liabilities 
Interest rate swap agreements $ $ - $~24 868) $ (224,868) 

The following table presents the liabilities carried at fair valne as of September 30, 2017 that are 
Classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The table reflects gains and losses for the fifteen-

. month period ended September 30, 2017. Additionally, both observable and unobservable inputs may 
be used to determine the fair value of positions that the System has classified within the Level 3 category. 
As a result, the unrealized gains and losses for liabilities within Level 3 !Jlay include changes in fair 
value.that were attribu~ble. to both observable and unobservable inputs. . · · .. ·. · · · · · 

Balance at June30, 2016. . - - . . . - . 

·Unrealized gains (fifteen months) 

Balance at September 30, 2017 

· FairValueMeasurementUsing 
Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3) 

Interest Rate Swap Agreements 

$ (1,168~037). 

943.169 

$ (224 868) 

There were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 for the fifteen-month period ended 
· • September 30, 2017. .. · · · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifte~-lvfonth Period Ended September JO, 2017 

7. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued) 

Net Asset Value Per Share 

The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency of those assets whose fair value 
is estimated using the. net asset value per shaie practical expedient at September 30, 2017:. 

Unfunded Redemption 
Category Fair Value Commitments Frequency Notice Period 

Private investment funds $45,944,002 $ Daily/monthly 2-30 day notice 
Private investment funds 3,775,459 Quarterly/annually 30-95 day notice* 

* One fund is subject to a one year lock. After the lock period, this fund allows redemptions quarterly, 
with certain restrictions. · 

Investment Strategies 

U.S. Federated Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities 

The primary purpose of these investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable source of 
income, preserve capital, reduce the volatility of the total portfolio, and hedge against the risk of 
deflation or.protracted economic contraction. · · 

Marketable Eguitv Securities 

The primary purpose of eqnity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth of income 
with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of loss. The 
total equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to economic sector, industry, 
number of holdings and other characteristics, including style and capitalization. The System may 
employ multiple. equity .investment managers, each of whom may have distinct investment styles. 
Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be folly diversified, it is expected that the 
combined equity portfolio. will be broadly diversified. 

Private Investment Funds 

The primary purpose of private investment funds is to provide further portfolio diversification and to 
·. reduce overall portfolio volatility by investing in strategies that are Jess correlated with traditional equity 
· and. fixed income investments. Private investment funds may provide access to strategies otherwise not 
•accessible through traditional equities and fixed_ income such as derivative instruments, real. estate, 
disqesse4 debt_ and privat.e equity and debt · · · " · · ' ·· · · · 
.. ' ' .,~ . _- . . - - . . ·, 

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments 

Other financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, 
·amounts payable to. third-party payors and long-t= debt. The fair value of all financial instruments 

. other than long-term. debt _approximates their relative book values as these financial instruments have 
" short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value. See Note 5 for disclosure 

of the fair value oflong-t= debt . . . . . . . . ' . . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

8. Retirement Benefits 

A reconciliation of the changes in the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan, the Medical Center's 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement 
Income Plan projected benefit obligations and the fair value of assets for the fifteen-month period ended 
September 30, 2017, and a statement of funded status oftheplans as of September 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Changes in benefit obligations: 
Projected benefit obligations 

at beginning of period 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain (loss) 
Expenses paid 

·Projected benefit obligations 
at end of period 

Changes in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at 

beginning of period· 
Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 

· Benefits paid . 
Expenses paid . 

Fair value of plan assets.at 
end ofperio<i · · 

Funded status of plan at 
September 30, 2017 

Catholic 
Medical Center 

Pension Plan 

$ (285,649,322) 
(1,875,000) 

(13,358,019) 
7,727,640 
7,498,521 
1,455.402 

(284,200,778) 

164,351,991 
26,316,252 

(7,727,640) 
(1.455.402) 

181,485.201 

$ (102,'.Zl5 571) 

Amounts recognized in the consolidated. 
balance sheet consist of: · 

· Current liability . 
Noncurrent liability . · 

Net amount recognized .. 

. $ 
(102.715,577) 

$ (] 02 '.Z l 5.517) 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Executive Retirement 
Retirement Plan Income Plan 

$ ( 4,960,874) $ (3,087,001) 
(31,250) 

(188,099) (133,977) 
525,514 186,412 

56,173 (13,840) 
17.258 

. (4,567,286) (3,062,398) 

1,990,228 
313,303 

525,514 45,000 
(525,514) (186,412) 

(17.258) 

2.144,861 

$~,56'.Z 286) $ (21'.Z,53'.Z) 

$ ·. (406,730) $ 
... ( 4.160,556) (917,537) 

$ (4 56'.Z 28§) $ (217 53'.D 

The net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from unrestricted net assets into 
net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $3,610,397. · · · . " " - ' ' . . .. 

· • • The current p~rtio~ ~f ~rued pension costs lncluded in the above amoiints for the System amounted to 
$406, 730 at September 30, 201.7 and has be.en included in accounts payable and accrued expenses . 

. · ' ... , .. - . . . . . . . ... ·. . . 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC . 

. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

8. Retirement Benefits (Continned) 

The amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 
2017 consist of: · 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Medical Center Executive Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

Amounts recognized in the consol-
idated balance sheet - total plan: 

Unrestricted net assets: 
Net loss $(125.765.807) $ (2.404.753) $ (1.721.261) 

Net amount recognized $(125 165 8Q'[) $~ 404153) $(!,121,261) 

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components for the fifteen-month period ended 
September 30, 2017: 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Medical Center Executive Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

Service cost $ 1,875,000 $ $ 31,250 
Interest cost 13,358,019 1.88,099 133,977 
Expected return on plan assets (16,602,547) (196,994) 
Amortization of actuarial loss 3,818,773 180.554 80 864 

Net periodic pension cost $ 2 442 245 $ 368 653 $ 42 Q27 

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in unrestricted net assets for the fifteen­
month period ended September 30, 2017 consist of: 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories. 

Medical Center Executive Retirement . 
Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

Net gain $ (17,212,226) $ (56,173) $ (102,469) 
Amortization of actuarial loss (3.818.773) (180.554) . (80.864) 

Net ampunt recognized $ (2] Q3Q 222) $ ~3612'[) $ (183 333) 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

· Fifteen~Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

8. Retirement Benefits {Continued) 

The investments of the plans are comprised of the following at September 30, 2017: 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Target Medical Center Executive ·Retirement 
Allocation Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

Marketable equity 
securities 70.0% 68.2% 0.0% 68.2% 

Fixed income securities 20.0 21.8 0.0 21.8 
Other 10.0 10.0 0.0 10,0 

100.0%. · lillLll% 00% · .lillLll% 

The assumption for the long-term rate of return on plan assets bas been determined by reflecting 
expectations regarding future.rates of return for the investment portfolio, with consideration given to the 
distribution of investments by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual asset class. 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan obligations at 
September 30, 2017 are as follows: · · · · · 

. . ' '· . 

Discount rate 
Rate of COlllpensation increase 

Catholic 
Medical Center 

Pension Plan 

3.79% 
NIA 

Pre-1987 
Supplemental 

Executive 
Retirement Plan 

3.22% 
NIA 

New Hampshire 
Medical Laboratories 

Retirement 
Income Plan 

3.52% 
.. NIA 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension ·plan net periodic 
benefircosts for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017 are as follows: 

- . . . . . . . ' . . 

. Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 
Expected long-t= return 

on plan assets 

Catholic 
. Medical center 

Pension Plan 

Pre-1987 
Supplemental 

Executive 
· Retirement Plan 

3.69%* I 4.16%** 2.94%* I 3.53%** 
.. NIA . .. NIA 

7.50% NIA 

• For the period July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 
** For the period)anuary 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017 : 
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New Hampshire 
Medical Laboratories 

. Retirement 
Income Plan 

· 3.31%*I3.86%** 
·.NIA 

7.50% 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

8. Retirement Benefits (Continned) 

The expected employer contributions for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 are not expected to 
be significant. 

The benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid for the years 
ending September 30 are as follows: 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Medical Center Executive Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

2018 $ 7,546,821 $ 413,226 $175,144 
2019 8,424,072 402,760 182,048 
2020 9,243,714 391,690 191,865 
2021 9,993,575 379,983 198,282 
2022 10,825,867 367,603 198,134 
2023 -2027 66,073,687 1,625,955 969,103 

The System contributed $525,514 and $45,000 to the Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
and the New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement Income Plan, respectively, for the fifteen­
month period ended September 30, 2017. No contributions were made to the Catholic Medical Center 
Pension Plan for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017. The System plans to make any 
necessary contributions during the upcoming fiscal 2018 year to ensure the plans continue to be 
adequately funded given the current market conditions. 

The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about the financial assets of the above 
plans measured at fair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest. level of significant input 
valuation as ofSepte!Ilber 3Q, 2017: ' · · . · · 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Mruketable equity securities 
Fixed income securities 

Investments measured at net asset value: 
· Private investment funds 

Total assets at fair value 

Level 1 

$ 2,809,453 
50,254,753 
40.034,145 

Level 2 Level 3 

$ - $ -

$93 098 351 . $ - . 
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$ 2,809,453 
50,254,753 
40.034.145 

93,098,351 
·, ._· 

90.531,711 

$183 630 062 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

9. Community Benefits 

The System rendered charity care in accordance with its formal charity care policy, which, at established 
charges, amounted to $21,425,474 for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017. Also, the 
System provides community service programs, without charge, such as the Medication Assistance 
Program, Community Education and Wellness, Patient Transport, and the Parish Nurse Program. The 
costs of providing these programs amounted to $1,170,700 for the fifteen-month period ended 
September 30, 2017. 

10. Functional Emenses 

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location including 
inpatient, outpatient and emergency care. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows 
for the fifteen-month period ended September 30, 2017: . . · · · · . 

Health care services 
General and administrative 

11. Concentration of Credit Risk 

$414,608,323 
107,531,993 

$522140316 

The System grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are 
insured under third-party pay or agreements. The nrix of receivables from patients and third-party pay ors 
is as follows at September 30, 2017: 

Medicare 
Medicaid 
Commercial insurance and other 
Patients (self pay) 
Anthem Blue Cross 

12. Endowments 

43% 
12 
23 

8 
14 

In July 2008, the State of New Hampshire enacted a version ofUPMIF A (the Act). The new law, which 
had an effective date of July 1, 2008, eliminates the historical dollar threshold and establishes prudent 
spending guidelines that consider both the duration and preservation of the fund. As a result of this 
enactment, subject to the donor's intent as expre5sed in a gift agreement or similar document, a New 

· .Hampshire charitable organization may now spend the principal and income of an endowmeJ\l fund, 
· even from an .underwater fund, after considering the factors listed in the Act · · · 

·.,-. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 20.17 

12. Endowments (Continued) 

At September 30, 201 7, the ~ndowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the following: 

Temporarily Permanently 
· Unrestricted Restricted · · Restricted 

Net Assets Net Assets . NetAssets Total 

Donor-restricted funds $ $ 924,871 $8,801,136 $ 9,726,007 
Board-designated funds 102,045,292 102.045.292 

Total funds $!Q2 Q4S 222 $ 224 871 $8 8Ql 136 $] l l,171,222 

Changes in endowment net assets consisted_ of the following for the fifteen-month period ended 
September 30, 2017: · · ·. · 

. Balance atJune 30, 2016 

Investment return: 
Investment income 
~et appreciation (realized 

and unrealized) 
. ·Total investment gain 

Contnbutions 
Appropriation for operations 
Appropri~tion for capital 

Balance at September 30, 2017 

Temporarily Pen:i:!anently 
Umestricted Restricted Restricted 
Net Assets 

$ 89,078,010 

1,580,962 

11,296,021 
12,876,983 

90 299 

$1Q2 045 222 

Net Assets Net Assets 

$ 395,655 $7,844,432 $ 97,318,097 

2,784 

. 2,784 

. 721,906 
(105,175) 

(90.299) 

$ 224 87] 

54,487 

839,129 
. 893,616 

U4,032 
(50,944) 

$8 80L136 

1,638,233 

12,135,150 
13,773,383 

835,938 
(15~,119) 

$111 771 292 

From time to time, the fair. value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor requires the System to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. 
· There were no such ~eficiencies as. of September 3 0, 2017. ·· · .. · · · · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

13. Investments in Joint Ventnres 

AAS has a 50% ownership interest in the Bedford Ambulatory Surgical Center. ·AAS accounts for its 
investment in this joint venture under the equity method. Selected financial information relating to this 
entity at September 30, 2017 is not shown as _such amounts are not significant .to the consolidated 
financial statements. . · · · · · · · · · 

The Medical Center, along with four other participating hospitals and Tufts Health Plan, formed Tufts 
Health Freedom Plan (TIIFP), a joint venture. THFP is a health insurance company which began 
operations as of January 1, 2016. The Medical Center has an approximate 10% ownership interest in 
this joint venture. · 

14. Commitments and Contingencies 
·· .. · . - ·.'. 

Litigation 

Various legal claims, generally incidental to the conduct of normal business, are pending or have been 
threatened against the System. The System intends to defend vigorously against these claims. While 

·ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is presently indeterminable, it is managemenfs 
opinion that the ultimate resolution pf these claims will not have a material. adverse effect on the financial 
conditi<m of the System. · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Regulatory 

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local 
governments. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning 
possible violations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could 
result in the.imposition of significant fines and penalties as well as significant repayments for patient 
services previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations are subject to government review 
and interpretations as well as regulatory actions unkn_own, or unasserted at this time, · 
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Board of Trustees 
CMC Healthcare System, Inc. 

MAINE I MASSACHUSEITS I NEW HAMPSHIRE 

800.2.\4.74441 www.bnncpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
ON OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Our audit wa's conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather 
than to present the financial positiou and results of operations of the individual entities and is not a required 
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such inforination is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated :tillancial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procediires 
applied in the audit of the consolid.ated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. 

&r~fNT L\-t 
Manchester, New Hampshire 
February 13, 2018 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

September 30, 2017 

ASSETS 

Alliance CMC 
: . Catholic Physician Am bu- Ancillary Alliance Doctors Saint 

· ··Medical Practice Alliance Alliance latory Health Health Medical Peter's Elimi-
. Center · 'Associates . . Entemrises ··· Resources Services 

·. cU'ITent aSsets: . 
Services Services Association 'Home nations Consolidated 

Cash and cash'equiValents . $ 74,375.121 $ 446,050 $ 1,826,925 $ 14,958 $ 313,934 $ $ 257,283 $ 74,677 $ 735,624 $ $ 78,044,572 
. Short-term investments . 27,221,800 27,221,800 
·Accounts receivable, net . . 48,382,452 1,115,725 49,498,177 
Inventories .... 3,406,820 3,406,820 

. ·. Other current assets 10,811,607 (33,989) 400,698 44 171 --- Ll00,440 ___M1Q 50,925 -- 12,376.492 

'Total current assets· 164,197,800 412,061 2,227,623 59,129 313,934 2,473,448 77,317 786,549 170,547,861 

·. PrOperty, pl~nt and equipment, net 88,995,604 9,211,951 14,300,636 152,648 1,216,444 113,877,283 

· --Other assets: 
Intangible nssets'and other 10,565,281 6,018,029 16,583,310 

. -Assets whose use is limited: 
Pension and insurance obligations 16,777,534 16,777,534 
Board designated and donor restricted 

investments and restricted grants . 109,089,743 870 7,464,907 116,555,520 
Held by trustee under revenue 

bond agreements 51.479.065 --- --- -- 51,479.065 

111,346,342 870 --- --- Z.464,907 -- 184,812,119 

. . Total assets. $~1 105 027 $ 412 231 '$1143257~ $1435216~ $6 331 263 $~ $2 626 Q2~ s...:u,m $2167 2QQ $~ $485 82Q 573 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Alliance CMC 
.. Catholic Physician Ambu- Ancillary Alliance Doctors Saint 
.Medical ."Practice ·Alliance Alliance latory Health Health Medical Peters Elimi-
Center Associates· Enternrises Resources Services Services Services Association Home nations ConsOiidated 

CU!rellt liabilities: · ··· .. 

, Accounts payable atid aCcnied exp.ens~ , : :: $ 34,262,471 $ 58,933 $ 91,103 $ 181,248 $ 915 $ $1,437,681 $ 169 $ 69,093 $ $ 36,101,613 
. ·Accrued salaries, wages and 

related accounts 16,806,732 3,137,621 167,218 20,lll,571 
·. Ainounts payable to third-party payors 14,351,322 14,351,322 

· : Due to (from) affiliates 1,405,890 (1,327,400) : (7,138) (49,804) 8,823 (30,349) (22) 
Current portion of long-term debt ·4.032,434 8,082.093 --- --- 12114 527 

Total current liabilities 70,858,849 1,869,154 8,166,058 131,444 915 1,446,504 (30,180) 236,289 82,679,033 

· : Accnied pension and other 
liabilities, less current portion .127,995,993 7,395,522 1,483,033 70,509 392,073 137,337,130 

Long.term debt, less Current portion 119.689,425 (4,033) --- --- -- ll9 685 392 

Total liabilities· 318,544,267 9,264,676 9,645,058 201,953 915 1,838,577 (30,180) 236,289 339,701,555 

·.Net assets (deficit): 
Unrestricted 112,834,753 (8,851,745) 1,794,516 14,157,812 6,331,048 787,519 107,497 9,231,6ll 136,393,0ll 

· Temporarily restricted · 924,871 924,871 
·Permanently restricted 8,801.136 --- --- -- 8 801.136 

Total net assets (deficit) ,"122,560,260 (8,851,745) 1,794,516 14152812 6,331,048 --- 287,512 102.497 2,231,611 -- 146,112 018 

Total liabilities and net assets . $HI 105 027 $ 41Z 231 . $11 432 574 $14,352.725. $6 331 263 $ - $2 626 02!i $~ $2 467 20Q $~ S~B!i 820,573 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

Fifteen-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 

Alliance CMC 
· Catholic Physician Ambu- Ancillary Alliance Doctors Saint 
·Medical Practice . Alliance Alliance latory Health Health Medical Peter's Elimi-

· Net patJent servic~ reVenues, net of 
Center Associates .Entemrises Resources Services Services Services Association Home ~ Consolidated 

· contractual allowances and discounts $510,501,749 $ $ $ $ $ 21,625 $19,734,657 $ $ $ $ 530,258,031 
Provision for doubtful accounts 

... 
(20,32~,52§) ____bQfil (1,816,152) (22,167,913) ---

Net patient service revenues less 
:provision for doubtful accounts 490,178,223 23,690 17,888,205 508,090,118 

. Other revenue 14,057,731 28,215,793 2,556,487 924,256 2,768,872 716,478 183,929 3,593,808 (31,024,800) 21,992,554 
· Disproportionate share funding : I 6, !02,2BQ 16 !02,2BQ 

Total revenues 520,338,234 28,215,793 2,556,487 924,256 2,768,872 23,690 18,604,683 183,929 3,593,808 (31,024,800) 546,184,952 

· Expenses: 
· .. Salaries, wages and· fringe benefits · 242,508,428 60,356,707 49,097 18,642,826 3,483,295 (27,579,821) 297,460,532 

Supplies and other · 172,086,487 2,559,999 998,599 903,715 400 7,186,931 151,464 362,909 (3,444,979) 180,805,525 
·New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement taX . . 23,129,419 23,129,419 
Depreciation and amortization .. 16,503,495 464,356 531,644 55,934 251,897 17,807,326 

. Interest .·· 2,239,4Z3 628,041 --- 2,937,514 
Total expenses . 456,467,302 62,916,706 2,210,093 1,435,359 400 --- 25,885,621 151.464 ~.098,101 (3!.Q24,800) 522 H0,316 

!~·Come (loss) from op~ations .. 63,870,932 ( 34, 700,913) 346,394 (511,103) 2,768,472 23,690 (7,281,008) 32,465 (504,293) 24,044,636 

.. Nonoperating gains (losses): 
Investment income .. 2,382,404 520,700 30 1,503 373,463 3,278,100 

' Net realized gains (losses) on 
sale of investments . 3,411,638 (30,159) 3,381,479 

. 'Loss on extinguislunent of debt . (105,628) (105,628) 
Unrestricted contributions . 650,656 650,656 

· Development costs (510,487) (510,487) 
Other nonoperating loss · (3Zl,400) (64,234) --- --- (435,634) 

Total nonoperating gains, net 5,451.183 456 466 30. l 503 --- --- 343,304 6,258 486 

·.Excess (deficiency) ofi-evenues 
. over expenses . 69,328,115 (34,700,913) 802,860 (511,073) 2,769,975 23,690 (7,281,008) 32,465 (160,989) 30,303,122 

: tJniealized appreciatioll (d~preciation) 
· . on investments 9,431,144 (246,430) 9,184,714 
-~hange in fair value Of interest rate 
· .. swap agreement 422,469 422,469 

·· Assets released from restriction 
used for capital 

· · Pension-related challges other than 
90,299 90,299 

net periodic pension cost .. 11,518,425 9,749,301 183,333 21,451,059 
: Net transfers (to) from affiliates · (4Z 692,785) 34,475.SOO 45000 9,751.000 (2,700,000) (270,099) 6,400,000 --- 0,616) 

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets . $ 43 090 667 $ 9 523 888 $1 031 193 $9 239 927 $ 69 975 $(246 409) $ (881 008) $~ $ <4Q9 035) $ $ 61 451 663 
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June 1?2016 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.o; BOX 1896 

CONCORD, !>IH 03302'1806 

603-271-5610 ·FAX: 603-271-5639 
TDD Acces.s: l-800'735-2964 

William L. ·Wreml· 
·conunissiODer 

G&·-G 
' 

Pending_· -----'------" 

Her Excellency, 'Gov;,rnor Margaret Wood H.assan 
· and the Honorable Executive Councii 

Ap[JrdVed -4-0...lE.. '29 '. °2v\6 

l~eiii #_ * <::51+ p 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03:i01 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the NH Department of corrections to enter into a contract with Catholic Medic_al Cente.r ~VC# I 77240), 
100 McGregor Street; Manchester, NH 03102, in the amount· of $1,900,000.00, for the provision of Inpatient & 
()utpatient 'Jiospital/MediCal .Services !or ihe Concord and Southern; NH areas for the NH Department of 
Corrections effective for the period beginnin~ July I, 2016 or upon Governor and Exectitive Counci'I approval, 
whichever'is later, through June 3b, '2018, with ·an option to renew for·one (I) additional ,period of up to two ('.2) 
years subject.to Governor and Executive Council approval. 1.00% Qeneral Fun,Is. 

Funds for this contr_act are availabl~ in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46c46-465010-823.4-101-500729; ·as follows 
with the authority· to adjust encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years through the Budget Office, ·if needed 
and justified. Funding for SFY.2018 are contiiigent upon the availability and coniinued appropriation of funds. 

I Catholic Medical Center 

!Account 'Description. SFY 17 SFY 18 Total 

02-46-46-4650 I 0-8234-101,500729 Medical - Dental 950,000.00 950,000.00 1;900,000.00 

I Total Contract Amo wit \$ 1,900.000.00 I 

EXPLANATION 

This contract is for the provision of Inpatient & Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services for inmates of the Concord 
Area consisting of the NH State Prison for l'v!en (NHSP-M), Secure Psyc_hiatric U!!it (SPU), .Residential Treatment 
Unit and Communi.ty Corrections of Concord, NH and the Southern areas consisting of the NH Correctional 
Facility for Women (NHCF-W), Goffstown, NH and Community Corrections, Manchester, NH. 

The NH Department of Corrections utilizes hospital services for short-term medical treatment for inmates having 
an acute illness or injµl)' that is beyond the scope of primary care services provided by the current medical staff 
within the prison facility. The hospital contract includes inpatient surge!)', medical services and outpatient 
procedure_s such· as·ambulatol)' surge!)', diagnostic and emergency services. 

Promoting Public Safety Uirough Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboniti_On and AcCountabilify 
· Page I of2 



The RFP was posted on the NH Department of Corrections website: http://www.nh.gov.nhdoc/business/rfu.html 
for six (6) consecutive weeks and notified four (4) potential vendors of the RFP posting. As a result of the 
issuance of the RFP, one (I) potential vendor responded by submitting their proposal for the Concord and 
Southern areas. · After the review of the proposals, in aci:ordance with the RFP Terms and Conditions, the NH 
Department of Corrections awarded the contract to Catholic Medical Center in the amount of $1,900,000.00 

This ·RFP was scored utilizing a consensus methodology by a five (5) person evaluation committee for the 
purposes of preserving the privacy of the evaluators. The evaluation committee consisted of NH Department of 
Corrections employees: Helen Hanks, Assistant Commissioner; Paula Mattis, Non-Medical Director, Division of 
Medical & Forensic Services; Bernadette Campbell, Deputy Director, Division of Medical & Forensic Services; 
Joyce Leeka, Medical Operations Administrator, Division of Medical & Forensic Services and Jennifer Lind, 
Contract & Grant Administrator, Division of Administration. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Iv~ iilhlm L. Wrenn 
Commissioner 

Promoting Public Safety through Integrity, Rcspcct, Professionalism. Collaboration and Accountability 
' Page2 of2 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE· 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.O. BOX 1806 

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806 

803-271-0610 FAX: 603-271-0639 
TDD Accesa: 1-800-735-2964 

Inpatient and 01,1tpatient Hospital/Medical Services 
RFP Bid Evaluation and Summary 

NHDOC 16-01-GFMED 

Proposal Receipt and Reyiew: 

William L Wrenn 
Commissioner 

Helen Hanks Assistant 
Commissioner 

• Proposals will be reviewed to initially detennine if minimum submission requirements have been met The review 
will verify that the proposal was received before the date and time specified, with the correct number of copies, the 
presence of all required signatures, and that the proposal is sufficiently responsive to the needs outlined in the RFP to 
permit a complete evaluation. A proposal that fails to satisfy either submission requirements or minimum standard 
may be rejected without funher consideration and not included in the evaluation process. 

• The Department will select a group of personnel to act as an evaluation team. Upon receipt, the proposal infonnation 
will be disclosed to the evaluation committee members only. Proposal(s) will not be publicly opened. 

• The Department reserves the right to waive any irregularities, minor deficiencies and infonnalities that it considers.not 
material to the proposal. 

• The Department may cancel the procurement and make no award, if that is detennined to be in the State's best interest. 

Proposal Evaluation Criteria: 

• Proposal(s) will be evaluated and considered with regard to the solution and services proposed, estimated cost, claims 
processing, physician services, other services at discounted rate, financial statements/stability and no other costs by 
Vendor. Awards will be made to the responsive Vendor(s) whose proposals are deemed to be the most advantageous 
to the State, taking into consideration all evaluation factors ofNHDOC RFP 16-01 RFP. 

a. Total Estimated Cost - 720 points 
b. Claims Processing - 30 points 
c. Physician Services - I SO points 
d Other Services at Discounted Rate - SO points 
e. Financial Statements/Stability - 40 points 
f. No Other Costs by Vendor - I 0 points 

EValuation Team Members: 
a. Helen Hanlcs, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of Corrections; 
b. Paula Mattis, Non-)'vledical Director, Division of Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections; 
c. Bernadette Campbell, BS, PT, Deputy Director, Division of Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of 

Corrections; 
d. Joyce Leeka, Medical Operations Administrator, Division of Medical & Forensic Services, NH Dep3rtment of 

Corrections; and 
e. Jennifer Lind, Contract & Grant Administrator, Division of Administration, NH Department of Corrections. 

Promoting Public Safely through Integrity, Respect, Profcsslonallsm, Collaboradon ond Accountability 

State of NH, Depalllnenl o/CorreC//ons 
Division of Medical & Forensic Services 

RFP 16-01-GFMED, dosing date: S/1312016 



Respondents: 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION: 
P.O: B.OX 1806 

CONCORI), NH 0330;!-l.80.6 

603-271-5610 FAX: 603-271-5639 
TDP Access: 1-800-735-2964 

Inpatient atu!. Outpatient Hospital/Medical S~rvices 
.RFP Scoring Matr\x 

NHDOC 16•0l•GFMED 

• Catholic Medical Center, lOOMcGregor Street, Manchester, NH· 03102 

Scoring Matrix Criteria: 

William L. Wrenn 
cOnllniSsiOn:er 

Helen Hatiks 
Assistant CommiSsioner 

• Proposals wer~ evaluated based on ihe proven ability ofihe respondents to satisfy the provisions set forth in 
:ihe Scope cif Services in the most cost-effective mariner. 

1. Ccist ~ 720 points 
2, Claims Processing - 30 points 
3. Physician Services - 150 p'oints 
4. Othe{Services at Discountei:! Rate -50 points 
5. Financial Stability -40 points 
6. No Other Costs. by Vendor~ I 0 points 

e 

Evaluation Criteria 

Total Estimated Cost 
Claims Processin 
Ph sician Services 
Other Services at Discounted Rate 
Financial. Stabili 

Total Score 

. I 

RFP Weight Catholic Meilical Center 
Point Value 

720 685 
30 30 
150 150 
50 50 
40 40 
IO JO 

1000 965 

Contract Award: Catholic Medical Center, 100 McGregor Street, Manchester; NH 03102 

Pro!'loti_ng Public Snfety through Jnteg.rity, Rcspccr, Professionalism; Collaboratton and Accountabilit:Y 

State of NH, Department oj Corrections 
Division of Medical & ForenslcSe,..,/ces 

RFP 16-01-GFMED, closing date: S/lJ/2016 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.O. BOX 1806 

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806 

603-271-5610 FAX: 603-271-5639 
TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 

Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services 
RFP Evaluation Committee Member Qualifications 

NHDOC 16-01-GFMED 

Helen Hanks. MM. Assistant Commissioner: 

WllllamL. Wrenn 
Commissioner 

Helen· Hanks 
Assistant Commissioner 

Mrs. Hanks has served as the Assistant Commissioner since October I, 2014 prior to this appointment she was the Director of 
the Medical & Forensic Sel'Vices Division starting in 2011. Hanlcs has made her career specific to the area of mental health 
and health care delivery since I 998 working with community mental health centers and Managed Behavioral Care 
orgal\izations prior to her employment at the NH Department of Corrections. She has broad and specific knowledge of the. 
correctional mental health system and behavioral health system, Laaman consent decree and Holliday Court Order, and the 
special needs of seriously mentally ill patients and inmates confined in the SPU, R 11J and prison environments. Mrs. Hanks 
has a Bachelor of Science in Psychology from Plymouth State College with a Pre-Law minor and a Master of Management in 
Healthcare from Brandeis University. 

Paula Mattis, Non-Medical Director, Division of Medical & Forensic Services: 

Ms. Mattis recently joined the NH Department of Corrections serving as the Non-Medical Director, Division of Medical & 
Forensic Services. Her professional history includes seven years as Administrator of Community Integration at the State of 
New Hampshire, New Hampshire Hospital, four years as Chier" Operating Officer and three years as Acting CEO. Prior to 
this appointment, Ms. Mattis was President and Chief Executive Officer of the Animal Rescue League of New Hampshire. 
Ms. Mattis received her Bachelor of Arts degree with honors in Psychology (major) and Sociology (minor) from the 
Uni.versity of Texas and a Master's of Social Work, specializing in Community Mental Health from the University of Illinois. 

Bernadette Campbell, BS, PT. Deputy Director. Division of Medical & Forensic Services: 

Ms. Campbell is the Deputy Director for the Division of Medical&; Forensic Services for the NH Department of Corrections. 
In this capacity, Ms. Campbell's role is to administer and supervise allied health services for the Division of Medical & 
Forensic Services and is responsible to ensure public and institutional safety for all sites through staff and contract 
monitoring and evaluation. Ms. Campbell is a graduate ofUMass Lowell and has involvement with the Department for over 
twenty-eight years, most recently in the capacity of Director of Rehabilitation Services. Ms. Campbell's past experience has 
included ownership ofa physical therapy clinic as well as vast acute care hospital experience. 

Joyce Leeka. RIDA. Medical Ooerations Administrator, Division of Medical & Forensic Services: 

Ms. Leeka is the Operations Administrator for the Medical/Forensic Services Division for the NH Department of Corrections. 
In this capacity Ms. Leeka is the subject matter expert for Health Information Management. This includes medical privacy 
(HIPAA), record management, Electronic Health Records and medical coding and billing to include the new ICD-10-CM 
system. Ms. Leeka is the Utilization Management Administrator for medical ancillary services and the Division's Contract 
Administrator. Ms. Leeka is a graduate of the University of Central Florida and has held positions of HIM Director, QI/UM 

Promoting Public Safely through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration ind Accountability 

State of NH, Deptutmenl of Corrections 
DMslon of Medicsl & Forensic Suvlcu 

RFP 16-01-GFMED, dosing dote: 5R1!2016 



Director and UM Coordinator in a variety of hospitals on both the east and west coasts. Ms. Leeka has also worked as a 
consultant in the areas of QI and Iong-tenn care. Ms. l;eeka has past experience teaching ICD-9 coding, medical tenninology 
to business office staff, DRG orientation to nursing staff and coordinated hospital-wide discharge planning activities. 

Jennifer Lind. MBA, CMA. Contract/Grant Administrator, Division of Administration: 

Ms. Lind has served as the Contract/Grant Administrator since 20 IO. Ms. Lind is responsible for the development of the 
Department's request for proposals (RFPs), contracts and grants management. Ms. Lind's current responsibilities include all 
aspects of the RFP delivery from project management, data collection, drafting and cross function collaboration; procurement 
functions and management of the Department's medical, programmatic and maintenance contracts and provides managerial 
oversight to the Grant Division for the Department. Prior to Ms. Lind's promotion to the ContractlGrant Administrator, she 
held the Program Specialist IV, Contract Specialist position and the Grant Program Coordinator position of the Department. 
Prior to her employment with the Department, Ms. Lind held the position of Assistant Grants Administrator at the 
Community College System of New Hampshire for ten years. Ms. Lind received her Bachelors of Science in Accounting 
from Franklin Pierce College and a Master's of Management with a Healthcare Administration ·concentration from New 
England College. Ms. Lind has supplemented her education from prior experience in the pre-hospital care setting and has 
maintained her Certified Medical Assistant license since 1998. 

Promoting Public ~fel)' through Integrity, Respect, Professlonallsm, C0Uabor1tlon and Accountablllcy 

Statt of NH, Dq"at1men1 of Cornellons 
Division ofM"6ca/ & FortnSlc Smlcts 
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.O. BOX 1806 

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806 

603-271-6610 FAX: 603-271-6639 
TDD Access: 1-8011-736-2964 

William L. Wrenn 
Commissioner 

Helen Hanks 
.ASillstant Commissioner 

Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services 
Bidders List 

NHDOC RFP 16-01-GFMED 

Catholic Medical Center 
Andrea Rathbon, 
Director of Managed Care & Accountable Care 

Network 
100 McGregor Street 
Manchester, NH 03102 
(o) 603-663-6383 
(e) arathbon@cmc-nh.org 
(w} https://www.catholicmedicalcenter.org 

Catholic Medical Center 
Thomas Coate, 
Director, Managed Care Contracting and Provider 

Analytics 
100 McGregor Street 
Manchester, NH 03102 
(o) 603-663-6383 
( e) tcoate@cmc-nh.org 
(w} https://www.catholicmedicalcenter.org 

Concord Hospital 
Scott Sloane 
VP Finance 
250 Pleasant Street 
Concord, NH 03301 
(o) 603-230-6059. 
( e) ssloane@crhc.org 
(w) http://www.concordhospital.org 

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center 
Lynn Guillette 
Director of Value-Based Reimbursement Models, 

Finance 
One Medical Center Drive 
Lebanon, NH 03756 
(o) 603-653-1255 
(e) lvnn.m.guillette@hitchcock.org 
(w) http://www.dartmouth-hitchcock.ors 

Elliot Hospital 
Eva Martel 
Director of Managed Care 
One Elliot Way , 
Manchester, NH 03103 
(o) 603-663-6181 
( e) emartel@elliot-hs.org 
(w) http://elliothospital.org/websjte 

Promoting Public Safety tbrougb Integrity, RHpec~ ProfesslooallJm, Collaboration sod Accountablllty 

StaJt of NH, Dep/ll117ltlll o/CorrtcJ/ons 
Division o/Mtdica/ & Forensic Strvlcu 

RFP 16-01-GFMED, doslngdaJe: OS/1312016 



FORM NUMBER p.37 (version 518115) 

~: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must 
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract 

AGREEMENT 
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

I. IDENTIFICATION. 
I.I State Agency Name 

NH D~partment of Corrections 
1.3 Contractor Name 

I .S Contractor Phone 
Number 

ltb3-'1&3-6383 

1.6 Account Number 
02-46-46-465010 
8234-101-500729 

1.9 Contracting Officer for_ State Agency 

William L. Wrenn, Commissioner 
1.11 

1.2 State Agency Address 

105 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301 
1.4 Contractor Address 

too/Vie &,~(/or Sf., Manchsfer lvH 
" ()3/0 2 

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation 

June 30, 2018 $ 1,900,000.00 
1. fO State Agency Telephone Number 

603-271-5601 
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory 

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily 
n whose name is signed in block I.I I, and acknowledged that Sihe executed this document in the capacity 

William L. Wrenn, Commissioner 
Division of Personnel (if applicable) 

By: Director, On: 

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) 

On: C./ ;!)/! fo 

! .18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable) 

B JUN 2 9 2018 
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting 
lhrough the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages 
contractor identified in block l .3 ("Contractor") to.perform, 
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or 
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached 
EXHIBIT A which Is incorporated herein by reference 
("Services''). 

J, EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if 
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties 
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor 
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in 
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case 
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the 
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 
1.14 ("Effective Date''). 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the 
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior 
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not 
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the 
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay 
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date 
specified in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, 
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are 
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation 
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any 
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated 
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of 
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold 
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement Immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State 
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account 
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that 
Account are reduced or unavailable. 

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of 
payment are identified and more particularly described in 
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference. 
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the 
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete 
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State 
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract 
price. · 

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts 
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement 
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oflaw. 
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in 
no event shall the total of all payments authoriz.ed, or actually 
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 
1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In COMection with the perfonnance of the Services, the 
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations, 
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities 
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Conb'actor, 
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity 
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary 
aids and services to ensure that persons with coinmunication 
disabilities, Including vision, hearing and speech, can 
communicate with, receive infonnation from, and convey 
infonnation to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. . 
6.2 During the tenn of this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
not discriminate against employees or applicants for 
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, 
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take 
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. 
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the 
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all-the 
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal · 
Employment Opportunity''), as supplemented by the 
regulations of the United States Department of Labor ( 41 
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines 
as the State ofNew Hampshire or the United States issue to 
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to 
permit the State or United States access to any of the 
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the pUrpose of 
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, 
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all 
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor 
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be 
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly 
licepsed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable 
laws. 
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized In writing, during the term of 
this Agreement, and for a period ofsix(6) months after the 
Completion Date In block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, 
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, finn or 
corporation with whom It is engaged in a combined effort to 
perfonn the Services to hire, any person who ls a State 
employee or official, who is materially involved in the 
procurement, administration or perfonnance of this 
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or 
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event· 
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, 
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State. 

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. 
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the 
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder 
("Event ofDefault"): 
8.1. l failure to perfonn the Services satisfactorily or on 
schedule; 
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or 
8.1.3 failure to perfonn any other covenan' tenn or condition 
of this Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defaul' the State 
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following acdons: 
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) 
days from the date of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is 
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreemen' effective two 
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice oftennination; 
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event 
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the 
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State 
detennines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 
shall never be paid to the Contractor; 
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to 
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any 
Event of Default; and/or 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its 
remedies et law or in equity, or both. 

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ 
PRESERVATION. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all 
infonnation and things developed or obtained during the 
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this 
Agreemen' including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, 
files, fonnulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, 
graphic representations, computer programs, computer 
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, 
all whether finished or unfinished. 
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from 
the State or purchased ·with funds provided for that purpose 
under this Agreemen' shall be the property of the State, and 
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon 
tennination of this Agreement for any reason. 
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data 
requires prior written approval of the State. 

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early tennination of 
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting 
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of 
tennlnation, a report (''Tennination Report") describing in 
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to 
and including the date of termination. The fonn, subject 
matter, conten' and number of copies of the Termination 
Report.shall be Identical to those of any Final Report 
described In the attached EXHIBIT A. 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In 
the perfonnance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all 
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor 
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its 
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to 
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation 
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and 
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be 
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written 
notice and consent of the State. 

13. INDEMNIFlCATION. The Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and 
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the 
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers 
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, 
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be 
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity' is hereby 
reserved to the State. This covenant In paragraph 13 shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. INSURANCE. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, Bl its sole expense, obtain and 
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or 
assi8nee to obtain and maintain in force, the following 
insurance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all 
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts 
ofnot less than $1,000,000per occurrenee and $2,000,000 
aggregate ; and 
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all 
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property; 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall 
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the 
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of 
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New 
Hampshire. 
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the <;:ontracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certlficate(s) 
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of 
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this 
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of 
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of 
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
IS. I By signing this agreemen~ the Contractor agrees, 
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with 
or exempt from, the requirements ofN .H. RSA chapter 281-A 
("Worlrers' Compensation'~. 
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the 
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall 
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure 
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in 
connection with activities which the person proposes to 
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall 
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 
or her successor, proofofWorkers' Compensation in the 
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any 
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be 
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation 
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or 
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might 
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers' 
Compensation laws in connection with the perfonnance of the 
Services under this Agreement 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to 
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall 
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of 
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express 
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a 
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the 
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default 
on the part of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party 
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the 
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United 
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses 
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. 

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, 
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such 
amendmen~ waiver or discharge by the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no 

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to 
State law, rule or policy, 

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and 
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement 
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual 
Intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or 
in favor of any party. 

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to 
· benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be 

construed to confer any such benefiL 

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement 
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained 
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or 
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the 
provisions of this Agreement 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set 
forth In the att'ached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by 
reference. · 

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of 
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction lo 
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect · 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemen~ which may 
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
Agreements and understandings relating hereto. 
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SECTION B: Scope or Services, Exhibit A 

1. Description or Services: 

Scope of Services 
Exhibit A 

The Contractor shall provide Inpatient and Outpatient HospitaVMedical Services and professional 
medical services for all services as specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, for each regional area 
proposal submission for the NH Department of Corrections to Include but not limited to: 
I. I. Inpatient Hospital Services: 

1.1.1. The NH Department of Corrections is seeking proposals for inpatient services to be 
reimbursed on a ... Diagnosis Related Group" (ORO) methodology. Specifically, the 
Contractor is asked to acknowledge the payment methodology and provide a DRG 
coefficient for evaluation. Such payment methodology will allow recognition of 
case mix and still provide an all inclusive rate for inpatient Hospital Services. 

1.1.2. In developing ihe DRG rate, the Contractor should review the provisions of 
amended RSA 623-C:2 enacted as of July I, 2013 requiring hospitals providing 
inpatient services to this population to accept fees not greater than one hundred ten 
percent (110%) of the Medicare allowable rate. 

1.1.3. NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment on the 
competitiveness of the DRG coefficient provided as it relates to RSA 623-C:2, I 
and II, private commercial payment and other public sources of third party 
payment. 

1.1.4. If the NH Department of Corrections inmate's (patient's) medical care is covered 
by Medicaid, pursuant to RSA IS!, or the licensed health care provider, or both, 
shall be paid at the NH Medicaid rate for services provided. The NH Department 
of Corrections will assist in applying for this reimbursement as allowed by rules 
and regulations of the NH Medicaid program· in effect on the date of service. 

1.1.S. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to retrospectively audit any 
and all claims submitted for conformance to the contracted rate and medically 
appropriate claim designation, i.e. inpatient, outpatient, emergency or observation 
status. Such auditing function may be performed by employees of the Department, 
NH Administrative Services, Health and Human Services or contracted service. 
The Contractor shall be expected to provide ltemiz.ed copies of invoices and access 
to clinical records substantiating billing status. 

1.1.6. Observation stays shall be defined as (twenty-three point fifty-nine) 23.59 hours or 
less and any hospital stay of greater value will be billed as inpatient status. 

1.2. Emeraency Services: 
1.2.1. Indicate the Contractor's acceptable reimbursement level for Emergency Services 

as a percentage discount off the hospital bllled charge. At a minimum, the 
Contractor shall adhere to the requirements of the amended RSA 623-C:2 requiring 
that the hospital rate does not exceed 110% of the Medicare allowable amount for 
these services. The Contractor shall indicate the availability of an Urgent Care 
facility and/or service as part of the Emergency Services requirement. 

1.2.2. NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment on the 
competitiveness of the discount provided as it relates to the requirements ·Of the 
amended RSA 623-C:2 effective July I, 2013, private commercial payment and 
other public sources of third party payment. 

1.3. Outoatient Hospital Services: 
1.3.1. The NH Department of Corrections is seeking proposals for outpatient services to 

be.reimbursed as a percentage of the 2016 relevant NH Medicare Fee Schedule and 
indicate the percentage (%) multiplier. The following NH Medicare Fee Schedules 
are to be used: 

Promoting Public SaCety through Integrity, Respect, Profmlooallsm. CollaboraUon and AccountabWty 

State of NH, Dqiartnwl/ o/CaruttilJ1U1 
Division of Medical & Forensic Suv/ces 
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Ou atient Radiolo 
National Level II Codes 

Scope of Services 
Exhibit A 

a.) The NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment on 
the competitiveness of the discount provided as it relates to the requirements 
of the amended RSA 623-C:2 effective July 1, 2013, private commercial 
payment and other public sources of third party payment. 

1.3.2. All other outpatient services not covered by the NH Medicare Fee Schedules above 
shall be paid as a percentage of the facility charge structure. Please indicate the 
percentage discount off the hospital's billed charge. 
a.) The NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment on 

the competitiveness of the discount provided as it relates to the requirements 
of the amended RSA 623-C:2 effective July 1, 2013, private commercial 
payment and other public sources of third party payment. 

b) The Contractor shall provide a complete list of all affiliated facilities that 
routinely provide services not covered under the Contractor's tax ID number. 
The Contractor shall provide written confinnation the affiliated facilities will 
accept the contracted rate or will be reimbursed under the provisions of RSA 
623-C:2. . 

c) The Contractor shall provide a complete list of all services, procedures 
provided by affiliated facilities not covered under the contracted 
reimbursement rate. 

1.4. Rate Adjustments: 
1.4.1. The NH Department of Corrections reques!S a two-year rate proposal and 

agreement because of the need to properly appropriate funds over the biennium. If 
the Contractor proposes an annual adjustment to the rates, please indicate what the 
adjustment will be, how notification will occur, and the rationale for such 
adjustment. If extended for two (2) years, NH Department of Corrections will 
agree to hospital reimbursement rates by the most recently published Boston­
Brockton-Nashua, MA-NH-ME-CT Medical Consumer Price Index (BMCPI) for 
the remaining two (2) year period provided that such an adjustment does not violate 
the intent of RSA 623-C:2 when compared to the then current Medicare fee 
schedule. 

1.4.2. Please note: During the tenn of the agreement with any selected Contractor, NH 
Department of Corrections will require by Agreement that the Contractor provide 
written notification of any charge master increases prior to the effective date of 
such change. · The percentage of charges for these services will be offset to 
preserve the same level of reimbursement prior to the charge increase. In the event 
that the notification is not provided in advance or in accordance with the terms of 
the Agreement, NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to recover any 
overpayments at any time. 

1.5. Hospital Claim Processing: 
1.5.1. The NH Department of Corrections lacks electronic claims system capacity. For 

Hospitals Services, the NH Department of Corrections will require the Contractor 
to invoice the discounted amount of services rendered to inmates. Claims are to be 

Promodng Public Sll(ety through lntq:rlt)', Respect. Profcssfo1t1llsm. Collabontton and Accoantabllity 

Sla/e of NH, Dtpanmmt o/Comt:llons 
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Scope of Services 
Exhibit A 

provided in the industry standard fonnat, (CMS 1500, UB-04) but should indicate 
the amount expected to be reimbursed. For inpatient admissions, the submitted 
UB-04 shall reflect the DRG and ORO rate expected for reimbursement. The 
Contractor is asked in this section to describe the method by which it will address 
this request, provide a sample fonnat and may be asked to speak to this issue in 
more detail during any finalist presentation. This section is a requirement for any 
qualified bidder. 

1.5.2. Please note: The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to audit any 
claims and/or seek clarification on any payments that result from this process at 
anytime. The Contractor should be able to defend its pricing methodology and 
properly detail any internal process controls for ensuring accurate pricing of claims 
(RSA 623-C:2(g). 

1.6. Physician Services: 
1.6.1. The NH Department of Corrections seeks to include professional medical services 

in this RFP. In particular, it seeks to access services for employed physicians to be 
reimbursed at a discounted level. The Contractor should indicate its willingness to 
provide discounted professional services for its employed physicians and provide 
the following: 
• Listing of the employed physicians and relevant specialty; 
• Level of reimbursement expressed as a percentage of the 2016 NH Medicare 

physician fee schedule not to exceed 110% of Medicare; and 
• NH Department of Corrections requests the Contractor to comment on the 

competitiveness of the discount as it relates to billed charges, commercial third 
party payments and other public program third party payer reimbursements (i.e. 
Medicaid, Veterans Administration, etc). 

1.6.2. The NH Department of Corrections seeks to include other non-hospital based 
community physicians in its professional services network. Please indicate how 
the facility may assist the NH Department of Corrections in reaching out to other 
community physicians. Non-hospital based physician staff will be reimbursed at a 

· rate not exceed 125% of the NH Medicare physician fee schedule per the amended 
RSA 623-C:2 effective July I, 2013. Please comment on the expected success of 
this effort, ways to ensure a successful effort and other ideas that will enhance the 
ability of the NH Department of Corrections to access non-hospital based physician 
staff. 

I. 7. Physician Services Claims Processing: 
The Contractor should validate that Physician Service claims will be provided to the NH 
Department of Corrections in a timely manner and consistent with the industry fonnat 
(CMS 1500). Claims for Physician Services will be processed by the NH Department of 
Corrections by applying the negotiated percentage of the 2016 NH Medicare Fee Schedule to 
the service, regardless ofamotint billed. The NH Department of Corrections requests that the 
Contractor invoice at 110% of Medicare rate for employed Physician Services. No payments 
of services rendered under this methodology will exceed the 110% Medicare amount. 

1.8. Other Considerations: 
1.8.1. The NH Department of Corrections is interested in access to other necessary 

services that the Contractor may be willing to provide at a discounted rate under the 
125% of Medicare rate. Please indicate in this section if any other such services 
are available. Items of interest include but are not limited to on-campus (NH 
Department of Corrections facilities) rehabilitation· services: Physical Therapy 
(PT), Occupational Therapy (OT), Speech Therapy (ST) and Respiratory Therapy 

Promoting Publlc Safety through Integrity, Respect, Proressloulfsm, Collaboradon and Accountability 
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i..8:2. 

1.8.3. 

L8:4. 

Scope .c/f Services 
Exhil>itA 

(RT), Oncology, Radiation Therapy;Chemotherapy.,or.alternative to hospital based 
rehabilitation servfoes. The Contractor shall indicaie the availability and serVices 
offe_red .for JV therapy to lnc1ud~ i!Jsertion of PICC lines or other access ports for 
the provision ofiy fluid or·IV treatment modalities. 
For inpatient rehabilitatfon servic~s, Contractors snail ·prpvide pricing based on 
¥e<!lcareis C1l5e Mix Gro_µps (CMG) IJ!ilizing the paylllen( on account factor (PAF 
or% ofcharge)Jilr 20j6, Jlie_NH Departmi;nt of<:;orrections is seekiqg a rate not 
to e;<ceed ll 0% of Medicare per RSA-62~-C:2: . -
.As ail evalliation-tool, transportation/security costs will be ca!Culated 'arid factor.ea 
in to 'the to.ta! .cost of Hospitill SerVices. Trlu\sj><irts ~hall be don.e With a' minim uni 
ot: two (2) NH Depiiitrilentof Corrections CorrectiOnal ·Officers at an average rate 
of $56. 78 per hour and a per. mile cost of $0.54 based upon .tlie Internal Revenue 
Service announcement for2016. 
The $0.54 per mile rate shill! fluctuate based ·upon .the Internal Revenue Service 
announcements .Per Calendar Year .for the life of the. Contract and any renewals 
thereof. 

2. Terms of Contract: 
A ContracraWi![ded by the NH Departrilerit of Corrections as a result of this RFP is expectea to be 
effective. for .the period begiru\ing July I, 2016 upon approval .of Governor aitd Executive Cmiricil 
(G&C) whichever is later through June 30,. 2018, with an option to renew for one.(l) additional 
period ofup to iwo (2}years, only after the ·approval of the Commissioner of the NH Department of 
Correcifons and the Governor and Executiv~ Council. 

3, Service Locations: 
'rhe Contractor shall provide Inpatient and Outpatient Hospitalffyledical Servic.es and. professional 
medical services for the following locations fated below. Concord Area.: NH State Prison for Men 
(J'IHSP-M), Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU), Residential Treatment Unit, and ComrilUnity Correi:tiohs 
(Shea Farm, North End House and CTWC); Concord, NH and Southern Area: NH State Prison for 
Women (NHSP-W), Cioffstown, ~ and Communiiy Corrections· (Calumet House) locations 
requiring tliese serviees llf!l marked with an X: 

~ Conlinuni €orrectionS 

4 •. Average Projected Inmate Populatio_n: 

Southern Area• 130 
Communit Corrections 314 

"'(South.em incJudes women housed at Straffor~rcounry due tO overflow) 

Promot~og Public Sarecy th~ugh Jntegrlt)'1 Respect;ProfesslonaJUm, c;ouabOr:atlon and A-ttountablllty 

Stll/e of/VH, Department o/Co"ectlons 
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·s. Estimated Annual Inmate Transports for Calendar Year_lOlS: 

6, General Service Provisions: 

Scope of Services 
li;xhibit .A 

_6.'l. Ri.ile-s and'Regulations: The Contractor agrees to comply with all rules and regulations of the 
NH-Department of Corrections. The.·contractor sruill adhere.to Department's confidentiality 
policy and procedure directives. 

6.2. . Additional Facilities: Upon agreement of both parties, additional fucilities ~longing to the 
NH Departmeni of Corrections may be. added to the contract. I_f it is neceSS'!fY to increase the: 
price limitation of the Contract this provision will require Govemqr and Executiy~ Cou11cH 
approval. . 

6.3. Licenses. Credentials and Certificates: The Contractor shall en5ure that NH StateJicensed 
Professionals provide· tlie services required. The Contractor and its staff'shall possess the 
credentials, licenses and/or certificates required by law and regulations to provide the services 
required. 

6.4. -Change of Ownership: In the event that the Contractor should change 9wnerslljp for any 
reason whaisoever, the NH Departme_nt of Corrections shall have th~: option of contipuing, 
under the G_qntract wi.th the Contractofor its successors or assigns for the full remaining term 
of the Contract, continuing under the Contract with the CoritractOr cir, its successors or, 
assigns for such period of ·time as determined necessary by ·the NH Department of 
Corrections, or terniinating the Contract 

6.5. Contractor Designated Liaison: The Contractor shall designate. a representative to.act as a 
liaison between the Contractor and the'Department of for the duration oftlie'Contract and any 
renewals thereof. Th~ Contracior shaii, within fi~e (S) days atter !he. award qf the Contract: 
submit a written ide11tificadon and notification fo NH Department of Corrections cif the name, 
title, address, telephone & fax number, of its orgariizatiori as a duly authorized represeniative 
tci 'whom all correspondence, official notices and requests related to the Contractor's 
performance under the Contract. 
6.5.1. Any written notice to the Contractor shall be deemed sufficient when deposited.in 

the u.s. 111ail, postage prepaid and addre_ssed to the perso:n cfosigi-i~ted by the 
Co_ntracl()r under this paragraph. 

6,~.2. The Contractor shall haye the right to change or substitute the name of the 
individual described above as deemed necessary provided ·that any such change is 
not effective until the CommiS5ioner ofihe NH Department of Corrections actually 
receives notice ofihis change. 

6.5.~. Changes of the named Liaison by the Contractor must be made in _writing and 
forwarded to NH Department of Corrections, Medical Operations A!lministrator; oi 
designee, P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302. 

6.6. Ccintraetor Liaison's Responsibilities: The Contractor's .desigl\ated liaison shall be 
responsible. for: 
6.6: I. Representing the Contractor on all matters pertaining to the Contract and any 

renewals thereof. Such a representative shall be authorized and empowered to 
represent the Contractor regarding all aspects of the Contract-and any renewals 
thereof; 

6.6.2. .Monitoring the Contfactor's compliance with the terms of ihe Contract and any 
renewals thereof; 
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6.6.3. Receiving and responding to all inquiries and requests made by NH Oepartment of 
Corrections in the time frames and format specified by NH Department of 
Corrections in this RFP and in the Contract and any renewals thereof; and 

6.6.4. Meeting with representatives of NH Department of Corrections on a periodic or a.S· 
needed basis to resolve issues which may arise. · 

6.7. NH Department of Corrections Contract Ljajson Responsibilities: The NH Department of 
Corrections' Commissioner, or designee, shall act as liaison between the Contractor and NH 
Department of Corrections· for the duration of the Contract and any renewals thereof. NH 
Department of Corrections reserves the right to change its representative, at its sole 
discretion, during the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contractor with written 
notice of such change. NH Department of Corrections representative shall be responsible for: 
6. 7.1. Representing the 'NH Department of Corrections on all matters pertaining to the 

Contract. The representative shall be authorized and empowered to represent the 
NH Department of Corrections regarding all aspects of the Contract, subject to the 
approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, 
where needed; 

6.7.2. Monitoring compliance with the terms of the Contract; 
6.7.3. Responding to all inquiries and requests related to the Contract made by the 

Contractor, under the terms and in the time frames specified by the Contract; 
6.7.4. Meeting with the Contractor's representative on a periodic or as-needed basis and 

resolving issues which arise; and 
6.7.5. Informing the Contractor of any discretionary action taken by NH Department of 

Corrections pursuant to the provisions of the Contract. 
6.8. Notification of Services: The NH Department of Corrections designee, Medical Operations 

Administrator, or designee, shall contact the Contractor when service is needed. A list of NH 
Department of Corrections, Medical Service Personnel Coordinators will be provided to the 
Contractor upon award of a Contract(s). 

6.9. Reoorting Requirements: The NH Department of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion: 
6.9.1. The Contractor shall provide, at a minimum, quarterly reports on outpatient volume 

by the Department's facility and inpatient volume by ORO shall be required. 
Descriptions of reports or sample reports should be provided as an attachment to 
the RFP response. 

6.9.2. The Contractor shall provide any and all reports as requested on an as needed basis 
according to a schedule and format to be determined by the NH Department of 
Corrections including but not limited to: 
a.) Quarterly summary of the· cost by product line by ORO for inpatient and 

product line by primary diagnosis for outpatient services; 
b.) Length of stay information; . 
c.) Breakdowns of inpatient and outpatient billings by Current Procedural 

Terminology (CPT) and Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System 
(HCPCS) codes; . . 

d.) Quarterly summary of Charges to Reimbursement reporting by inpatient and 
outpatient services; 

e.) Quarterly summary of Inpatient Cases by Department (Cost Centers) and 
Outpatient Cases by Department (Cost Centers); and 

£) Billings are to be provided in a format consistent with Medicare and 
Medicaid billings on Industry standard forms (CMSISOO, UB-04). 

· 6.9.3. Request the Contractor to provide proof of any and all permits to perform inpatient 
and outpatient hospitaYmedical · services as required by authorities having local, 
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Scope of Services 
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state and/or federal jurisdiction at any time during the life of the Contract and any 
renewals thereof. 

6.9.4. It is the intent of NH Department of Corrections to work with any Contractor to 
provide any reporting required that meets the NH Department of Corrections needs. 

6,9.5. The NH Department of Corrections welcomes suggestions from prospective 
Contractors that would result in a more efficient administration of any Contract 
resulting from this RFP. 

6.9.6. Any information requested would be specific to the NH Department of Corrections 
inmates only. ' . 

6.9.7. Reports and/or information requests shall be forwarded to NH Department of 
Corrections, Medical Operations Administrator, or designee, P.O. Box 1806, 
Concord, NH 03302. 

6.1 O. Performance Evaluation: The NH Department of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion 
monitor and evaluate the 'Contractor's compliance with the Terms and Conditions and 
adherence to the Scope of Services of the Contract for the life of the Contract and any 
renewals thereof. 
6.10.1. The NH Department of Corrections Bureau of Quality Improvement, Compliance 

and Research Director may meet with the Contractor at a minimum of twice a year 
to assess the performance of the Contractor relative to the Contractor's compliance 
with the Contract as set forth in the approved Contract document. 

6.10.2. Review reports submitted by the Contractor. NH Department of Corrections shall 
determine the acceptability of the reports. If they are not deemed acceptable, NH 
Department of Corrections shall notify the Contractor and explain the deficiencies. 

6.10.3. Request additional reports the NH Department of Corrections deems necessary for 
the purposes of monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Vendor under the 
Contract. 

6.10.4. Perform periodic programmatic and financial review of the Contractor's 
performance or responsibilities. This may include, but limited to, on-site 
inspections audits conducted by the NH Department of Corrections or its agent of 
the Contractor's records. The audits may, at a minimum, include a review of the 
following: 
a.) Claims and financial administration; 
b.) Program operations; 
c.) Financial reports; 
d.) Staff qualifications; 
e.) Clinical protocols; and 
f.) Individual medical records. 

6.10.5. Give the Contractor prior notice of any on-site visit by the NH Department of 
Corrections or its agents to conduct an audit and further notify the <;:ontractor of 
any records which the NH Department of Correction or its agent may wish to 
review. 

6.10.6. Inform the Contractor of any dissatisfaction with the Contractor's performance and 
include requirements for corrective action. 

6.10.7. The Contractor understands and agrees that the NH Department of Corrections 
reserves the right to amend the claims process for Hospital and Professional 
Services as outlined in Exhibit A. The NH Department of Corrections continues to 
work on alternative mechanisms to expedite the claims process and provide useful 
real time data to NH Department of Corrections. Any such change to the claims 
process will be provided with written notice in advance of the required change. 
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6.11. ·Perfonnance Measures: The NH Department of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion: 
6.11.1. lnfonn the Contractor of any dissatisfaction with the Contractor's perfonnance and 

include requirements for corrective action; 
6.11.2. Tenninate the Contract, if NH Department of Corrections detennines that the 

Contractor is: 
a.) Not in compliance with the terms of the Contract; 
b.) Has lost or has been notified of intention to lose their certificationllicensure/ 

pennits; and 
c.) Tenninate the contract as otherwise pennitted by law. 

7. Other Contract Provisions: 
7.1. Modifications to the Contract: In the event of any dissatisfaction with the Contractor's 

perfonnance, the NH Department of Corrections will infonn the Contractor of any 
dissatisfaction and will include requirements for corrective action. 
7. I. I. The Department of Corrections has the right to tenninate the Contract, if the NH 

Department of Corrections determines that the Contractor is: 
a.) Not in compliance with the terms of the Contract; or 
b.) As otherwise pennitted by law or as stipulated within this Contract. 

7.2. Coordination of Efforts: The Contractor shall fully coordinate his or her activities in the 
perfonnance of the Contract with those of the NH Department of Corrections. As the work of 
the Contractor progresses, advice and infonnation on matters covered by the Contract shall be 
made available by the Contractor to NH Department of Corrections as requested by NH 
Department of Corrections throughout the effective period of the Contract. 

8. Bankruptcy or· Insolvency Proceeding Notification: 
8.1. Upon filing for any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding by or against the Contractor, 

whether voluntary or involuntary, or upon the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or assignee 
for the benefit of creditors, the Contractor must notify the NH Department of Corrections 
immediately. 

8.2. Upon learning of the actions herein identified, the NH Department of Corrections reserves the 
right at its sole discretion to either cancel the Contract in whole or in part, or, re-affinn the 
Contract in whole or in part. 

9. Embodiment orthe Contract: 
9. I. The Contract between the NH Department of Corrections and the Contractor shall consist of: 

9.1.1. Request for Proposal (RFP) and any amendments thereto; 
9.1.2. Proposal submitted by the Vendor in response to the RFP; andfor 
9.1.3. Negotiated document (Contract) agreed to by and between the parties that is 

ratified by a "meeting of the minds" after careful consideration of all of the tenns 
and conditions and that which is approved by the Governor and Executive Council 
of the State of New Hampshire. 

9.2. In the event of a conflict in language between the documents referenced above, the provisions 
and requirements set forth andfor referenced in the negotiated document noted in 9.1.3. shall 
govern. 

9.3. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to clarify any contractual relationship in 
writing with the concurrence of the Contractor, and such written clarification shall govern in 
case of conflict with the applicable requirements stated in the RFP or the Vendor's Proposal 
andfor the result of a Contract. 
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10. Cancellation of Contract: 

Scope of Services 
Exhibit A 

10.1. The Department of Corrections may cancel the Contract at any time for breach of Contractual 
obligations by providing the Contractor with a written notice of such cancellation. 

10.2. Should the NH Depaitment of Corrections exercise its right to cancel the Contract for such 
reasons, the cancellation shall become effective on the date as specified in the notice of 
cancellation sent to the Contractor. 

10.3. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to terminate the Contract without 
penalty or recourse by giving the contractor a written notice of such termination at least sixty 
(60) days prior to the effective termination date. 

10.4. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to cancel this Contract for the 
convenience of the State with no penalties by giving the Contractor sixty (60) days notice of 
said cancellation. 

11. Contractor Transition: 
NH Department of Corrections, at its discretion, in any Contract resulting from this RFP, may require 
the Contractor to work cooperatively with any predecessor and/or successor Vendor to assure the 
orderly and uninterrupted transition from one Vendor to another. 

12. Audit Requirement: 
Contractor agrees to comply with any recommendations arising from periodic audits on the 
performance of this contract, providing they do not require any unreasonable hardship, which would 

· normally affect the value of the Contract. . 

13. Addltlonal Items/Locations: 
Upon agreement of both party's additional equipment and/or other facilities belonging to the NH 
Department of Corrections may be added to the Contract. In the same respect, equipment and/or 
facilities listed as part of the provision of services of the Contract may be deleted as well. 

14. Information: 
14.1. In performing its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor may gain access to 

information of the inmates/patients, including confidential information. The Contractor shall 
not use information developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or 
developed by reason of the Contract, except as is directly connected to and necessary for the 
Vendor's performance under the Contract. · · 

14.2. The Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of and to protect from unauthorized use, 
disclosure, publication, reproduction and all information of the inmate/patient that becomes 
available to the Contractor in connection with its performance under the Contract. 

14.3. In the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of the inmates/patients information, the 
Contractor shall immediately notify the NH Department of Corrections. 

14.4. All material developed or acquired by the Contractor, due to work performed under the 
Contract, shall become the property of the State of New Hampshire. No material or reports 
prepared by the Contractor shall be released to the public without the prior written consent of 
NH Department of Corrections. 

14.5. All financial, statistical, personnel and/or technical data supplied by NH Department of 
Corrections to the Contractor are confidential. The Contractor is required to use reasonable 
care to protect the confidentiality of such data. Any use, sale or offering of this data in any 
form by the Contractor; or any individual or entity in the Contractor's charge or employ, will 
be considered a violation of the contract and may result in contract termination. In addition, 
such conduct may be reported to the State Attorney General for possible criminal 
prosecution. 
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15. Public Records: 

Scope of Services 
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NH RSA 91-A guarantees access to public records. As such, all responses to a competitive 
solicitation are public records unless exempt by law. Any information submitted as part of a bid in 
response to this Request for Proposal or Request for Bid (RFB) or Request for Information{RFI) may 
be subject to public disclosure under RSA 91-A. In addition, in accordance with RSA 9-F:L any 
contract entered into as a result of this RFP (RFB or RFI) will be made accessible to the public online 
via the website: Transparent NH h!to://www.nh.gov/transparentnh/. Accordingly, business financial 
information and proprietary information such as trade secrets, business and financial models and 
forecasts, and proprietary formulas may be exempt from public disclosure under RSA 91-A:S. IV. If 
a Bidder believes that any information submitted in response to a Request for Proposal, Bid or 
Information, should be kept confidential as financial or proprietary information, the Bidder must 
specifically identify that information in a letter to the State Agency. Failure to comply with this 
section may be grounds for the complete disclosure of all submitted material not in compliance with 
this section. 

If you believe any information being submitted in response to a request for proposal, bid or 
information should be kept confidential as financial or proprietary information; you must specifically 
identify that information in a letter to the agency, and should mark/stamp the materials as such. 
Marking of the entire Proposal or entire sections of the Proposal (e.g. pricing) as confidential will 
neither be accepted nor honored. Notwithstanding any provision of this RFP to the contrary, 
Contractor pricing will be subject to disclosure upon approval of the contract by Governor and 
Council. 

Generally, each Proposal shall become public information upon the approval of Governor and Council 
of the resulting contract, as determined by the State, including but not limited to, RSA Chapter 91-A 
(Right to Know Law). The State will endeavor to maintain the confidentiality of portions of the 
Proposal that are clearly and properly marked confidential. If a request is made to the State to view 
portions of a Proposal that the Contractor has properly and clearly marked confidential, the State will 
notify the Contractor of the request and of the date and the State plans to release the records. A 
designation by the Contractor of information it believes exempt does not have the effect of making 
such information exempt. The State will determine the information it believes is properly exempted 
from disclosure. By submitting a Proposal, Contractors agree that unless the Contractor obtains a 
court order, at its sole expense, enjoining the release of the requested information, 'the State may 
release the requested information on the date specified in the State's notice without any liability to the 
Contractors. 

16. Special Notes: 
16.1. The headings and footings of the sections of this document are for convenience only and shall 

not affect the interpretation of any section. 
16.2. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to require use of a third party 

administrator during the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof. 
16.3. Locations per contract year may be increased/decreased and or reassigned to alternate 

facilities during the Contract term at the discretion of the Department. Locations may be 
added and/or deleted after the awarding of a Contract at the discretion of the Department and 
upon mutual agreement of the Commissioner of the Department of Corrections and the 
Contractor. · 
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16.4. In the event that the NH Department of Corrections wishes to add or remove facilities at 
which the Contractor is to provide services, it shall: 
16.4.1. Give the Contractor "fourteen ( 14) days written notice of the proposed change; and 
16.4.2. Secure the Contractor's written agreement to the proposed changes. 

16.S. Notwithstanding the foregoing, or any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no 
event shall changes to facilities be allowed that modify the "Completion Date" or "Price 
Limitation" of the Agreement. 

16.6. Contractor must comply with the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of2003 (Federal Law 
42 U.S.C.15601 et. seq.), with all applicable Federal PREA standards, and with all State 
policies and standards related to PREA for preventing, detecting, monitoring, investigating, 
and eradicating any form of sexual abuse within facilities/programs/offices owned, operated, 
or contracted. Contractor acknowledges that, in addition to self-monitoring requirements, the 
State will conduct compliance monitoring of PREA standards ·which may require an outside 
independent audit. 

The remainder of this page is Intentionally blank. 
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17 .. 2015 Inpatient Cases by ~ajor Diagnostic Categories, Primary Diagnosis: 

·subtotal Systems, Diseases & 
Disorder· Cases· 

14 
JS 
4. 

3 

3 
4 
l 

.2 
2 

·Toial'2015 In atient Cases b 

Head and Neck 
Gan ene 
Shortness ofBreath 
Chest Pain 
Abdominal·Pain 
Abnormal EKG 
Fracture-Hi 
Frilcture-Tibula:Jf ibula 

Subtotal Symptcims & Ill-Defined 
Cases 

18. 2015 Emergency Room Cases by Top Ten Diagnostic Categories: 

.mi 
Abdominal' Pain. · 18 

13 
18 

15 

44 
30 
36 

.106 
10 

Su erficial'and Other In·uries 31 

Totai.2015 Emer enc Room Cases b 331 
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4 
8 

3 

56 
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19. 2!)i5 Outpatient Cases by CPT/HC:PCS: 

Scope of Services 
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~,. .... ··-;ao-111~ ~ - ; 'l:.Jt£11' " I '' • I ~'I ,j..ii 

Oiltuatient Surl!'erv OutoallenfOther 
Cardiovascu.lai 9 Chemotheranv T4 
Digestive 70 .bonnier Echocardiograp-hy '6 
General I Durilex Scans 2 
lnfooumentary 16 Echocardioirraohv 15. 
Male Genital i EEG ·2 

MuSculoskeletal 20 EXtremitv Arterial Studies 4 -
Nervous Sv.Stem 

-
2 Lab/Patholo•v. 61 

ReSoiratorv 5 Left Heart Catheterization I 
Subtotal Outpatient Suroe.-v 124 Other Outnatieni Hospital Visits 14 

Penile Vascular Studv I 
Outnailent Radiolo•v Phiebotomv I 

CT 64 PICC Insertions " 2 
DEXA Scans: 2 Pi.lirilOnarv'TeStin.i? 4 
FlllorOsco~v, 2 Speech'Patholoov 

' 

:6 
Mammography 11 Stress Test I 
MRI 38 ·vCriOI1s.Studies 2 
etain Films 63 Wound Management 7 
Nuciear MediCine 14 
Radiation Services IO 
Ultrasound 43 

Subtota!Outnatlent Radlo!oav 247 

Subtotal Cases 371 Subtotal Cases 143 

Total 2015 Outpatient Cases by CPT/HCPCS: 514 

The remainder of this page is intentionally blank;. 
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Exhibit A 
Scope of Services 

RE: RFP Title: Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services 
RFP Number: NHDOC RFP 14-10-GFMED 
Vendor's Organizational Name: Catholic Medical Center 

1. Description of Services: 

1.1 Innatient Hosnital Services 

1.1.1. Inpatient Coefficient - $6S93. 75 which represents 105% of the Catholic Medical 
Center's ["CMC'') FFY 2016 Medicare Coefficient. 

1.1.2. RSA 623-C:2: CMC is biding below the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. 
CMC's bid is 105% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this 
amendment. · 

1.1.3. The rate is significantly less than cWTently available to any commercial contracts at 
CMC. 

1.2 Emergency Services 

1.2.1. Reimbursement - CMC is proposing an overall reimbursement rate for these services 
at I 05% of Medicare, which is 41.48% of charges. This was calculated by determining the 
effective PAF for all emergency services for Medicare for the period of July I, 2015 through 
December 31, 2015. The applicable PAF for Emergency Services for CMC is 39.5%. In 
addition to the Emergency room services, CMC doe8 offer an Urgent care center located in 
Bedford. 

RSA 623-C:2: CMC is biding below the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. CMC's 
bid is 105% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this amendment. 

1.2.2. The rate is significantly less than CWTently available to any commercial contracts at 
CMC. 

1.3 Outnatient Hospital Services 

1.3.1. Outnatient Laboratory and Radiology NH Fee Schedules - 105% of the NH 2016 
Medicare Laboratory and Radiology Fee Schedules. 

National Level D Codes (including all pharmaceuticals) 23.84% P AF which represents 
I 05% of Medicare reimbursement for all outpatient, non fee schedule, services. 

1.3.1.a. RSA 623-C:2: CMC is biding below the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. 
CMC's bid is 105% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this amendment 



1.3.2. All Other Outpatient Services - 23.84% P AF which represents 105% of Medicare 
reimbursement for all outpatient, non fee schedule, services. 

1.3.2.a. CMC is biding below the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. CMC's bid is 
I 05% of Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this amendment. The rate is 
significantly less than currently available to any commercial contracts at CMC. 

1.4 Rate Adjustments 

1.4.1. The second year rate adjustment will be tied to the most recent annual Medical CPI for 
the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. These will be determined through the federal 
government BLS website as of May for a July I" implementation. 

Likewise, for year two, the P AF will be adjusted such that CM C's annual July I" rate 
increases do not yield an increase in reimbursement by the DOC in excess of the annual 
Medical CPI for the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. This will be determined through the 
federal government BLS website as of May for a July I" implementation. 

The inpatient DRG coefficient will increase on July l '1 of year two by the annual Medical CPI 
for the Boston-Brockton-Nashua region. This will be determined through the federal 
government BLS website as of May for a July I" implementation. 

Additionally, each October 1 ", the Medicare DRG tables, including updated weights and 
DRGs will be employed. In the event Medicare makes adjustments to DRGs and/or weights 
outside the typical annual October 111 updates, such changes shall apply to the reimbursement 
terms under the proposal. 

l.S Hospital Claim Processing: Process and attach a sample claim 

1.S.1. CMC calculates estimated claims reimbursement using internal contract management 
software. Since this is a custom feature, the format of the submission will be finalized after 
the DOC selects the finalist for the RFP .CMC will utilize the standard CM!f 1500 and UB-04 
claims forms for submission. 

1.5.2. CMC understands that the DOC reserves the right to audit any claims and/or seek 
clarification. 

1.6 Physician Services: 

1.6.1. A listing of current providers, including specialties, is enclosed with this RFP. 
Primarv Care - Family Practice and Internal Medicine 
Cardiology - Medical, interventionists and Electro physiologists 
Cardiothoracic Surgeons 
OB/GYN - While not listed on the attached as they are not employed by CMC, CMC 
will bill for OB/GYN services out of its Pregnancy Care Center. 
General Surgery 

Rates - 110% of the NH 2016 Medicare Fee Schedule 



CMC is bidding at the Senate mandated maximum reimbursement. CMC's bid is 110% of 
Medicare compared with 110% allowed under this amendment. The rate is significantly less 
than currently available to any commercial contracts at CMC. 

1.6.2. Non-Hosoital Based Commuoity Physicians - From 2003 - 2014, CMC has been 
committed to worldng with the DOC to ensure comprehensive physician coverage. On 
oceasion, when the DOC has experienced access issues with respect to certain specialties, 
CMC would place calls to such specialists to assist the DOC in its efforts to arrange for such 
specialty care. Overall, the process has been highly successful and CMC commits to 
continuing these efforts should it be awarded the contract under this RFP. 

I. 7 Physician Claims Prlicessiog: 

CMC will bill physician claims at 110% of the Medicare rate in a timely manner to the DOC 
consistent with industry standard. · 

1.8 Other Consideratioos 

1.8.1. Not applicable 

1.8.2. Inpatient Rehab PAF-59.67"/o which represents 105% of Medicare 
Reimbursement. Medicare reimburses inpatient rehabilitation on a CMG basis. The 
effective P AF, payment on account factor, (or% (Jf charge) for CM C's inpatient 
rehabilitation Medicare business is 56.8% for the period of July l, 2015 through 
December 31, 2015. 

Because CMC does not have the ability to price inpatient rehabilitation services at a 
CMG rate, CMC is proposing using 105% of the effective Medicare PAF, 59.67"/o, for 
these services. 



Clarification response to NHDOC RFP 16-01-GFMED 

1.8: Other Considerations: 

1.8.1.: CMC will provide access to other service not already listed, including outpatient 
rehabilitation services, including PT/OT and SLP services at our outpatient locations. CMC will 
propose these services at 110% of the Medicare allowable rate. The locations are listed below: 

Main.Location, Outpatient Rehabilitation Services at Dartmouth Commons 
769 South Main Street, Suite 201 
Manchester NH 03102 
603.641.6700 

Hooksett Medical Park Physical Therapy 
27 Londonderry Turnpike 
Hooksett NH 03106 
Mon-Thu 7 AM.-7 PM; Fri 7 AM-4 PM 
tel 603.314.5970 
fax 603.314.5971 

CMC Outpatient Physical Therapy at Bedford 
188 Route Suite 10 I 
Bedford, NH 03110 
603.314.4560 

GMC does not offer Radiation Therapy. 

CMC will provide access to chemotherapy. CMC is in collaboration currently with ilnother 
provider so the NH DOC may be billed separately from that provider. 

CMC can offer IV therapy and the insertion of PICC lines or access ports foi: the provision of IV 
fluid or IV treatment modalities at 110% of the Medicare allowable rate at the hospital. 

Urgent Care: CMC does offer an Urgent Care location, Bedford Medical Park, 5 Washington 
Place, Suite IB, Bedford, NH03l10, tel: 603.314.4567. CMC will collaborate with the NH DOC 
to ensure appropriate and dignified access for all patients utilizing this service. The hours are: 

Weekdays-Mon-Fri: 8 AM-8 PM 
Weekends-Sat-Sun: 9 AM-5 PM 
Holidays-9 AM-2 PM 

CMC does not anticipate charging additional for further services, if so; It will be discussed with 
the NH DOC. 



Estimated Budget/Method of Payment 
Exhibit B 

SECTION C: Estimated Budget/Method of Payment, Exhibit B 

I. Signature Page 

The Vendor proposes to provide Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital/Medical Services for the New 
Hampshire Department of Corrections (NHDOC) in confonnance with all terms and conditions of this 
RFP and the Vendor provides pricing infonnation as an Attachment to this proposal for providing such 
products and services in accordance with the provisions and requirements specified in this RFP document. 

The pricing infonnation quoted by the Vendor as an attachment to this document represents the total 
price(s) for providing any and all service(s) according to the provisions and requirements of the RFP, 
which shall remain in effect through the end of this procurement process and throughout the contracting 
process until the contract completion date as listed on the State Contract form P/37, section I. 7 -
Completion Date. · 

AUTHO 

NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNOR (Please Type) 

THE VENDOR ASSUMES ALL RISKS THAT ACTUAL FlITURE FIGURES MAY VARY FROM 
POPULATION PRESENTED AS PART OF THIS RFP. 

If the NH Department of Corrections detennines it is in the best interest of the State, it may seek a "BEST 
AND FINAL OFFE!r' (BAFO). from vendors submitting acceptable and/or potentially acceptable 
proposals. The "BEST AND FINAL OFFEir' would provide a Vendor the opportunity to amend or 
change its original proposal to make it more acceptable to the State. NH Department of Corrections 
reserves the right to exercise this option. 

Financial responsibility for preparation of proposals is the sole reilponsibility of the Vendor. The 
solicitation of the Request for Proposals shall not commit the NH Department of Corrections to award a 
Contracl(s). 

Financial commitment by the NH Department of Corrections will not occur until such time as the 
Governor and the Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire approve a Contract(s). 

Promotln& Public Sarety throu&h lnfe&rlty, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Aa:ountablUty 

Slalt of NH, IHpartmDIJ ofCo"tt:llons 
Division of Mtdlcal & Fonnslc SttWw 

RFP 16-111-GFMED, dos/n' dJJU: S/13/J0/6 · POi•,33 
Vendor IDIUals: 



2. Method of Payment: 

Estimated Budget/Method of Payment 
Exhibit B 

2.1. Invoices shall be sent to the NH Department of Corrections, Financial Services, P.O. Box 
1806, Concord, NH 03302-1806. 

2.2. The NH Department of Corrections may make adjustments to the payment amount identified 
on a Contractor's invoice per RSA 623-C:2. The NH Department of Corrections shall 
suspend payment to an invoice if an invoice is not submitted in accordance with the 
instructions established by the NH Department of Corrections. 

2.3. The NH Department of Corrections Bureau of Financial Services may issue payment to the 
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of an approved invoice. Invoices shall be 
itemized by facility using industry standard forms (CMS 1500 and UB-04) and contain the 
following Identifying information: 
2.3.1. invoice date and number; 
2.3.2 facility name and associated Contractor account number (if applicable) representing 

facility name; 
2.3.3. inmate name, inmate identification (ID) number, date of birth (DOB), date of service 

(DOS) and all other applicable fields per the industry standard form; 
2.3 .4. itemized service/product total charge per service/product type; 
2.3.5. NH Department of Corrections prefers the Contractor to provide the associated 

adjustments per RSA 623-C:2 on claims submitted. 
2.4. As an evaluation tool, transportation/security costs will be calculated and factored in to the 

total cost of Hospital Services. Transports shall be done with a mil)imum 
of two (2) NH Department of Corrections Correctional Officers at an average rate of $56. 78 
per hour and a per mile cost of $0.54 based upon the Internal Revenue Service announcement 
for2016. 

2.5. The $0.54 per mile rate shall fluctuate based upon the Internal Revenue Service 
announcements per Calendar Year for the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof. 

2.6. Payment shall be made to the name and address identified in the Contract as the "Contractor" 
unless: (a) the Contractor has authorized a different name and mailing address in writing or; 
(b) authorized a different name and mailing address in an official State of New Hampshire 
Contracto.r Registration Application Form; or (c) unless a court of law specifies otherwise. 
The Contractor shall not invoice federal tax. The State's tax-exempt certificate number is 
0260006 l 8W. 

2.7. The Contractor's shall follow the State's Fiscal Year Calendar for budgeting purpose. 
Original Contract Period shall commence on July I, 2016 and end on June 30, 2018. 

3. Appropriation of Funding 
3.1. The Contraetor shall agree that funds expended, if applicable, for the purpose of the Contract 

. must be appropriated by the General Court of the State of New Hampshire for each State 
fiscal year included within the Contract period. Therefore, the Contract shall automatically . 
terminate without penalty or termination costs if such funds are not fully appropriated. 
3.1.1. In the event that funds are not fully appropriated for the Contract, the Contractor shall 

not prohibit or otherwise limit NH Department of Corrections the right to pursue and 
contract for alteml\le solutions and remedies as deemed necessary for the conduct of 
State government affairs. 

3.1.2. The requirements stated in this paragraph shall apply to any amendment/renewal or 
the execution of any option to extend the Contract. 

Promoting Pablle s.rety lhrough Integrity, Resptet, Proresslonallsm. Collabondoa and AccouatablUty 

,Statt of NH, Dqtutmml o/Corrtdions 
Division o/MtdJtal & Foraaslc Savlca 

RFP U-10-GFMED, do!lng d4J<: 411112011 
· Pagd'{// 

Vendor Inlll1Ls:-IJ!--



Section D: Special Pr_ovlslons, Exhibit C 

I. Special Provisions: 

Special Provisions 
Exhibit C 

I. I. · There are no additional provisions set forth in this Exhibit, Special Provisions, to be 
incorporated as part of this Contract. 

The remainder ortbls page Is Intentionally blank. 

Promoting Public Sarecy tbrouab Integrity, Respect. Proressloaallsm, CoUaboratlon a~d AccouatabWty 

Stale of NH, Departmtnl o/Comctloru 
DMslon of M•diml & For01Slc Suvlas 

RFP JUJ-GFMED, dosln1 dllt<: SIJJ/2016 Porjf JJ 

Vendor lnltlats: 
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CERTIFICATE 

I, William M.·Gal'dher, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby 

•certify tha\ GA THOLIC MEDICAL CENTERis a New Hampshire nonprofit c9rporation 

foi"fried Novembei' 7, 1974. i fu11her certify thatit is in good standing as far· as this office 

'is concerned, having filed. th:e.return(s) and paid the fees req11ired,by law. 
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In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto 
set my hand' and cause to 6e affixeil 
the Seat of the State ofN~:w H!!lllpshire, 
this 131h day of May A.D: 2015 

~~ 
William M. Gardnel' 

Secretary of State 



Business Entity 

Search. 
By Business Nania 
By Busine$$·1D 
By.Registered. Agent 

Annu,.1 Rep9rt 
File Online 

Guidelines 
Name Availability 
Name Appeal Process 

PigeJ of2 

Corporation Division 

Date: 6/112016 Filecl Documel'lts 
(Annual Report;.Hlstory, View Images, etc.)' 

Business Name l::fistory 

Name Name Type 
CATHOLIC MEDICAL 'CENTER Legal 
CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER PreVLegal 
CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HOSPITAL Prev Legal 

Non-Profit Corporation - Domestic - lnfi:>rmation 
_Business ID: 62116_ 
S!at.us:· 

Entity Creation Date: 

Principal Office·Address: 

Principal Mailing Address: 
Expiration Date: 
Last Annual Rep()rt Flied Oate: 
Las.t Annual Report Flied: 

R!lgistered Agent 
Agent Name: 
Office Address: 
-M~illng Ad.dress: 

Good Standing 

1117/1974 

1QO McGregor St 
Attn Corporaie Compliance 
Manchester NH 03102 
No Address 
Perpetual 
12130/2015 4:30:00 PM 
2015 

No Address 
Na A_ddre_ss 

Important Note: The status reflected for eac.h entity 011 this websife only 
refers_ to the status of the entity's fili_ng requireme11ts wl_th this: office. It does 
·not necessarily reflect the disciplinary status of the entity with anY. state 
agency. Requests for disciplinary Information should be directed to agencies 
with licensing or other reg11latory authority overt/le entity. 

___ • ___ ...,_,..,_...,_ ""'·~ '"'" -'--•~-• - _.. ' •• r '""'•,T•r 

-"" ':Iii~ (': 
cir~~~~~~ 

Privacy Polfc,Y I Accesslblllty Polley / ·Site Map I Contact Us 

https://www.sos.nh.gov/Corporare/soskb/Corp.asp?377486 611/2016 



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 

I, Neil Levesoue. Officer and Secretary, of Catholic Medical Center, do hereby certify that: 

1. I am the duly elected Secretary of the Board ofDirectorli of Catholic Medical Center, a non 

profit corporation; 

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of 

Directors of the Corporation, duly held on April 21, 2016. 

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a Request for Proposal (RFP) with the 

State of New H~pshire, acting through its Department of Corrections, Division of 

Administration, for the provision of· Tpretjent and OulJ!lltient Hosnital Medical Seryices. 

RESOLVED: That the President & CEO is hereby authorized on behalf of this 

Corporation to enter into said Request for Proposal (RFP) with the State and to execute 

any and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any amendments, 

revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or 

appropriate. 

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and 

effect as of April 21, 2016. 

4. Joseph Pene. MD is the duly elected President and CEO of the Corporation. 

IN WITN'ESS WHEREOF, I have·hereunto set my hand as the Officer Secretary of the 

· corporation this April 21, 2016. 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH 

Neil 



ACORY CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (IHllDDIYYYYI 

!liQ7/2017 Ii..,.....---
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER DF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS. CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If tho certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the tenns and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in Heu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT 
ffAMJi: MARSH USA. INC. P~.QNE _ -

1-r~ Nol· 99 HIGH STREET 
BOSTON, WI 02110 i~~CC• 
Alln: Boston.cel1reqUeS!@Mar"1.com Fax: 212-94s-4377 -

INSURE~SI AfFORDfNG COVERAGE NAIC• 

715651·ALL·GAWXP·17·18 - ------- ·-- - INSURER A: Pfo 5e1ed lnsmillce Company ·----
INSURED INSURER e : Safety Natiooal caswity Cap. 15105 

CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
INSURER c : Arch Specialt/ Insurance COrfllany 21199 100 P&:GREGOR STREET ·-MANCHESTER, NH 03102 INSURER D: 

INSURERE: -
INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-007841686-14 REVISION NUMBER: 10 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FDR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO All THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHO\fm MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

~~ TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER .&SM~~ 1.~c:.~ UYITS 

A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 002NtfJOO!l1605~ 07/01/2017 0711)1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000 -:::J C~E [!] OCCUR ~ - s 50,000 

MED EXP tllnu one""""""} s 5,000 - PERSONAL & ADV INJURY- s 1,000,000 ,__ 
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000 µ:i POLICY D ~fc?r D LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/OP AGG s 3,000,000 

OTHER: s 
AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY fec:1~~lN.GlE lJMJT • 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s - All OWNED - SCHEDULED 
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per a::cider1) S - -

NON-OWNED PROPE~TY DAMAGE 
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS • - - • c x UMBRELLA UAB 

MOCCUR 
UHL0050896-05 07/01/2017 07/0112018 EACH OCCURRENCE s 5,000,000 -

EXCESSUAB X CLAIMS-MADE AGGRE~TE s 5,000.000 

OED I I RETENTIONS s 
B WORKERS COMPENSATION SP4053316 07/01/2017 07/01/2018 x I~~~-- I I••"· AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
~ NIA E.l EACH ACCIDENT • 1.000.000 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDeD1 
(Mandatcxy In NH) 'SIR $750,000 E.l. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE S 1,000,000 

grssc~ ~PERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT • 1.000.000 

DESCRJPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlllonal Remarll• SctiedUJe, maw- be attached If more apace Is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

STATE OF NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
P.O. BOX 1800 THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
CONCORD, NH 03302 ACCORDANCE Wini THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
of Marsh USA Inc. 

; Susan Molloy ,,,.!... 4 ...... ?><.• '-/!.• ~ 
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All nghls reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2014101) 
I 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



~ 
1._C9_,RD" CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDDIYYYY) 

1)6.13(1/2ll 15 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A .MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BE'IWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: II th• certlflcate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and condlUons of the pollcy, certain pollcles may require an endorsement A statement on this certlflcat& does not confer rights to the 
certlHcate holder In lieu of such endoraement(o). 

PRODUCER ~ MARSH USA, INC. l!'M .. _ .. 
99 HIGH STREET ~.H.2ft~ -~·. 
BOSTON, MA 02110 ~,MAIL 

Al1n: Boslon~Ma1sl1.com Fex: 212·948-4377 
INS'm"'"'S' AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI 

715&51-G\UWMS.16 INSURER A : Pro Selacl lnsurance COmpany 
INSURED INSURER e : NIA lifA 

CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 
INSURER c: Arch Spedalty 1""'""'8 Qxnpany ~1199 100 MCGREG!Jl STREET 

MANCHESTER, NH 03102 INSURER D : Sa~ly Nalianal Casually C<lp. 15105 

lNSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· NYc.o07841686-11 REVISION NUMBER·10 . 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM DR CONDffiON OF ANY CONTRACT DR OTHER DOCUMENT l'l!TH RESPECT TO IMilCH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS. 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDffiONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

i~.fill TYPEOFINSURANCE BH PCUCYNUMBER ~ POUCV UMJTS 

A X COMUERClAl GENERAL UAB!UTY ·22596GL 07it11l2015 07m1l2016 EACH OCCURRENCE • 1,000,000 

:::::: ::::J ClAIMs-MADE 0 OCCUR ~ s 50,000 
MED EXP t.11. .... ano nt!BMl • 5,000 

t-
1,000,000 PERSONAL & ADVINJUR'r' • t-

GEN'L AGGREGATE UM.IT APPLIES PER: GENERAL.AGGREGATE • 3,000,000 

~POLICY D ~8r D LOC PRODUCTS- COMPICPAGG • 3,000,000 

OTHER: • 
AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY 

~1 .. ___ .. 11 • t-
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (PerperlOfl) • - ALLOY.NED - SCHEDULED BOOILY INJURY (Ptr acc:idt:nQ S - AUTOS - ~~D ··- RTYDAMAGE • - HIRED AUTOS - AUTOS 

• 
c x UMBRELLA UAB 

M:~E 
UHL005089&03 07i01/2015 0711)1/2016 EACH OCCURRENCE s 5,000,000 - EXCESSUAB AGGREGATE • 5,000,000 

OED I I RETI!NTIONI • 
D WORKERS COMPENSA1lON SP4053316 . 0711>1/2015 07I01/2016 I~~~~ I 11!,;~ 

AND EMPLOYERS" UABlU1'Y YIN 
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE. 

~ NIA 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT • 1,000,000 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
SIR 1750,000 (Uand1lary In NH) E.L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEI • 1,000,000 

~~:= 'IJ'~ERATIONS 1*0w E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT $ 1,000,000 

DE$CRJPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS IVEHICt.ES (ACORD 101, Mdltlonll Rama.lb Schedule, rr11y 1M 1ttlched If mo'9 •Pl" JI 1'9qulr9dl 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

STATE OF NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
P.O. BOX tSDS THE EXPIRATION DATE . THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
CONCORD, NH 03302 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

. 

AUTHORIZED RfPRESENTAllVE 
or Marwh USA Inc. 

' 
Susan Molloy · ~-· Q~ -,n. .. "."' ~ 

© 1988·2014 A CORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo ara ~glstarad marks of ACORD 



==CMC 
NH Department of Corrections 
Jennifer Lind, Contracts Administrator 
Main Building-Gov. Hugh J. Gallen State Office 
Park South Complex 
lOS Pleasant Street - Room 324, 3'" Floor 
Concord, NH 03301 

June 3, 2016 

Re: Request for certificate of insurance 

Dear Ms. Lind, 

This letter Is in response to the NHDOC request for an updated certificate of insurance related to 
services CMC will provide under the contract beginning July 1, 2016. 

CMC provided our current certificate of insurance with our proposal response that has an expiration 
date of June 30, 2016. We are currently completing_the Insurance binding prqcess and will continue to 
be insured when the NHDOC contract begins. I anticipate obtaining the new certificate by June 28, 2016. 
I want to assure all involved in this process that CMC is currently insured and will continue to be insured 

for the life of our contract with the State of NH. 

Sincere!y, 

-- r:i1':-::l;e ~-t ~·/J"> .( ~ 
/ ,,.. /"' ~· 

Kathy Hebert-Morello 

Risk Manager 



New Hampshire Department of Corrections 
Division of Administration 

Contract/Grant Unit 

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form 

The New Hampshire Office of the Attorney General requires that the Request for Proposal (RFP) package inform 
all proposal submitters of the State of New Hampshire's general liability insurance requirements. The limits of 
liability required are dependent upon your corporation's legal formation, and the annual total amount of contract 
work with the State of New Hampshire. 

Please select only ONE of the chcckboxes below that best describes your corporation's legal formation and 
. annual total amount of contract work with the State of New Hampshire: 

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 50l(c) (3) contractots whose annual gross amount of contract work 
with the State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp. 2006): Tile general liability insurance 
requirements of standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 50l(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state docs not exceed 
$500,000, ls comprehensive general liability insurance in amounts ofnot less than $1,000,000 per claim or 
occilrrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified. 

c The contractor certifies that it IS a 501 ( c) (3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract work 
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500,000. 

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractots who do not qualify for RSA 21-1: 13, XIV, (Supp. 
2006), Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor 
shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain 
and maintain in force, both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability 
insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 per incident or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines 
contract activities are a risk of lower liability. 

tJ (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV 
(Supp. 2006). 

Please indicate your current comprehensive general liability coverage limits below, sign, date and return with 
your proposal package. · 

Per Incident/Occurrence $ .3/V/ General Aggregate 

y4///~ 
Signature & . (/ , Date 

This acknowledgement must be returned with your proposal. 



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the 
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 
164. As defined herein, "Business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of 
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 
"Covered Entity" shall mean the State ofNew Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Definitions 

a. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.50 I. 

b. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section 
164.501. 
c. "Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" in 45 C.FR 
Section 164.50 I. · 

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191. 

e. "Indiyidual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall 
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
I64.501(g). . 

f. "Privacy Ruic" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at 
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIP AA by the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services. 

g. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health information" 
in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or 
on behalf of Covered Entity. 

h. "Reauired by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term ''required by law" in 45 CFR Section 
164.501. 
i. "Secretarv " shall mean the. Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her 
designee. 

j. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health 
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45 
C;F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time. 

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information 

StaJeo/NH, Dqiollnwito/Corndlons 
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a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI) 
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement. 
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and 
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of 
the Privacy and Security Rule. 

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 
(iii) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity. 

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose Pill to a third party, 
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances fiom the 
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law 
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement fiom such third party 
to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it 
has obtained knowledge of such breach. 

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services 
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis 
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity bas an opportunity 
to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the 
Business Associate shall refrain fiom disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by 
additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and 
Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose 
PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Obligations and Actlyltles of Business Associate 
a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use 
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered 
Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becoming aware of such 
unauthorized use or disclosure or security incident. 

b. Business Associate shall use administrative, physical and technical safeguards that reasonably and 
appropriately protect the confidentiality, ·integrity and availability of protected health information, in 
electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in 
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as 
permitted by the Agreement. 

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records 
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate 
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance 
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. 

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI 
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restriction5 and conditions on the use and 
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under 
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the 
Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be 
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receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision # 13 of this Agreement for the purpose of 
use and disclosure of protected health information. 

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate 
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies 
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling 
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate 
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered 
Entity, to an individual In order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of 
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall 
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to 
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures 
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual· for an accounting of 
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528. 

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an 
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associaie shall make available to Covered Entity such 
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of 
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528. · 

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the 
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall witliin two (2) business days forward such request to 
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. 
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the 
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Ruic, the Business Associate shall 
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such 
response as soon as practicable. 

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate 
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or recl)ived by 
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes 
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise 
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, 
to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or 
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole 
discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall 
certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Obligations of Coyered Entity 
.a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy 
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such 
change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI. 
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b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of pennission 
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate 
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of 
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such 
restriction may affect Business Assoclate's use or disclosure of PHI. 

(S) Termination for Cause 

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately tenninate 
the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business 
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately tenninate 
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a 
time frame specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity detennines that neither termination nor cure is 
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary. 

(6) Miscellaneous 

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All tenns used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall 
have the same meaning as those tenns in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from time to 
time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the 
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended. 

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary 
to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with 
the changes in the requirements ofHIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal 
and state law. 

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with 
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to 
pennit Covered Entity to comply with HIP AA and the Privacy and Security Rule. 

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other tenns or 
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid tenn or condition; to this end the tenns 
and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or 
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protectio~ of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and 
indemnification provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the 
tennination of the Agreement. 

IN . WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE 
PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT. 

State o/NH. Dtpartmml o/Co"tdlons 
Dlvl.rton of Mtdlcal and Foren1lcServlu:s 

Pays 
Vendor Initials: 



NH Department of Corrections 
State ofNew Hampshire Agency Name 

!tJdk- (?6, 
it(gl;ature of Auth,orized Representative 

William L. Wrenn 
Authorized DOC Representative Name 

Commissioner 
Authorized DOC Representative Title 

~tfb 
Date 1 

Slate of NH, Dtpartmml o/CorrtcJions 
Division of Mtdlcal and Forau/cSuvlca 

Contractor Name 

ConA!:!1tative Signature 

Presidetrl -1 eEo 
Authorized Contractor Representative Title 

Date 

ParilfS 
Vendor Initials: rr-



NH PEPARIMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

COR 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shall consist of: 
a) Any substance or item whose possession in unlawful for the person or the general public 

possessing it including but not limited to: 
(I) narcotics 
(2) controlled drugs or 

, (3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them. 
b) Any firearm, simulated firearm, or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a 

i>erson, animal or target. 
c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a person, 

animal or target. 
d) Any explosive device, bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device 

including primers, primer cord, explosive powder or similar items or simulations of these 
items. . 

e) Any drug item, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in such 
quantities that a person would suffer intoxication or Illness if the entire available quantity 
were consumed alone or in combination with other available substances. 

f) Any intoxicating beverage. 
g) Sums of money or negotiable instruments in excess of$100.00. 
h) Lock-picking kits or tools or instruments on picking locks, making keys or obtaining 

surreptitious entry or exit 
i) The following types of items in the possession of an individual who is not In a vehicle, (but 

shall not be contraband if stored in a secured vehicle): 
j) Knives and knife-like weapons, clubs and club-like weapons, 

(I) tobacco, alcohol, drugs including prescription drugs unless prior approval is 
granted in writing by the facility Warden/designee, or Director/designee, 

(2) maps of the prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of 
the facilities, its grounds or its vicinity, 

(3) pornography or pictures of visitors or prospective visitors undressed, 
(4) cell phones and radios capable of monitoring or transmitting on the police band in 

the possession of other than law enforcement officials, 
(S) identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the 

person to whom properly issued, 
(6) ropes, saws, grappling hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustaches, 

cutting wheels or string rope or line impregnated with cutting material or similar 
· items to facilitate escapes, 

(7) balloons, condoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers which could 
facilitate transfer of contraband. 



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, transport, introduction, use, 
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grounds without prior approval of the commissioner of 
corrections or his designee is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25. 

COR 307.03 Searches and Inspections Authorized. 

a) Any person or property on state prison grounds shall be subject to search io disc0vcr 
contraband ... 
Travel onto prison grounds shall constitute implied consent to search for contraband. In such 
cases where implied consent exists, the visitor will be given a choice of either consenting to 
the search or immediately leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rille however, prevents 
non-consensual searches in situations where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is 
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New 
Hampshire concerning search, seizure and arrest 

b) All motor vehicles parked on prison grounds shall be locked and have the keys removed. 
Custodial persoMel shall check to insure that vehicles are locked and shall visually inspect 
the plain- view Interior of the vehicles. Vehicles discovered unlocked shall be searched to 
insure that no contraband is present Contraband discovered during searches shall be 
confiscated for evidence, as shall contraband discovered during plain-view inspections. 

c) All persons entering the facilities to visit with residents or staff, or to perfonn services at the 
facilities or to tour the facilities shall be subject to having their persons checked. All items 
and clothing carried into the institution shall be searched for contraband. 

Joseph ~epe.. MD -v.-6d? 
Name Date 

wt?t: 
Date Witness Nam 

.~~LU,v 
Signa;;n; 



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
RULES OF CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES 

1: Engaging in any of the following activities with persons under departmental control is strictly 
prohibited: 

a. Any coµtact, including correspondence, other than in the perfonnance of your 
services for which you have been contracted. · 

b. Giving or selling of anything 
c. Accepting or buying anything 

2. Any person providing contract services who is found to be under the influence of intoxicants or 
drugs will be removed from facility grounds and barred from future entry to the NH Department 
of Corrections property. 

3. Possession of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hampshire code of 
Administrative Rules, COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New 
Hampshire and may result in legal action under RSA 622:24 or other statutes. 

4. In the event of any emergency situation, i.e., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the 
instructions of the escorting staff or report Immediately to the closest available staff. 

5. All rules, regulations and policies of the NH Department of Corrections are designed for the 
safety of the staff, visitors and residents, the security of the facility and an orderly flow of 
necessmy movement and activities. If unsure of any policy and procedure, .ask for immediate 
assistance from a staff member. 

6. Harassment and discrimination directed toward anyone based on sex, race, creed, color, national 
origin or age are illegal under federal and state Jaws and will not be tolerated in the work place. 
Maintenance of a discriminatory work environment is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to 
observe the law and will be subject to removal for fuiling to do so. 

7. During the perfonnance of your services you are responsible to the facility administrator, and by 
your signature below, agree to abide by ali the rules, regulations, policies.and procedures of the 
NH Department of Corrections and the State of New Hampshire. 

8. In lieu of .Contracted staff participating in the Corrections ·Academy, the Vendor through the 
Commissioner or his designees will establish a training/orientation facilitated by the Vendor to 
supplement this requirement and appropriate orient Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, polices 
and procedures of the Department ofC ions and the State ofNew Hampshire. 

~~hP~.~ Ybfe 
Name Date 

Witness Name 



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
.CQNFIDENT!ALITY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT 

I understand and agree that all employed by the organization/agency I represent must abide by all rules, 
regulations and laws of the State of New Hampshire and the NH Department of Corrections that relate to 
the confidentiality of records and all other privileged information. 

I further agree that all employed by or subcontracted through the organization I represent are not to 
discuss any confidential or privileged information with family, friends or any persons not professionally 
involved with the NH Department of Corrections. If inmates or residents of the NH Department of 
Corrections, or, anyone outside of the NH Department of Corrections' employ approaches any of the our 
organization's employees or subcontractors and requests information, the staff7employees of the 
organization I represent will immediately contact their supervisor, notify the NH Department of 
Corrections, and file an incident report or statement report with the appropriate NH Department of 
Corrections representative. 

Any violation of the above may result in immediate termination of any and all eontractual obligations . 

...)~ t>qe I /V\D 
Name Date 

])or6, L. l.efrh 
Witness N e 

'l/aJ~(. 
Date. 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

DMSION OF ADMINISTRATION 
P.O. BOX 1808 

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806 

803-271-6610 FAX: 808-271-6639 
TDD AcCeu: 1-800-735-2964 

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 

William L Wrenn 
,Commls1loner 

Doreen Wittenberg 
Director 

The Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Ruic August 2012) is a federal law 
established to address the elimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within 
correctional systems and detention facilities. This Act applies to all correctional facilities, including 
prisons, jails, juvenile facilities and community corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve 
the following conduct: 

• Resident-on-resident sexual assault 
• Resident-on-resident abusive sexual contact 
• Staff sexual misconduct 
• Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident 

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and 
information gathering. The NH Department of Corrections· has zero 'tolerance relating to the sexual 
assault/rape of offenders and recognizes these offenders as crime victims. Due to this recognition and 
adherence to the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003, the NH Department of Corrections 
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following: 

• Contractor/subcontractor misconduct 
• Contractor/subcontractor harassment, assault of a resident 

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I aclmowledge that I have 
been provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 Public Law I 08-79-Seot. 4. 
2003 and have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of 
Corrections, sexual conduct between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and offenders is prohibited. Sexual 
harassment or sexual misconduct involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2, 632cA:3 
and 632-A:4, Chapter 632-A: Sexual Assault and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecution. 

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I understand that I shall 
inform all employees of the Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning PREA, 
RSA 632-A:2, RSA 632-A:3, RSA 632-A:4 and departmental policies including NHDOC PPD 5.19 -
PREA; NHDOC Admjnistrative Rules. Conduct and Confidentiality Information regarding my conduct, 
reporting of incidents and treatment of those under the supervision of the NH Department of Corrections. 
(Ref. RSA Chapter 632-A, NHDOC PPD 5.19 and Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons 
Providing Contract Services, Confidentiality of Information Agreement). 

Name (print): -::~~o_s-::e-::-"-p_l-\--:H-:C~""pe--'1'-:"M __ D ____ _ 
(Name of act Signatory) 

Promoting Public Safety through lutegrity, Respect, Professlonallsm, CollaboraUon •nd AccountabWty 



Catholic Medical Center 
Manchester, NH 

has been Accredited by 

The Joint Commission 
Which h11s surveyed !his organizalion and found ii to 111ect 1he requirements for the · 

Hospital Accreditation Program 

Dece1nber 5, 2014 
Accreditalion is custoinurily valid for up lo 36 monlhs. 

11)054~7 

Pdn1!Rttiriin l>J~: 1111<.i201,: 

ffikf C::~~d_ 
M"k R.l"h>•iln, MD, fl\11'. MPP, Mrll 

P,"..,;i!k"nl 

111• Johll Commissioo is Oil indcpondont, nOl-for-prolil noli<Xlnl body that., ....... the ..rciy and qualhy orhonllh """' and 
01hcr sorvic:es provided in ueerali1ed organizations. lnfonnotion about aeen:dital arganim1io1" mD)" be provided directly ta 
111c Joinl Commission al l..S00-99.1°6610. lnfonna1ion regarding a..:r.-ditation and tho aoercdi1111ion perfom1ancc of 
individual organi:mlions can be obtiincd lhrough The Joint Com1ni~sion•5 \\'Cb 5itc al ''''"vJoi11tconm1issio11.org. 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

OFFICE OF OPERATIONS SUPPORT 
HEALTH FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION 

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 

ANNUAL LICENSE CERTIFICATE 
Under provisions of New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter RSA 151, this annual license certificate lslssuedto: 

Name: CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 

. located at: 100 MCGREGOR STREET 
MANCHESTER NH 03102 

To Operate: Hospital 
This annual licens~ certificate Is effective under the conditions and for the period stated below: 

License#: -

Effective Date: 01/01/2016 
Administrator: JOSEPH PEPE, MO 
Medical Dlrettor: W!UIAM GOODMAN, MD 

Number of Beds: 330 

EFFECTIVE 9/11/15 NEW MEDICAL DIRECTOR IS WILLIAM 
GOODMAN 

Expiration Date: 12/31/2016 

~ P. 0.-1~· 
Senior Division Director 



- Practice 
Provider Last Provider Arst Practice Location Street location Street Practice Location Lo<atlon 

Nome Name Ucensefv"" Practice Name Address Line 1 Address line 2 Citv Name ZioCode Tele...,one Number 
Allen David PA·C New En nd Heart Center 100 McGrePor Street Manchester 03102 (603) 663-6894 
Ari;de Wllllam PA-C Willowbend Famllv PracUce s WHhln~on Place Suite 1A Be<ffool 03110 603-663-8060 

"' ello Ro~• PA-C New Enoland Heart Center 100 McGrer:or Street M•nd>est., 03102 603-<69-0413 
Baltus Mamsa MD Granite State lntemal Medicine 188Rt101 Be<ffool 03102 603-314-4700 
Baribeau Yvon MD tardlothoratk: Sureical Associates 100 McGre~or Street SU!te B600A Manchm:l!r 03102 f603166l-6340 
Barula-Banuer "'" MD Amoskeal! PrimaN care 1650 Elm St 5ulte302 Mand>esm 03101 60Hll-3343 
Bt!audette Steven MD New nd Heart Center 100 McG-•or Street Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 
Be Cral• MD New En nd Heart Center 100 McGre""orStreet Mandl@Ster 03102 603 663-6894 
Blealdev Jeff rev MD New Elll"land Heart Center lOOMcG or Street M>n<hest., 03102 603 663-6894 

Bl!Rht Victoria APRN Willowbend Familv Practice 5 Washln"""'11 Place Sulte1A Be<ffool 03110 603 663-8060 
Boothhv Kathv APRN Obes"" Treatment Center 769 South Main Street 3rd Floor Man<hest .. 03102 603-663-73n 
Bottaul Tra APRN Wlllowbend Famllv Practice 5Washln n Place Sulte1A Bedford 03110 16031663-8060 

Brai:!don Sarah APRN Ureent care at Bedford 5 Washln.ton Place Suite 18 Bedfool 03110 16031314-4567 ... - ""'"' PA< ..... nd fleart Center lOOMtG or Street Manchester 03102 603-669-0413 

""""°" Gloria APRN New En<112od Heart Center lOOMtG or Street "'""'°""' 03102 60U69-0413 
ca ri l•ff MD Granite State Internal Medldne 188Rt101 Be<ffool 03110 16031314-4700 
Csmrrem D"'1d MD Cardlothoraclc ital Associates 100McG or Street SulteB600A Manchester 03102 603-663.s40 
ca Adrienne PA-C New~ nd Heartc.e:nter 100 McGre2or Street Mandi ester 03102 (6031663-6894 
(arvv11lup0 Robert MD New land Heart Center 100 McGte"Of Street Manchc$ter 03102 (603166H894 

earner °"'"" MD Queen Medical Associates TIS South Main Street 5ulte30D Manchester 03102 16031625-6198 
case Jessica PA< Sundcal Care Grouo ff1 M<G or Street Suite 3100 Manchester 03102 603-627-1887 
ca.to• Belinda MD Queen Medical Associates 775 South Main Street SU!te 30D "'"""""' 03102 (603 625-6198 

Catania Robert MD SU I CareGrou" 87 McGre•or Street Suite3100 Manchester 03102 . 1603 627-1887 

catan1' Robert MD Dbes Treatment Center 769 South Main Street 3td Floor Manchester D3102 '603 663-7377 
Chamoton Christle APRN New En nd Heart Center 100 McG~or Street Manchester 03102 (603 663 ..... 

Chrtsern!!r Jennifer APRN Amoskea11 PrlmaN care 1650ElmSt Suite 302 Manchester 03101 1603 62:H456 

Claussen .... n MD Fam!lv P1We.lclans of Manchester 57WebsterSt Suite 110 Manchester 03104 1603 662-6491 

0a ...... Carolvn MD Wlllowbend Fam\N Practice 5Washl on Place SUltelA Bedfonl 03110 '603 663-8060 

Cline Kendra APRN Lakeview Internal Medicine 27 LonclondenvTurnoike Hooloett 03106 603-314-5980 

Clutterbuck Wiiiiam MD Surll'lcal Care Grouo 87McG or Street SUlte 3100 Manchester 03102 603 627-1887 

Cochrane Christine DO Webster Street Internal Medicine 57 Webster St Manchester 03104 603 ........ 
Cohen Andrew MD New En1!1and Heart Center 100 M<G or Street Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 
Comn:u•na Roberta APRN Webster Street Internal Medicine: 57Webster5t Manchester 03104 603 ........ 
Condodemetrakv Steohanle APRN Goffstown PrlmaN Care 17ATatro Dr Suite 201 Goff>town 03045 603 314-4500 

Corriizan Debra APRN " p lclans of Manchester S7WebsterSt Suite 110 Ma-• 03104 603-622-6491 

D .. - MariNn APRN New Enoland Heart Center 100 McGrtl!'Dr Street Mandiester 03102 16031663-6894 

"""" Strattan MD Su,.. lea I Care Groun 87 McGret:or Stleet Sulte3100 ... -. 03102 (6031627-1887 

Davis Alison APRN New Ent:land Heart Center 100 McGre1:1or Street Manchester 03102 f6031663-6894 

Del.u<a Anne APRN Hooksett Prlmarv Care 11 Klmball Dr Unit 132 Hoob!tt 03106 603-663-1990 
De Ruslan PA-C New Enoland Heart Center lOOMcG Street Manchester 03102 1603' 663-6894 
DeSantis Me2an PA< SUrelcal Care Grouo 87McGre Street Suite 3100 Manchester 03103 '6031 627-1887 
Devine Judith MD Uhlent Care at Bedford 5 Wash!natnn Place Suite lB Bedford 03110 603-314-4567 

D•- Robert MD New E .. o,,,nd Heart Center 100McG or Street Manchester 03102 (603)663-6894 
DIPardo Carole PA< Cardlothoraclc Surokal Associates 100 McGre2or Street Suite6600A Manchester 03102 603-663-6340 



Doberstein .... APRN Amoskea2 Primarv care 1650ElmSt Suite 302 Manchester 03101 (6031623-6456 
Doiron Michael PA-C FamJN Phvslclans of Manchester 57 Webster St Suite 110 Manchester 03104 16031662-6491 
Dumais Jessica APRN Willowb@nd Famllv Pr.ittlce SWashln n Place Suite 1A Bedfonl 03110 '603 663-8060 
Eddlru:!er Jonathan MD New Eruiland Heart Center 100 McGreftir Street Manchester 03102 1603 663-6894 

'"' Leandro MD Su,.,.;,-,.1 care GrouD 87McG or Street Sulte3100 Manchester 03102 603 627-1887 
Rnk ..... MD New Enl>land Heart Center 100 McGre•nr Strttt Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 
Ann Jeanne APRN New En,land Heart Center 100 McGre'°r Street Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 

'""""" Phlllo MD New Eruiland Heart Center lOOMcGre rStreet Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 ,_. 
James MD. New En., land Heart Center 100 McGre.,or Street Mandiester 03102 603 663-6834 

F catherine APRN Queen Qtv Med lea I Associates 775 South Main Street Suite 300 M•""""°' 03102 603 625-6198 

~er 
Patricia MD SundcalCare Grouo 87 McGre11:or Street Sulte3100 Monchesw 03102 603 627-1887 
Heather PA-<: u ..... nt Care at Bedford 5 Washl~"'n Place Suite 18 Bedfonl 03110 1603 314-4567 

Gauthier Melissa APRN Oba Treatment Center 769 South Main Street 3rd Roor Manchester 03102 603 663-7377 
Gllbert Rathael PA-C SUr.,lcal Csre Groun 87MtG rStreet Sulte3100 Manchester 03102 603 627-1887 
Goldbere Dav~ MD NewEn nd Heart Center 100 McGre-rStreet Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 
Gott Jonathan PA-C Queen ntv Medical Associates 775 South Main Street Suite 300 Manchester 03102 603 625-6198 
G..tt Wiiiiam MD New En2land Heart Center 100 McGre2or Street Mnnchester 03102 603 ........ 
Haas Rueda Vonda PA-C Amoskea" PrimaN care 1650 Elm St Suite302 Manchester 03101 603 623-6456 
Hanton Steohen MD New En.,land Heart Center 100 McG~Street Manchester 03102 603 ........ 
"'""' Connor MD New Enllland Heart Center 100 McGr Street Manchester 03102 603 ........ 
How" Zoe APRN New EnRland Heart Center lOOMcG ..... Manchester 03102 603 ..,..... 
HUI Emilv PA-C SUr•lcal Care Groun 87McG or Street Sulte3100 Manchester 03102 603 627·1887 
H Scott MD Unent care at Bedford 5Wash n Place Suite 18 Bedfonl 03110 603 314-4567 
Houston Nicole APRN Cardlothoracic SunrJcal Associates 100 MtGraoor Street Suite B600A Manchester 03102 603-663-6341> 
lmon To""' MD Survlcal Care Groun 87 McGresmr Street Suite 3100 Manchester 03102 603-527-1887 
Jameson Jennifer MD Ut'l!ent Care at Bedford 5 Washlneton Place SUJte 18 Bedfonl 03110 603 314-4567 

Joffe Samuel MD New En2land Heart Center 100 McGraoorStreet Mnnchester 03102 603 663-6894 
Ktaa-Klasmler ~m APRN CMC-Moblle Communttv Health 195 McG •St LU Manchester 03102 603 w.8716 

""" Jnmle MD New En"land Heart Center 100 McGremr Street Manchester 03102 603 ..,..... 
Klnbrook Mlthelle MD Fnmllv Health and Wellness Center at Bedford 188 Rt101 Bedfonl 03110 603-663-8052 

"" Am• PA-C Faml!v pttucicJans of Manchester 57 Webster St Suite 110 Manchester 03104 603-622-6491 

ICleakows• Alida APRN Webster Street Internal Medicine 57 Webster St Manchester 03104 603 ..,._. 
Klementowla .... , MD NewE nd Heart Center 100 MtGreoor Street Mandlester 03102 603 ........ 

A MD Amoskeasz Prlmarv Care 1650Elm5t Sulte302 Manchester 03101 603 623-6456 

lamnman •• "' APRN Webster Street Internal Medicine 57 Webster st Manchester 03104 603 -laridn Robert MD Webster Street Internal Medicine 57 Webster St Manchester 03104 603 -leBlanc Am• PA-C New En .. land Heart Center 100 McGre•or Street Manchester 03102 1603 ..,..... 
Le81anc Scott MD Webster Street Internal Medicine 57 Webster St Moochest., 03104 1603 668-6489 

LeG•~ Al n APRN Pain Oink 89 MtGre•or Street Manthester 03102 603·314-4700 

Ueblinl! Molk MD New En.,land Heart Center 100 McGre11:or Stm:t Manchester 03102 16031663-6894 

lun«UleSCU Ovldiu MD Lakeview Internal Medicine 27 londonclerrv Tumoilte 
_ ... tt 

03106 16031314-5980 

MacGreii:or Jiii APRN Famltv Health and Wellness Center at Bedford 188 Route 101 Bedford 03110 603' 663-8052 

Moho• Jeanne-Marie MD New En<>lnnd Heart Center 100 McGrevor Street Manchester 03102 603-669-0413 

Mahon Paula MD CMC-Moblle Communltv Health lfnmllies In Transit 177 Lake Annue Manthester 03103 603-663·8718 

Mahon Paula MO CMC ~New Horizons 199 Manchester Str~t Manchester 03103 603-663-8718 

M"'°n Patrick MO SU rel cal care Grouo 87 McGret.or Street Suite 3100 Manchester 03102 1603 627-1887 
Man .. um Joseph PA-C Uraent Care at Bedford SWashl n Plate Suite 18 Bedfonl 03110 1603 314-4567 
Manson Jo Anne PA-C New En.,land Heart Center 100 McGtemr Street Manchester 03102 '603 663-6894 

Mattln Micha el MD Wlllowbend FamilY Practice 5 Wash!,..--. .. Plate Suite 1A Bedford 03110 1603 663-8060 



Mazza Daniel DO u ... ent Care at Bedford SWashin n Place SultelB Bedfonl 03110 f603131~567 

McMahon Halev PA-C Ul'P'ent Care at Bedford SWashln n Place Suite 310 Manchester 03110 603-31~567 

McOslcer Jamie PA-C cardlothoracic Sumlcal Associates 100 McGregor Street Suite S600A M"""'5te• 03102 16031663-6340 
Meyer Pamela APRN Surglcal care Groun 87McG or Street Sulte3100 Manchester 03102 ~27-1887 

Michaud Steven MD Goffstown Pr1marv care 17A. Tetro Dr SU\te201 Goff-n 0304S 16031314-4500 
Mollov Anne APRN Granite State Internal Medidne 188Rt101 Bedfonl 03110 (603131-4-4700 

"'""' Hollu APRN FamI"' Health and Wel!nm Center at Bedford 188Rt101 Bedfonl 03110 603-663-8052 
O'Learv M" n APRN Suroical care Groun 87McGre-rStreet Suite 3100 Mandleste• 03102 r6031627-1887 
Olsen Alison PA-C Sura lea I care Groun 87McG or Street Suite 3100 Mal\Chester 03102 603-627-1887 
Olsen Alison PA-C ObesitVTreatment Center 769 South Main Street 3rd Floor Maod>•st<" 03102 1603 663-7377 

"""'" Jiii APRN Faml"' Health and Wellness Center at Bedford 189 Route 101 Bedfonl 03110 (603 663-8052 

P<•danl Jennifer MD Faml111 Health and Wi!Uneu Center at Bedford 189 Route 101 Bedfonl 03110 (603 663-8052 
Pelletier Hollv PA-c Famllv P cians of Manchester 57 Webster St SUlte 110 Manchester 03104 (603 662-6491 
Pendleton David PA-c .,,, ... u Medical As$odates ns South Main street SUlte300 Ma""'""" 03102 1603 625-6198 ..... Alfredo MD Hooksett Prima"' care 11Klmbal1Dr Unit132 H-.it 03106 1603 663-1990 

Penon Brittanv . PA-C cardiothoracie suroical Associates lOOMcG •Street B600A Manchester 03102 603-663-6340 
Pe Danlelle PA-C u nt Care at Bedford 5 Washl~n Place Sulte:18 Bedfonl 03110 60J.314-4S67 

Petrin Cannen APRN New En~Jand Heart Center 100 McG or Street Manchester 03102 16031663--6894 

Philbin Danlel MD Now land Heart ~ter lOOM<G rStreet Manchester 03102 (603) 663-6894 

p"'" ldo MD New En .. land Heart Center lOOM<G or Street Manchester 03102 16031663-6894 

"""""'" James MD Su ICareGroun lf1 M<G or Street Suite 3100 Manchester 03102 603-627-1887 

' Christina APRN Granite State Internal Medicine 188Rt101 Bedfonl 03110 l6031314-4700 

Scott L APRN New En'"'"nd Heart Center 100 McG-·or Street Manchester 03102 (603)663-6894 

Stull Melissa MD Queen Medtcal Assodates ns South Main street SUite300 Manchester 03102 [6031625-fil.98 

Shu IJ~ne APRN Cardiothoracic Sur<>ical Associates 100 M(Greuor Street B6llOA Mandleste• 03102 603-663-6340 

Slrols Jennifer MD Granite State Internal Medicine 188 Rt 101 Bedfonl 03110 (603 314-4700 

s e Tai APRN Goffstown Prlmarv Care 17ATatroDr Sulte201 ·- D304S (603 314-4SOO 

Snow Deborah MD Obes"" Treatment Center 769 South Maln Street 3rd Floor Manchester 03102 '603 663-73n 

s~' Lawrence APRN HJ .. hlanderWnv lntemal Medicine 1 Hlahlander W= Manchester 03103 1603 314-5900 

Stahl Keith MD. Famllv Health and Wellness Center at Bedford 188 Route 101 Bedfonl 03110 1603 663-8052 

St.Onge Carole APRN Catholk Medlcal ~nter -Wound Cink: 88M<G Street Suite 1018 Manchester 03102 60H63-6000 

s n Thomas MD Granite State Internal Medicine 188 Rt101 Bedford 03110 603 314-4700 

Ta"" Mal=rzata MD HJahlander Way Internal Medldne 1 H'-'-landerWav Mand>•"'" 03103 603 314-5900 

Thom n Jennifer APRN New England Heart Center 100 McG-"or Street Man<hestu 03102 603 66 ...... 

llbbs Heather PA-c New Ene:land Heart center 100McGre SU.et Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 

Tambasco Monica APRN U""ent Care at Bedford swash Place Suite 18. Bedford 03110 60]..314-4567 

Tomolonls Richard MD 5u"'lcal care Groun 87McG ''""" Sulte3100 Manchester 03102 603 627-1887 

Uh!enhake JJJI PA-c Su"'lcal care Groun 87 McG-or street Sulte3100 Mand>este• 03105 603 627-1887 

VanBuren Danlel MD NewE ncl Heart Center 100 McGre-rStreet Manchester 03102 603 663-6894 

Westbrook Benlamln MD tardlothoraclc Suni:Jcal Associates 100 McGre""r Street SUlte B600A. Manchester 03102 603 663-6340 

Windler Willlam MD Uraent care at Bedford SWashl n Place SuitelB Bedfonl 03110 603-314-4567 

Wood Michael MD 0 Treatment ~nt!!r 769 South Main Street 3rd Floor Manchester 03102 603 663-73n 

Wu And..w . MD Su cal care Groun 87 McGre"or Street SUite3100 Manchester 03102 603 627-1887 

Wu And"" MD Obesltv Treatment Center 769 South Main Street 3rd Floor Manchester 03102 603 663-Dn 

Ziemba Kristlne APRN New En nd Heart Center 100 McGreanr Street Mand>•"" 03102 603 663-6894 
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Position CY12Salary CY16 Salao: 
Chief Executive Officer 495,192 535;600 
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==CMC CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

POSITION TITLE: 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

11/12 

Exempt 

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer 
Finance 
President/CEO 

The EVP, CFO is responsible for the development, interpretation, coordination and administration of 
the system's policies on finance, accounting, insurance, investments, financing, internal controls and 
auditing. The position is also responsible for the maintenance of records and procedures required to 
adequately safeguard the assets of the system. The EVP, CFO participates in strategic planning, 
compatible with the system's objectives and financial business plan. 

Under the overall direction of the President/CEO, and within established departmental policies and 
procedures, the incumbent performs the following functions: 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Develops, interprets, coordinates and administers the corporate policies on finance, 
investments, insurance, accounting systems, internal controls and auditing. Maintains · 
knowledge of national, state and local economic conditions and determines their Impact on 
current operations. Keeps abreast of all regulatory activities which may lr:ifluence the fiscal 
management ofthe system. 

2. Prepares and presents consolidated, system-wide, operating and capital budgets to the Board 
of Trustees for their review and approval, in conjunction with the CEO. 

3. Reviews each service provider's business plan and correlates the plans with operating 
budgets for appropriateness. Provides a corporate-wide review process of actual performance 
against budget to ensure that operations are maintained within allocated funding levels. 
Develops and maintains a corporate-wide auditing system. · · 

4. Prepares and presents to management and the Board of Trustees periodic reports outlining 
the corporation's financial position in all areas by assets, liabilities, income, and expenses. 

5. Prepares and files all federal, state and local financial reports. 
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6. Prepares and ensures the distribution of any dividends, cash distribution or other.remuneration 
due Investors for the for-profit corporations. Files required financial information with the Office 
of the Secretary of State. 

7. Reviews and provides for current and adequate insurance protection to guard CMC from 
liability and/or loss. 

8. Researches and acquires funding for various corporate ventures and initiatives. 

9. Evaluates the system's rate structures and recommends changes, when needed. . 

10. Evaluates for management and the Board of Trustees, the system's objectives and programs 
as they relate to third-party reimbursement. 

11. Negotiates agreements with health maintenance organizations, preferred provider 
organizations, and outside groups contracting for healthcare services. 

12. Oversees the medical records and admissions functions. 

13. Participate5 in the functions and activities of the CMC Executive Management Team, including 
but not limited to serving on committees and task forces, preparing reports as requested, and 
representing administration as needed or requested. 

14. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in 
appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations aci:ording to 
location. 

15. Exercises care in the operation and use of equipment and reference materials. Maintains 
work area in an orderly mann~r. 

16. Is responsible for complying with and enforcing all established organizational and 
· departmental' policies and procedures. 

17. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget, and company matters. Maintains good 
communications; establishes and maintains positive working relationships with'employees, 
regulatory agencies, vendors, the public and among the hospital organizations. 

18. Performs similar or related duties as required or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions.of the job: · · 
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1. Ability to bend the body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist. Ability to extend 
hand(s} and arm(s} in .any direction. Ability to stand for sustained periods of time. ·Ability to move 
about on foot to accomplish tasks, particularly for.long .periods of time. Ability to raise objects from 
a lower to a higher position or moving objects horizontally from position to position. 

2. Ability to pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primanly with fingers rather than the whole and or arm 
as in handling. 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Incumbent must convey 
detailed questions to elicit information from others. 

4. Ability to exert up to 1 O pounds of force occasionally and or a negligible amount of force frequently 
·or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

5. The incumbent is subject to both environmental conditions and activities that occur inside and 
outside. 

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting, 
and extensive reading. 

7. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems 
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and 
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable 
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret 
results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibilitY. Direct and coordinate the work 
of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens} 

Limited 

• Generally works Monday through Friday day shift; expectation of evening, night, weekend 
scheduled or unscheduled requirements; periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational 
programs, etc. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• ~achelors Degree or a combination of related education, knowledge and related experience; 

Masters Degree in a related healthcare or business discipline preferred. 

Experience: 
• Sufficient previous experience as a Senior Level Manager in healthcare. 
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Standard of,Business Conduct 

Individuals.are required to refrain from participaiing in any activities.that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Centers Standards of Business Conciuct in 
any instanc;:e where you feel there is suspicion of fraud. or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
~tandE!rds of Busi.ness c:;onduct re·quires thai suspidop or kno\'ifledgfl of any person(s) in )!iolaiion of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Offieer. The extent to which you comply with the 
requiremel)tS containetj within \he Code will be a factor in evaluating your.overall job performance. 

I have been given a copy of this position description, and have. read and will comply with the 

expectaiions and requirements outlined in this pos,ition description. I understand th.at receipt of this 

position description is ncit meant to be constructed as or constitute a contract of employment.. 

Employee Name: ____________________________ _ 

Employee Signature:--------------- Date: __________ _ 

Manager Name:·----------------~--~--------~~-

Manager Signature:-.-----~---------- Date: __________ _ 

Disclaimer: 

The .above infonnation on this description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level 
.of work perfonned by employees within this classifjc~iion. It is not designed to contain or be 
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of 
employees assigned to this job. 

This job de§cription supersedes all other versions. 
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::CMC CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

EFFECTIV.E DATE: June,2014 

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt 

PO.SITION TITLE: VP, CIO 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: IS Executive 
REPORTS H>: . Executive Vice President I CFO 

POSITION SUMM.ARY: 

"-'n1<A>C~1101e,.n1i.n ~ ___ .. .,.,_ 

,.lllll. 
~ ~ ... ~-· ..,,, ... -·· ...... ,. ............. .. 

Responsible for all inforriiation.and communication systems for the Health System.Network, inclucjing 
vpice an9 data commuriicatjons networks, information systems business and clinical :applications, and 
other related· technologies as adopted by service lines and departments. Must ensure !lie .ccilitiriu6us 
delivery of available and responsive systems, and. timely and accurate data throughout Qaiholic 
Medical ~e.nter and its affiliates as appropriate. As a.member of the senior management team, 
formulates plans for maximizing !lie use of information technology in support of corporate business 
objectives. P_artjcip11tes with senior management. In a proactive manner to build strategic: plans for the 
organization through the effective collection, organization and delivery of critical information lei insure 
that information resources and services a.re in place to support:established business plans. Ma11ages 
a complex i.nfrastructure .supporting a diverse user base, utilizing applications provided by multiple 
vendors, including custom written -and designed applications. The user community resides across 
mu!tipl!l loca.lions. Thi? n(ltwork operates 24x7x365, supporting over 250 individual applications 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES; 

Under the general direction of the Executive Vice President/CFO' and within established policies and 
procedures, the irn:;_umbent performs the following functions: 

1. Directs and manages the information and communication technologies and services for fiscal, 
operational, clinical and d.ech;ion-support uses for CMG and its affili11tes. 

2. Provides strategic and tactical. planning, development, evaluation, and coqrdinaticm of th!! 
information and technology systems for the health care network. 

3. Facilitates communication between staff, management, vendors, and other technology 
resources within the organization. 

4. Responsible for the management of multiple information and communications systems and 
projects, including voice, data, imaging, and office automation. 
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5. Plans, develops, implements, maintains and continuously enhances all network hardware and 
software for the corporation 

6. Responsible for minimizing the Investment required to produce established service levels. This 
requires the incumbent to maintain contad with suppliers and leasers of equipment and 
supplies, and to maintain a current knowledge and awareness of technology, equipment, prices 
and terms of agreements. The incumbent subsequently evaluates all factors, performs 
appropriate cost/benefit analysis and favors alternatives that minimize costs commensurate with 
acceptable risks. Defines, develops, designs and implements plans and strategies to maintain 
state-of-the-art s_olutions. 

7. Designs, implements, and evaluates the systems that support end users in the productive use of 
computer hardware and software. · 

8. Develops and updates an information systems strategic plan for meeting current and future 
needs of CMC and its affiliates. 

9. Coordinates the core steering group, and insures that it functions as a mechanism which 
improves the overall value of IT consistent with CMC priorities. 

10. Serves as the principal developer of corporate policies and standards aimed at minimizing costs 
and maximizing controls related to the acquisition, implementation and operation of information 
and communication systems. 

11. Coordinates allocation of resources to provide high revels of service for development of new 
technology solutions to support CMC strategies and priorities. 

12. Provides periodic reports of IT activity, ·status, and costs to senior management, executive 
management, the board of directors, and various committees as required. 

13. Provides leadership to multidisciplinary task forces and committees in defining and acquiring 
technology solutions to meet business requirements and CMC strategic priorities. 

14. Participates in formal and informal CMC task forces and meetings involving planning, quality 
improvement, and other matters of priority to the Executive Management Team. 

15. Ascertains, establishes and offers education and training programs for existing and future users. 

16. Prepares, presents and administers plans, capital and operating budgets for the information 
services group. The Incumbent has responsibility for monitoring IT activities and.costs as they 

· relate to the overall utilization of resources required to meet corporate l/S targets. 

17. Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients, trains, supervises, directs, 
schedules and assigns work of subordinates. Outlines scope of authority as well as job 
responsibiHties of employees under supervision. Initiates and approves personnel actions 
including, but not limited to, hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, assigning, rewarding, 
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disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel. Prepares and conducts 
formal/informal performance evaluations and recommends merit increases. 

18. Negotiates all hardware, software and integration contracts, soliciting involvement and 
participation of other management team.members as appropriate. 

19. Provides direction and monitoring of progress on. major EDP/IS projects, Including the rapid 
mobilization of resources to diminish implementation time lines and organizational impacts. , 

20. Develops and implements user-training programs. 

21. Develops, implements and monitors the federal meaningful use requirements related to health · 
information technology to ensure successful timely compliance with the financial incentives. 

22. Interacts with senior management in determining systems needs, changes, improvements, and 
subsequently provides direction for new systems from project inception through installation and 
functional operation. 

23. Develops and executes plans and programs to inform and comrnunicate with users. 

24. The incumbent must take a corporate view of systems and problems, and generate strategies 
that are consistent with the .strategic goals of CMC, and in the best interest of the overall system. 

25. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Senior Management Team, including but 
not limited to servirig on committees and task forces, preparing reports as requested, and 
representing administration as needed or requested. 

26. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional 
affiliations to keep abreast of latest trends in field of expertise. 

27. Exercises care in the use and operation of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work 
area in a clean and organized manner. 

\. 

28. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, client/patient, budget and all company matters. 

29. Participates in appropriate role in disaster and fire drills, fires, and other emergency situations. 

30. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job: 
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1. Physical requirements include the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; raise 
objects from a lower to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position to position; 
pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole hand or arm; apply 
pressure to an object with fingers and palm; sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or 
fingers. 

2. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. 

3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discriminations 
in sound. 

4. Ability to exert up to 1 O pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently 
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

5. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures, 
accounting, transcription, computer terminal work, and extensive reading. 

6. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions 
and respond appropriately to unexpected situations. 

7. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations, 

8. Requires the ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing 
problems Where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the 
formulation and carrying out of policies; objectives and programs for major divisions or functions . 
. Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily 
evaluated, interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and 
coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: Category II (No exposure to blood borne path.ogens) 

PHI ACCESS: Limited 

WORK SCHEDULE: 
• Generally Monday through Friday, days; occasional requirements to cover special events, periodic 

overnight travel, etc. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Bachelor's degree in a related field required. 
• Advanced degree (MBA, Master of Health Care Administration, Master of Computer Science) 

preferred. · 

Experience: 
.. A minimum of fifteen years information systems management experience preferably in the 
. application and delivery of information system technologies in a health care environment. 

Page4of6 



• System integratiori experience implementing systems which Involve multiple vendors and 
multidisciplinary teams under specific schedules and budgets with committed deliverables. 

• Must have a strong background and experience with project management methodologies 
including a successful track record of large scale information systems project Implementations. 
Must understand and be capable of coordinating a healthcare business strategy to the application 
of information technology. Must be capable of anticipating the information technology needs of the 
organization as a result of the strategic.initiatives which have been established. 

• The successful candidate will have strong skills in information technology components including 
but not limited to local and wide area network topologies, hardware components, voice 
communieation technologies including tariffs and regulatory considerations. Knowledge of 
computer hardware and data base architectures, including relational, basic, objected based 
technologies, and electronic data exchange, programming languages, and fourth and fifth 
generation tools. The candida~e must have a strong understanding of the personal computer 
industry, the trends that drive II as well as the IT industry in general. 

• The candidate must have a background in business and clinical systems, including experience in 
their implementation in a hospital system with a strong ambulatory presence. Merger, conversion, 
and consolidation experience is a must. 

• The individual must be capable of evaluating the effectiveness .of the llS staff across a variety of 
disciplines including communications, systems development, operations, people management , 
strategic planning, and personal computer deployment and use. 

• Strong planning and accounting skills including the ability to construct strategic plans, analyze 
cash flows, along with the long term implications of capital and expense expenditures. 

• Strong communication skills including the ability to interact with executive level management, 
physicians, community business leaders, patients, employees and ag~ncies. The ability to speak 
in a public forum, present Ideas, and generate acceptance of concepts and strategies. · 

• Training and experience in contract law, and contract management, including the preparation and 
management of system integration contracts which have fixed time frames, penalties, and 
deliverables. Training and experience in the preparation and development of software license 
agreements. · 

• Training and experience in the development of Irr lease arrangements including step leases, 
capital leases, operating leases, and technology exchange leases. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there Is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) In violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the 
requirements contain~d within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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I have b.e.en Qiven a !=OPY of ihls position desc;ription, and have read and will comply with the 

expectations and require!11ef1ts outlined iri tl]is position description. I understand that receipt' 6f this 

position description is riot meanuo· be constructed as or .constitute a contract of employment: 

Em~loyee Name: _______ ~-----------------------

Employee Signature: _______________ Date:. __________ _ 

Mariag_er"Name: ______________________________ _ 

Ma·nager Signature: ________________ P!lt1:1:~--~--~-----

Disclaimer: 

The above information on this description has been cjesigried to indicate the general nature and level 
of work performed by employees within this :classification._ It is noJ designed to ~njain or l;le 
interpreteq as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of 
employees assigned to this job. 

This job description' superse_des all other versions. 
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::CMc· CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

POSITION TITLE: 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

August, 2013 

Exempt 

SVP, Clinical Operations I CNO 
Chief Nurse Officer 
Executive VP, CFO 

Administers the interpretation and implementation of the standards of nursing practice throughout 
CMC, assures tha~ competent, compassionate standards are uniformly applied in the provision of 
patient care across all service lines. Plans, organizes, implements and evaluates supportive and 
evaluative services that provide to all patient care and hospital areas mechanisms to achieve a clinical 
environment that provides for the comfort and safety of all patients. 

Supervises and directs patient car.e services leadership toward attainment of identified short- and 
long-term goals and objectives;. executes strategies and plans designed to achieve said objectives 
and collaborating with other hospital executives to meet organizational goals and objectives. 

Provides for an efficient and effective mechanism of communication that assures consistency across 
all service lines and within all hospital departments. Assists the Chief Executive Officer in the 

· administration of the hospital.· 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Under the general direction of the Executive VP, CFO and within established CMC and departmental 
policies and procedures, the incumbent performs the following functions: 

1. Interprets and oversees the implementation and evaluation of uniform quality standards for 
nursing practice that are approved by recognized experts and other accreditation agencies. 

2. Identifies and articulates the vision and strategic direction for the delivery of patient care and the 
discipline of Nursing acr.oss all patient care settings, directs and collaborates on the 
implementation of strategies to achieve them. 

3. Creates an environment in which collaboration is valued and excellence in clinical care, education, 
and research is promoted and achieved. 
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4. Establishes vision and is accountable for programs which support the nursing profession such as 
professional recognltlon programs, nursing leadership development, nursing research and nursing 
tuition programs. 

5. Oversees the development of educational programs that will assist with the interpretation of the 
standards of practice and their application to direct patient care. 

6. Partners with Pl and Chief Quality Officer to promote patient safety and quality patient care. 

7. Partners with Office of Catholic Identity to ensure the Ethical and Religious Directives of the 
Catholic Church are evident in provision of patient care \ 

I 

8. Serves as the senior spokesperson for Nursing. Advises the senior leadership, the medical staff, 
board and individual clinical facilities and other internal and external groups by providing input 
about the implications of decisions and change on the quality of patient care, on nursing practice, 
and on nursing care provider 

9. Develops and ensures a safe and effective patient care environment through participation in 
institutional planning, product evaluation, and evaluation of new systems and programs that 
impact nursing care in the organization. 

10. Disseminates Information to responsible departments and promotes communication exchange 

11. Assures the provision of a clinical environment for students in nursing and other related health 
fields. Assures that the educational objectives of the students and the placement within the 
organization are consistent. Ensures that the State Board of Nursing receives the student 
affiliation schedules. 

12. Assures compliance for the JC, HCFA and other State and Federal regulatory bodies. 

13. Maintains an appropriate patient classification system. Assures that the appropriate numbers and 
classification of personnel are assigned to provide patient care. Reviews, with the appropriate 
executive, any discrepancies that exist. 

14. Assures that the appropriate contractual agreements are current and meet insurance and legal 
requirements for the use of outside nursing agencies. Assures that appropriate orientation and 
evaluation of the agency nurses are completed and kept on file. 

15. Maintains a system for assuring that the licenses of the nursing personnel are current. Maintains 
communication with the State Board of Nursing and communicates any changes or disciplinary 
action necessary to the nursing personnel. 

16. Promotes and fosters an inter-professional approach to patient care, and ttie coordination of care 
among disciplines. 

17. Interviews and selects candidates for employment. Orients, trains, supervises, directs, schedules 
and assigns wo!'k of subordinate staff whether through own efforts or by delegation to ~ubordinate 
supervisory staff. 
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18. Outlines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities of employees under supervision. 
Initiates and approves personnel actions including, but not limited to, hiring, transferring, 
suspending, discharging, assigning, rewarding, disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving 
assigned personnel. Prepares and conducts formal/informal performance evaluations and 
recommends merit increases. · 

19. Provides leadership and direction for the development of strategies to promote the recruitment, 
retention, and recognition of excellence in Nursing; Including but not limited to the oversight and 
recommendations regarding compensation and benefit programs for nursing staff 

20. Prepares or directs preparation of departmental budgets and works within established budgetary 
guidelines. Reviews specifications and coordinates purchase of equipment, technology, services 
and/or manpower to achieve cost-effective acquisitions to meet the needs and goals of the 
departments and subsidiary companies. Evaluates results of purchases and monitors contractual 
agreements to ensure value Is received. 

21. Oversees the Nursing Shared Governance Structure and leads the Nursing Leadership Council 

22. Serves as the administrative liaison as a voting member to medical staff, Joint Conference, Ethic 
Board Committees, and other board committees as requested. Attends and serves on 
professional/civic service organizations as a CMC representative. 

23. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional 
affiliations to keep abreast of latest trends in field of expertise. 

24. Exercises care in 'the use and operation of CMC equipment and reference materials. 

25. Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and CMC matters. 

26. Performs similar or related duties as requested or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to'explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job: 

1. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force 
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

2. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions 
and respond appropriately to unexpected situations. 

3. · Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations. 
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4. Ability .to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular 
field and the use of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment in the 
analysis of facts and conditions regarding individual problems or transactions to determine what 
actions should be taken, modifying or adapting standard procedures to meet different conditions, 
making decisions based on precedent and policy. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

· WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Limited 

• Generally Monday through Friday, days; occasional requirements to cover special events, periodic 
overnight travel, etc. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Graduate of an N.L.N. approved nursing program. 
• Masters Degree in Nursing required. 

Exoerience: 
• Minimum of seven (7) or more years of experience in Nursing Administration at the executive 

level. 

Licensure/Certification: 
• Current registration in the State of New Hampshire as a Registered Nurse. 
• Nursing Administration certification strongly preferred. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud.or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the 
requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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I have been given a copy Oft.his position description, and have read and wi.11 comply with the 

expectations and requirements outlined"in this position description, I uriderstand:that receipt of tliis 

position description is riot meantto be constructed as or constitute a contra.ct of employm!ml. 

Employee Name:·-----------------------------~ 

Employee Signature:_· ________________ Date: __________ _ 

Manager Name:. ________ -'------------------------

Manager Signature: _________________ Date: ___ -,-______ _ 

Dfsciaimer: 

The above information on this description· has been designed to indicate the general nature and level 
ofwork performed by employees within this classification: It is not designe<Ho cqntain or be . 
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory .of all duties, responsibilities, and qualifications required of 
employees as~igned to thisjob. ' 

This job description .supersedei; all other veri;ions. 
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REVISED: 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

EXEMPTION STATUS: 

POSITION TITLE: 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

PRIMARY PURPOSE 

08/11 

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

Exempt 

Executive Director of Emergency Services and Disaster Management 
Emergency Department 
Senior Vice President Chief Operating Officer 

Responsible for planning, directing and managing the provision of all emergency services for 
Catholic Medical Center. Maintains relationships with physicians, staff, hospital departments, EMS and 
other organizations that refer patients to Catholic Medical Center. The Division of Emergency Services 
includes the Emergency Department, EMS Disaster Management, Trauma, stroke Services, and 
Respiratory Service. 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILmES 

Under the general direction of the SVP/COO and within estabfished policies and procedures, the 
incumbent performs the following functions: 

Emeroency Deoartrnent Essential Functions: 

1. Develops productive, influential relationships within the service area with physicians, EMS, HMO 
management, government officials, vendors, and other individuals or representatives of companies 
necessary to conduet the affairs of the business of Emergency Services. 

2. Ensures the highest possible level of patient care, maintains the patient care focus of the service and 
is an advocate and leader in maintaining and promoting customer satisfaction. 

3. Establishes the Emergency Services line as a recognized community resource known for providing 
excellent care. Maintains high visibility profile in the organization and at the local and state level. 

4. Develops and monitors budgets and ensures the efficient fiscal solvency of all direct reporting 
departments. 

5. Ensures that daily operations are in compliance with all laws and guidelines offederal, state and local 
accrediting agencies and regulators. Implements and interprets all policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations affecting the operations of Emergency Services. 

6. Participates in the development and negotiation of Emergency Services contracts and monitors the 
contract results and vi ability. 

7. Implements and manages an organizational structure which effectively delivers the required services 
to the communities served and provides an appropriate structure for the organization's employees. 

VPOperaUon&-Emergency SeNices.docx 
Page1ol4 · 



8. Works collaboratively with all areas of CMC management to assure quality, diversified and price 
competitive services which are supported by the emergency room physicians and local medical staffs. 

9. Interviews and selects candidates for employment Orients as appropriate. Outlines scope of 
authority and job responsibilities of employees under supervision. Initiates personnel actions. 
Prepares and conducts formal/informal performance evaluations and recommends merit awards for 
employees under supervision. 

1 O. Maintains an effective marketing network that supports all aspects of emergency services for 
CMC. 

11. Responsible for the successful operation of the Trauma and Stroke programs. 

Disaster Management Essential Functions: 

1. Ensures CMC is in compliance with all Homeland Security, Federal, State, NHHA and The Joint 
Commission emergency management requirements. Accountable for the compliance and revision 
of the CMC Disaster Plan as mandated by the preceding organizations. Represents CMC at all 
Disaster Preparedness meetings at the local, state and federal levels. · 

2. Manages federally allocated ASPR funds for required purchases of emergency/disaster related 
equipment. Submits quarterly balance sheets to New Hampshire Homeland Security office and 
provides documentation for federal and statf;! audits. 

3. Chairs the CMC Disaster Management Committee. Provides required education for the CMC 
Incident Command System and for the CMC management team. 

4. Plans, organizes, and enacts all required disaster drills to meet federal, state and local 
. requirements .. Applies for federal training money by writing grant proposals, preparing master 
scenario event lists and after-action reports. 

5. Establishes and maintains all memorandums of understanding for emergency management 
partners supply agreements. Responsible for the distribution/safekeeping of pandemic/epidemic 
prophylaxis for the CMC organi:z;ation. 

6. Assures maintenance and safekeeping of all acquired vehicles and stored supplies. 

7. Maintains all required Emergency Preparedness certifications. 

Emergency Medical Services Essential Functions: 

1. Maintains CMC participation in the State of New Hampshire EMS Registry to include all files, 
records, licenses, and contracts for CMC as a medical ~esource hospital. 

2. Ensures quality reviews of EMS transports actions. 

3. Develops quarterly param!!diC and EMT education programs. 

4. Facilitate EMS relationships for The New England Heart Institute. 

5. Ensure Stark Law compliance with all EMS exchange of medical supplies .and pharmaceutical 
supplies. Maintains all compliance records as mandated. 

6. Performs duties of CMC liaison for the State of New Hampshire EMS Institute. 
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Secondarv Functions: 

1. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and professional 
affiliations to keep abreast of the latest trends in field of expertise. 

2. Participates in committee meetings. Attends and serves on professional/civic service 
organizations as the hospital representative. 

3. Participates in appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations. 

4. Exercises care in ihe use and operation of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work 
area in a clean and organized manner. 

5. Performs similar or relate~ duties as requested or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individual must possess the knowledge, skills and abilities listed or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommoifation, using some either combination. of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job. 

1. Ability to designate patient care delivery in a manner that is appropriate to patient's age, physical 
ability and intellectual development. Must demonstrate proficiency. in assessing treatment and 
responses and adapting care to meet the needs of the patient population served. 

2. Physical requirements include the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any direction; pick, 
pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers. Essential functions involve sitting most of 
the time. Walking and standing may be required. 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include 
activities in which incumbent must convey deta[led or important spoken Instructions to patients, 
physicians, families and other employees. 

4. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine 
discriminations in sound. 

5. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount offorce 
frequently or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects. 

6. Ability to wear safety glasses, gloves, gowns, masks and other safety equipment as necessary. 

7. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and 
figures, accounting, transcription, computer terminal work, extensive reading, and visual 
inspection involving small parts/devices. 

8. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload and stress. 

9. Ability to work with frequent interruptions and respond appropriately to unexpected situations. 

· 10. Ability to travel to meetings and conferences which are held off-site. 
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11. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing 
problems where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the 
formulation and carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. 
Considerable ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily 
evaluated, interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and 
coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: Category I (Exposure to blood borne pathogens) · 

ACCESS TO PHI: Complete 

WORK SCHEDULE: 
• Generally Monday through Friday, days. Evenings and weekends as necessary. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Bachelor of Science Degree in nursing. Masters Degree in Management of Administration 

preferred. 
Experience: · 
• At least three years of management experience in operations, program planning and strategic 

development for emergency services. Demonstrated leadership ability. 

Standard of Business Conduct 
Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there Is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. Requires 
that suspicion or knowledge of any persons violation of the Code be reported to the Corporate 
Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the requirements contained within the Code 
will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 

Statement of Other Duties: 
Ttiis document describes the major dutie5, responsibilities, and authorities of this job, and is not 
intended to. be a complete list of all tasks and functions. It should be understood, therefore, that 
incumbents may be asked to perform job-related duties beyond those explicitly described. 

This job description supersedes all other versions. 

Review/Approvals: 

. Signature of Director and/or VP 

Signature of Human Resources Representative 

VPOperations-Emergency Senrices.docx 
Page4of4 

Date 

Date 



CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

TITLE: 

DEPARTMENT: 
REPORTS TO: 

PRIMARY PURPOSE 

Vice President 
Patient & Physician 
Support Services 
Administration 
CEO, President & SVP ,COO 

COMPENSATION 
APPROVAL:, _______ _ 
EFFECTIVE:, __ _,/__.._~/. __ 

APPROVAL:_· -------

The Vice President Patient and Physician Support Services, Is responsible for the administrative direction 
Including planning, organizing, budgeting, implementing, evaluating and ensuring the efficient, economic, and 
quality performance of all assigned departments/areas of responsibility to support or provide quality health care 
services, assures that standards are uniformly applied In the provision of patient care across services lines. 
Accountable for the following departments: Admissions, Health Information Management Social Work/Case 
Management, Pastoral Care, Patient Complaint Program, Quality Management (Hospital and Medical Staff), 
Credentialing, CME, Attendant Services, Risk Management Corporate Compliance, the Medical Management 
Program, CMC Medical Director, and the Physician Advisor for Medical Managemenl 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Under the direction of the Chief Executive Officer and SVP, COO, and within established organizational and 
departmental policies and procedures, JCAHO standards, and all-applicable state and federal regulations, the 
Incumbent performs the folloWlng functions: 

Primarv Functions: 

1. Provides leadership, direction and general management to the department directors and programs including, 
but not limited to, developing goals and objectives, establishing and Implementing policies and procedures for 
the operational and long-range planning of services of Catholic Medical Center. 

2. Develops collaborative, influential relationships with the medical staff, third party payers, community agencies, 
nursing homes, and the QIO to assure efficient systems and resource utilization along the continuum to 
provide the consistent delivery of high quality services to patients, the community, and medical staff. 

3. Assists In maintaining a hospital-wide Quality Management Program that evaluates the quality of care 
provided to patients and meets the requirements of accrediting agencies, Including the Medical Staff. Serves 
as the Senior Management representative to the Board of Directors for the Quality Management Committee. 

4. Responsible for the Patient Complaint Program supporting the rights of patients, addressing their needs and 
ethical concerns, and evaluating patient satisfaction. 

5. Assures that the Admission Department supports the financial and Informational needs of all departments to 
have correct demographic and billing information. Assures systems are in place for bed placement throughout 
the hospital, including pre-admissions and direct admissions. 

6. Assures the provision of Social Work/Case Management services meet resource management, discharge 
planning, medical management (including physician profiling, clinical resource utilization, nursing unit profiles, 
avoidable days), patient rights, ethics and legal requirements of Catholic Medical Center and its subsidiaries. 
Identifies opportunities for improvements with length of stay reduction, practice variation, and cost savings 
processes without aimpromlsing quality patient care. 

7. Assures the provision of Pastoral Care services to patients, family members and staff. 

8. Provides leadership and overall direction for Quality Management, Medical Staff Support Services, CME, the 
Medical Staff, including medical staff committees, (I.e., Credentials Committee, Medical Executive Committee, 
Professional Health Committee) and Peer Review. Assures appropriate processes and systems are in place 

Administrallon\Vicc Pr<Sldcnt Patient & Physician Support Services 
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for the credentialing of medical staff members {initial appointments and reappointments), and serves as the 
.Senior Manager responsible for medical staff quality, risk management functions, corporate compliance and 
patient complaints. 

9. Assures the Health Information Management Department meets the needs of Catholic Medical Center, 
physicians, payers and hospital-wide departments in accordance with state, federal and JCAHO regulations. 
Provides leadership and direction for appropriate education of medical staff and hospital employees including 
compliance, coding, documentation, and reimbursement functiqns. 

10. Provides direction for system wide programs, policies, and procedures to ensure compliance with applicable 
federal and state laws {i.e. CMS and Medicaid) and JCAHO for all CMC employees, medical staff and 
volunteers. · 

11. Provides facllitatlon for process Improvement within departments in order to Impact on overall cost; quality and 
satisfaction for patient care. 

12. Provides support to all hospital departments to assist them In the provision of patient care. 

13. Interviews and selects candidates for employment Orients, trains, supervises, directs, schedules and assigns 
work of subordinate staff whether through own efforts or by delegation to.subordinate supervisory staff. 
Outlines scope of authority as well as job responsibilities of employees under supen(ision. Initiates and 
approves personnel actions including, but not limited to, hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, 
assigning, rewarding, disciplining or adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel. Prepares and 
conducts formal/Informal performance evaluations and recommends merit Increases. 

14. Prepares or directs preparation of departmental budgets and works within established budgetary guidelines. 
Reviews specifications and coordinates purchase of equipmen~ technology, services and/or manpower to 
achieve cost-effective acquisitions to meet the needs and goals of departments and subsidiary companies. 
Evaluates results of purchases and monitors contractual agreements to ensure value Is received. 

15. Keeps the Chief Executive Officer/COO Informed of all events, activities, or problems, which will, or may have, 
a significant effect on hospital operations. · · 

16. Assures appropriate policies, procedures and guidelines are In place with managed care contracting impacting 
· on financial reimbursemen~ quality medical management and satisfaction including capitated contracts. 

17. Participates In Strategic Planning functions of the hospital, including the management, organization, 
participation and timely completion of special projects assigned by the CEO. 

18. Provides direction and participation in the development of organization-wide management educational 
activities. 

19. Attends Executive Committee of the Medical Staff and other medical staff committees as needed. Facilitates 
and/or chairs medical staff work teams to assure that the planning and development of services is completed. 

20. Works closely with members of the medical staff, their elected officers and department chairs/chiefs to resolve 
issues, advance new and Improved clinical programs, and ensure quality of care. 

·21. Works with medical staff members to maintain and Improve performance in financial, utilization and 
patient/payer' satisfaction matters. · 

22. Develops and maintains effective relations with internal and external constituents. 

23. Provides educational activities and written communication to physicians related to the following: pollcles and 
procedures that affect their practices directly, Initiatives within the organization as well as current market 
activities In the surrounding geographic market 

Secondarv Functions: 

Administration Wice President Patient & Physician Support Services 
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1. Attends/participates and serves on professionaVcivic service organizations as a Catholic Medical Center 
Senior Management representative. · 

2. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in appropriate role in 
disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations according to location. 

3. Maintains professional growth and development through seminars, workshops, and profe&Slonal affiliations to 
keep abreast of latest trends In field of expertise. 

4. Serves as the administrative liaison to Medical Staff, Ethics Board Committees, Quality Management 
Committee, and other board committees as requested. · 

5. Exercises care In the use and operation of Catholic Medical Center equipment and reference materials. 

6: Ensures confidentiality of employee, legal, budget and Catholic Medical Center matters. 

7. Perfonms similar or related duties as request~ or directed. 

Knowledge. Skills and Abilities 

Individuals must possess the knowledge, skills, and abilities listed or be able to explain and demonstrate that the 
individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without reasonable accommodation, using some 
other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the necessary physical requirements with or without the aid . 
of mechan!cal devices to safely perform the essential functions of the job. 

1. Ability to deliver patient care in a manner that is appropriate to patlenfs age, physical ability and Intellectual 
development Must demonstrate proficiency in assessing treatrnentand responses and adapting care to 
meet the needs of the patient population served; neonatal, pediatric, adolescent, adult and/or geriatric. 

2. Physical requirements include ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) In any direction; raise objects from a lower 
to a higher position or move objects horizontally from position to position; pick, pinch, type, or otherwise work 
primarily with fingers rather than the whole hand or arm; apply pressure to an objectwith fingers and palm; 
sustain substantial movement of wrists, hands and/or fingers. 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include activities In 
which incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken Instructions to employees, physicians, patients, 
families, and external contacts. 

4. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discrimination in sound. 

5. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and/or a negligible amount of force frequently or 
constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing and analyzing data and figures, accounting, 
transcription, computer terminal work, and extensive reading. 

7. Ability to endure periods of heavy workload or stress. Ability to work with frequent interruptions and respond 
appropriately to une~ected situations. 

8. Ability to transport self to and from off-site locations. 

9. Ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems where there Is 
little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation In the formulation and carrying out of policies, 
objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable Ingenuity and exceptional judgment 
required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, Interpret results and make decisions carrying a great deal of 
responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work of subordinate supervision in order to attain objectives. 

Administration\Vicc President Patient & Physician Support Services 
10/07/03 
Page 3 of4 



10. Working. knowledge of hospital organization, management, and operations. B.aslc knowledge of hospital 
accounting and finance, JCAHO standards, state and local government regulations, and human resources 
principles. · 

11. Abllity to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a particular field and the use 
of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment In the analysis of facts and conditions 
regarding Individual problems or transactions to determine what actions should be taken, modifying or 
adapting standard procedures to meet different conditions, making decisions ba.sed on precedent and policy. 

12. Ability to receive training and guidelines from supervisor before assuming program responsibilities. Functions 
independently followin_g training. 

13. Familiarity with database, s~readsheet and word processing software. 

14. Ability to interact effectively with people of varied educational, socioeconomic and ethnic backgrounds, skill 
levels and value systems. Ability to work closely and professionally with representatives of regulatory, civic, 
and service organizations, healthcare professionals and members of the medical staff. 

15. Individuals are required to refrain from parl!cip!lting in any activities that could be construed as fraud and 
abuse. Requires the ablllty to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct In any 
instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. Responsible for 

detecting offenses by employees within ones department Requires that suspicion or knowledge of any 
person(s) violation of the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you 
comply with the requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job 
performance. 

OSHA RATING: 
ACCESS TO PHI: 
WORK SCHEDULE: 

QUALIACATIONS: 

Education: 

Exoerlence: 

2 
Limited 
Generally Monday through Friday, day shift; expectation of 
evening, night, weekend scheduled or unscheduled requirements; 
Periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational programs, etc. 
Ability to take Administrative On-call. 

Masters Degree In Hospital or Health Care Administration or Business 

Minimum of seven years experience in a management position in 
health care, including Operations, program planning and strategic 
development 

Administration\Vice President Pallent & Physician Support Services 
10/07f03 
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::CMC · 
CATHOUC MEDICAL aNTl!R 

EFFECTIVE DATE: · 

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

November, 2012 

EXEMPTION STATUS: Exempt 

•.• , ••.• 
..11111 ·- - - - -

POSITION TITLE: 
DEPARTMENTISERVICE: 

Senior Vice President, Operations I Strategic Development 
General Counsel 

REPORTS TO: President/CEO 

POSITION SUMMARY: 

The Senior Vice President of Operations and Strategic Development is responsible for overseeing 
long-term strategic initiatives of the Hospital both internal and external to the institution. The Senior 
Vice President of Operations and Strategic Development participates in all strategic development and 
planning, including the management, organization and implementation of special projects assigned by 
the President/Chief Executive Officer. The Senior VP Operations/ Strategic Development will also 
function as the General Counsel. General Counsel is responsible for overseeing and directing all of 
the legal affairs of Catholic Medical Center and its affiliated entities and subsidiaries. The General 
Counsel is responsible for protecting the organization from legal and regulatory risk. 

Under the overall direction of the President/CEO, and within established departmental policies and 
procedures, the incul)'lbent performs the following functions: ' 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Responsible for overseeing long-term strategic initiatives both internal and external to .CMC. 

2, Participates in all strategic development and planning, including the management, organization 
and implementation of special projects assigned by the President/CEO. 

3. Responsible for overseeing Vice President of Strategy. 

4. Serves as General Counsel to the CEO and the Board of Trustees on matters affecting Catholic 
Medical Center and its affiliated entities and subsidiaries. Maintains knowledge of federal and 
state laws and regulations and determines their impact on the organization's operations and 
strategic initiatives. Keeps abreast of all legal and regulatory activities which may influence the 
operations of the system. 

5. Maintains, develops and reviews policies, procedures and practices to ensure compliance with 
federal and state laws and regulations. Develops, recommends and implements changes to 
existing policies1 procedures and programs as necessary. 

Page 1 of5 



6. Responsible for oversseing Vice President of Human Resources and the Human Resources 
department as it relates to employment, compensation, benefits administrations,· employee/labor 
relations, policies and procedures, organization development and training and employee records. 
Outlines scope of authority and job descriptions of employees under supervision; initiates 
personnel actions, including but not limited to hiring, transferring, suspending, discharging, 
assigning rewards and disciplinary of adjusting of grievances involving assigned personnel. 
Prepares and conducts formal and informal performance evaluatlons and recommends 
appropriate merit awards for employees under supervision. 

7. Responsible for overseeing the Quality department, including the Data Center. 

8. Responsible for oyerseeing and participation in all strategic planning initiatives, including 
identifying and pursuing opportunities to grow the organization through strategic transactions. 

9. Responsible for Community Relations and Governmental Affairs. Responsible for maintaining 
strong relationships with community and business leaders to enhance the goodwill and reputation 
of the organization though regular and active participation in community events and service on 
appropriate non-profit boards. · 

10. Keeps the CEO informed of all legal and regulatory events, activities or issues which may have a 
significant effect on hospital operations. 

11. Managers and oversees all legal and regulatory actions which may be brought against the 
organization, including hiring and overseeing outside legal counsel. 

12. Prepares and presents to management and the Board of Trustees regular reports outlining the 
organization's legal and regulatory affairs. 

13. Manages and oversees all the organization's governmental affairs and relations at.federal, state 
and local levels. Responsible for maintaining strong relationships with governmental leaders and 
elected officials for the benefit of the organization. 

14. Oversees corporate compliance and risk management for the organization. 

15. Maintains personal and professional. training and development. Keeps abreast of changes and 
• · maintains status in the field. Maintains professional affiliations, attends outside seminars and 

conferences, and confers with peers at other hospitals and organizations. 

16. Serves as management representative to the Board of Trustees on appropriate committees. 
Serves as representative of the hospital and /or CEO on various affiliated boards of the 
organization. 

17. Participates in the functions and activities of the Catholic Medical Center Executive Management 
Team, including but not limited to assigned operations of the Hospital, serving on committees and 
task forces, preparing reports as requested, and 'representing administration as needed or 
requested. 
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18. Works within policies, procedures and protocols as they relate to the job. Participates in 
appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, and other emergency situations according to location. 

19. Exercises care in the operation and use of equipment and reference materials. Maintains work 
area in an orderly. manner. · 

20. Is responsible for complying with and enforcing all established organizational and department 
policies and procedures. · 

21. Ensures confidentiality.of employee, legal, budget and company matters.' Maintains good 
communications; establishes and maintains P<?sitive working relationships with employees, 
regulatory agencies, vendors, the public and among the hospital organizations. 

22. Performs similar or related duties and required or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the following knowledge, skills and abilities or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and to possess the 
necessary physical requirements, with or without the aid of mechanical devices to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job: 

1. Ability to bend the body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist. Ability to extend 
hand{s) and arm(s) in any direction. Abillty to stand for sustained periods of time. Ability to move 
about on foot to accomplish tasks, particularly for long periods of time. Ability to raise objects from 
a lower to a higher position or moving objects horizontally from position to position. 

2. Ability to pick, pinch, type or otherwise work primarily with fingers rather than the whole and or arm 
as in handling. 

3. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Incumbent must convey 
detailed questions to elicit information from others. 

4. Ability to exert up to 10 pounds of force occasionally and or a negligible amount of force frequently 
or constantly to lift, carry, push, pull or otherwise move objects. 

5. The incumbent is subject to both environmental conditions and activities that occur inside and 
outside. 

6. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting, 
and extensive reading. · 

7. The ability to plan and perform complex work which involves new or constantly changing problems 
where there is little accepted method or procedure. Involves participation in the formulation and 
carrying out of policies, objectives and programs for major divisions or functions. Considerable 
ingenuity and exceptional judgment required to deal with factors not easily evaluated, interpret 
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results and make decisions carrying a great deal of responsibility. Direct and coordinate the work 
of subordinate supervision In order to attain objectives. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

WORK SCHEDULE: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Limited 

• Generally works Monday through Friday day shift; expectation of evening, night, weekend 
scheduled or unscheduled requirements; periodic overnight travel for meetings, educational 
programs, etc. 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education: 
• Juris Doctorate Degree required. 

Experience: 
• Significant previous experience as a senior level executive, and/or counsel for a healthcare 

organization. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic 'Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The. 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the 

· requirements contained within the Code will be a factor in evaluating your overall job performance. 
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I tiave b~en given !J copy of this poi;ition description, and have read a11d will CQ!J1ply with. the 

expectations and requirements· outlined in this position description. I understaria that receipt of this 

position description is not ni_eant to be constructed as or constitute. a .contract qfemployment. 

Employee Name:_·-~---~-------------------------

Employee Signature:----------~----- Date: __________ _ 

Manager Name: ______________________________ _ 

Manager Signature: Date: 
·~---------------- ------------

Disclaimer: 

The above inforT11ation on \his description has be.en designed to indicate the general na~ure and level 
of work performed by employees within this 'classification. It is not desigr:iea tb contain or be 
interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all dliiies, responsibilities, and_ qualifications required of 
ell)ployees assigned to this job. 

This job description supersedes all other ve_rsions. 
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==CMC CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER HEALTHCARE SYSTEM . 
JOB DESCRIPTION .Illll 

CATtCOUC i.ttO!CAL CUlMR 

i!.¥m· " ~ .. ·,1> : •ml • • 

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope in a manner that offers 
innovative high quality services, compassion, and respect for the human dignity of every individual who 

seeks or needs our care as art o Christ's healin throu h the Catholic Church 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 

POSmON TITLE: 
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE: 
REPORTS TO: 

COMPENSATION: 

POSITION SUMMARY 

October, 2012 

Executive Medical Director of Catholic Medical Center Health Systems 
Administration 
SRVP/Operations I NEHI & Physician Practices 

See Contract 

Executive Medical Director at Catholic Medical Center Health Systems (CMCHS) is responsible for 
advancing new and improved clinical programs, ensuring low cost, high quality of care and improving 
performance in financial, utilization and patient/family/payer satisfaction matters. · 

PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Under the general direction of the SRVP/ Operations/NEHI & Physician Practices; within established 
dep~rtmental policies and procedures and all applicable laws, through own actions or by delegating to 
appropriate co-workers, the incumbent, performs the following functions: 

1. Cooperates and participates in the development of overall strategic vision and plan fo'r the hospital 
system with an emphasis on physician integration and aligning hospital and physician interests as 
wen as creating value. · 

2. Works closely with the SRVP/ Operations I NEHI & Physician Practices in developing and 
maintaining internal and external stakeholder relationships and programs and Initiatives. 

3. Works closely with the Chief Medical Officer (CMO) and the administration to help the hospital and 
its medical staff be more effective and efficient In providing care and develop lines of 
communication and flow of information between administration and the medical staff with the help 
of physician lead~rs. 

4. With the CMO and CMC Medical Directors, serves as a resource to the medical staff in regard to 
compliance and consistency in credentialing, reappointments, risk, quality, bylaws, policies, rules 
and regulations. 

5. Works In coordination with the CMO and others in administration to resolve grievances relating to 
the medical staff interactions with patients, families, nurses, hospital staff and administration. 



6. Assists the CMO and the medical staff in the process of risk/quality and corrective actions by 
education and communication. 

7. Supports the medical staff elements of The Joint Commission (T JC), Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid (CMS) and well as other accreditation and regulatory bodies. 

B. Identifies and encourages future physician leaders. 

9. Meets with and supports current medical staff leaders including elected medical staff and 
appointed medical directors to provide mentoring, guidance, education, and coordination of 
services. 

10. Participates in the functions and activities of the CMC Management Team, including but not 
limited to serving on committees and task forces and performs other duties as physician leader 
when requested or needed. 

11. Participates in appropriate role in disasters, fire drills, fires and other emergency situations 
according to location. 

12. Responsible for compliance and enforcement of all established organizational and department 
policies and procedures. 

13. Ensures confidentiality of employees, legal, budgetary, and company matters. Maintain good 
communications; establishes and maintains positive working relationships with. employees, 
physicians, regulatory agencies, vendors, consultants, and the public. 

14. Performs similar or related duties as required or directed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 

Individuals must possess the knowledge, skills and abilities listed or be able to explain and 
demonstrate that the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without 
reasonable accommodation, using some other combination of skills and abilities and possess the 
necessary physical requirements with or without the aid of mechanical devices, to safely perform the 
essential functions of the job. 

1. Physical requirements include the ability to raise objects from a lower to a higher p_osition or to 
move objects horizontally from position to position; the ability to extend hand(s) and arm(s) in any 
direction; pick, pinch, type or otherwise primarily work with fingers; Perceiving attributes of objects 
such as size, shape, temperature or texture by touching with skin, particularly that of fingertips; 
use upper extremities to exert force in order to draw, haul or tug objects in a sustained motion; to 
press against something with steady force in order to thrust forward, downward or outward; apply 
pressure to an object with the fingers and palm; ability to substantially move wrists, hands and/or 
fingers; bending body downward and forward by bending spine at the waist; bending body 
downward and forward by bending leg and spine; ability to bend legs at knee to come to rest on 
the knee or knees. · 
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2. Ability to express or exchange ideas by means of the spoken word. Essential functions include 
activities in which incumbent must convey detailed or important spoken instructions to patients, 
physicians, families and other employees. 

3. Ability to receive detailed information through oral communication and to make fine discriminations 
in sound. 

4. Ability to exert up to 20 pounds of force occasionally, and/or a negligible amount of force 
constantly to move objects. 

5. The incumbent is subject to hazards including a variety of physical conditions such as proximity to 
moving mechanical parts and electrical currents or exposure to chemicals. 

6. The incumbent is subject to normal inside environmental conditions. 

7. The incumbent is not substantially exposed to adverse environmental conditions. 

8. Visual acuity sufficient for work which deals largely with preparing data and figures, accounting, 
transcription, computer terminal operation and extensive reading. 

9. Requires the ability to plan and perform diversified duties requiring an extensive knowledge of a 
particular field and the use of a wide range of procedures. Involves the exercise of judgment In 
the analysis of facts and conditions regarding individual problems or transactions to determine 
what actions should be taken within the limits of standard practice. 

OSHA RATING: 

PHI ACCESS: 

QUALIFICATIONS 

Education: 

Category II (No exposure to blood borne pathogens) 

Complete 

• MD or DO degree 

Experience: 
• A minimum of 15 years as a Clinical Physician and experience as a Physician Leader such as 

Medical Director, President of the Medical Staff or Chair of the Department. 

Standard of Business Conduct 

Individuals are required to refrain from participating in any activities that could be construed as fraud 
and abuse. Requires the ability to follow Catholic Medical Center's Standards of Business Conduct in 
any instance where you feel there is suspicion of fraud or abuse, or a violation of the law. The 
Standards of Business Conduct requires that suspicion or knowledge of any person(s) in violation of 
the Code be reported to the Corporate Compliance Officer. The extent to which you comply with the 
requirements contained within the Coda will be a factor in evaluating ynur overall job performance. 
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I have been given··a copy of this pc:>.sition description, and h_ave read and will cqmply with "the 

expectations and requirements outlined in this position description; I understand that receipt of this 

position description is not meant to be constructed as or constitute. a contract ,of employment. 

Employee N_ame:·--------------------------~~~~~ 

Employee Signature:--------------- Date:. __________ _ 

Mahager-Name: ______________________________ _ 

MariagerSignl3ture:~-~~---~~~--~--- Date:.~--~-~-----

Disclaimer: · 

The above infonnation on this description has been d(!signed to indicate the general nature and level 
of work performed by employees within .this classificaiion. It is not cjesignec( to coriiain.or, be 
inter,preted as a comprehensive inventory of all duties, responsibiiities, and qualifications required of 
er:riployees as~igned t() tl1is job. 

This job description supersedes all other versions. 
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: tBAKER 
:;NEiiMAN 

NOYES 

Board of Trustees . 
CMC Healthcare System, Inc .. 

Baker New.man & Noyes, LLC , · 

MAINE J.MASSA~.Husrns I NEW liAMPSHIRE 
BOo.244.744~i www.bnncpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AOOITORS' REPOR'f 

We ha ye audite.i the aceompanying consolidated :fi.uancial statements of CMC HealthC;lre Sy*m, Tue., which 
comprise tJie camolidate<l balance sl!C>;ts as ofJunc 30, 201.5 and 2014; and the rela.tel! eoru;.olidate.d statements 
of'operatiolis, cliajlges.in Iiet'ass~!S and caSh Dows for the.years !lien e!ld!"l.-and !he related ·notes to the 
consolidated :fi.uanciaJ statements. · · 

Management's.ResponsUJi/iry forth~ FinanciaJS'uitements 
' . . 

Management is resj>onsible for !lie prep:iration and fiiir,presentation of il\ese corisoli<¥ed :financial statements 
'in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Uni fed States of America; thls includes ).he. 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevantto the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated.!inalicial statementstbat are free from material misstatement, whether.due io .fraud or error .. 

AudJtors' Responsibility 

Our responslbilifyis t6 ezj:>~s an _opinion on these c6iisolidated :fi.uancial statements based on mir audits. We 
(:ond)i¢te,l 9\Jr aUdits in' accordance with auditing standards genenilly accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plail and perform the audit' to obtain reasonable as8uranee ab011t whether thb 
consoli.d;>te'd financial statem~ ate free from materi!!l misstatement 

An audit involves P.erfor:miJlg p~ocedureii to obtain audit evidence about the ambunts and disclosures in the 
consolidated :fi.uancial statements. The procedures selected depend o.n the auditors' judgmeni, inch1ding the 
assessment of the risks of.niaterial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to .fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intei:na! control relevant. to the entity'.s 
preparation and fa.ii presentation of the consolidated .financial staiements in order to design audit procedures 
that are approptjme in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinj~n on the effectiveness 
Of the entity's internal' control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit al~o includes evaluating 

. the appropriateneSS of acc6unting policies used and the reasonableness .of significant accounting estimates 
inade by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. · 

' ' ' 

·We beljeve that the audit.evidence we have'6btained is suffiCient and appropriate.to provide a basis for our 
audit'opllµon. . · · , .. 

. Opinion, · 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred io above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of CMC Healthcare System, Inc. as of iunc 30, 2015 ~d ·2014, and the results of its · 
operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows. for the yeais then ended in accordance with accounting 

·principles generally accepted in theUnited·States.ofAmerica ·. · · . 

Manchester; New HamP.shlfe 
September 22, 20i5 

1 

Liniited Liability Company 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS · 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

ASSETS 

.. . ---·· ... ·- - ·---· ·- -2015 .. 

Cum:at assets: 
Cash axµi .cash cquiva!enls 
Short-term invc:stmcnls 
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $22,313,634 

in 2015 and $23,528,991 in 2014 
Inventories 
Other cum:nt ass~ 

Total CWICllt assets 

Property, plant and equipment, net 

Other assets: 
Notes receivable, less allowance of$793,885 

in 2015 and $800,000 in 2014 
Unamortized debt issuance costs 
Intan8''ble assets and other 

Assets whose use is limited: 
Pension and insurance obligations _ 
Board designaled and donor restricted investments 
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements 

Total.assets 

2 

$ 40,498,040 
26,347,421 

39,747,323 
2,124,292 
5,602,808 

114,319,884 

94,475,346 

753;919 
. 15,873.415 

16,627,334 

12,333,513 
99,418,553 

6,126.802 

117,878,868 

SJ~ l!ll ~~ 

.. 

·Wi--·· .. 

$ 54,632,046 
26,173,541 

30,310,791 
2,010,411 
5.200,218 

118,327,007 

86,989,397 

' .72,648 
, 

840,257 
13,819.980 

14,732,885 

14,246,337 
98,454,431 

6,080.S86 

118,781.354 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

_ .... ·--- --- . ---· ···-- .. ·- ··- "•·• ·····- ··- . -- . --- ..... . 

Cmrcnt liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accmed expenses 
Accrued salaries, wages and related llCCOUD!s 
AmOUDls payable to thinl-party payoxs 
Current portion oflong-tenn debt 

Total current liabilities . 

Accroed pension and other liabilities, less cuirent portion 

Long-term debt, less cunent portion 

Total liabilities 

Commitnients and contingencies 

Net assets: 
uilleSiric!ed 
Tempoi:arily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See Sl:COmpanying notes. 

\ 

3 

''" -2015 " 

$ 23,127,002 
17,336,306 
10,535,852 
4.158,725 

55,157,885 

99,928,417 

73,228.396 

228,314,698 

106,340,093 
330,158 

8.316.483 

114,986,734 

----- 2014----- - ' 

$ 18,398,696 
. 16,167,406 

10,125,881 
3.501.677 

48,193,660 

77,844,763 

74.725.889 

200, 764,312 

129,375,771 
528,802 

8.161J58 

138,066,331 

$343,301 432 $338.830,643 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF Ol'ERATIONS 

Years Ended .fune 30, 2015' am!- 2014 

~ 2014. 
Net patient seivice revenues, net of 

_ .... ·--.CO~al\O\Y~l!®-4i~J!nfJ! - ·------·-·-- ··----- - - --·-· $353,523,655 $337,728,005 ·- --- - --· 
-- -C22.76i.992) -c:i4,345d66>-- ---p-Provision for doubtful accounts 

Net patient service 'revenues less 
provision for doubtful accounts 

Other revenue 
Disproportionate slwe funding 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 
Supplies and other -
New Hampshire Medicaid enhanrement tax 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Income from operations 

Nonopeniting gaiDs (losses): 
Investment income 
Net realiz.ed gains on sale of investments 
Loss on sale of property and equipment 
Other nonoperating gain (loss) 

Total nonopcrating gains, net 

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses 

Umcalizcd (depreciation) appxeciation on investmentS 
Assets released from restriction used for capital 
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension ~ 

(Decrease) increase in umcstricted net assets 

Umestricted net assets at beginning of year 

UnreStrlctcd net assets at end of year 

Sec accompanying nofes. 

·4 

330,761,663 313,382,239 

16,165,545 15,789,771 
2.452.816 .3.136.409 

349 ,380,024 332,308,419 

194,420.s:n 175,601,678 
117,990,069 114,948,304 
14,962,857 13,865,109 
11,770,922 11,045,450 
3~11,000 3,887,160 

342355,3~5 319,347,701 

7,024,639 12,960,718 

2,544,837 2,101,361 
1,118,293 5,197,478 

(1,025,395) 
11,288 (32,485) 

3,675,118 6,i4o,952 

10,699,757 19,201,677 

(1,785,737) _7,081,308 
272,000 142,525 

(32,221.628) (239.805) 

(23,035,678) 26,185,105 

122.~75,711 103,120,066 

SJg~~~ D2l SJ22 ~~ :ZZJ 



CMC HEALTHCARE MTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STAT.aMENTS OF CHANGES JN NET ASSEIS 

Yean,EndedJune 30, 2015 and201'4 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted .. Total 

·-·-·· -· -- - ··--···---·-- ----··-:·NctAssets ··NctAsscts-- '.l'fet·Asscts ··- Net-Assets-· ·-- ·- .... 

Balances at June 30, 2013 · $103,190,066 $ 191,861 $7,281,983 $110,663,910 

Excess of revenues and gains over cxpcnscs 19,201,677 19,201,677 
Investment income 1,083 -·3,346· 4,429 
Changes in interest in pcipctuaI trust 740,821 740,821 
Restricted contributions 500,599 500,599 
Unrealized appxcciation on inyestments 7,081,308 135,608 7,216,916 
Assets released 1i:om restriction 

used for operations (22,216) (22,216) 
A!' sets released 1i:om restriction 

used for capital 142,525 (142,525) 
Pension-iclated changes other than 

net periodic pension cost (239,805') (239,805) 

26,185,705 336 941 879.115 27,402,421 

Balancc:s atJunc 30, 2014 129,375,771 528,802 8,161,758 138,066,331 

Excess of revenues and gains over· expenses 10,699,757 10,699,757 
Invcstnicnt income 1,137 1,177 2,314 
Changes in interest in peipetual trust 167,919 167,919 
Restricted contnllutions 94,278 94,278 
Umeaiized depxeciaiion on investments (1,785,737) (14,371} (1,800,108) 
Assets released fiom restriction 

used for operations (22,059) (22,059) 
Assets released fiom restriction 

used for capital 272,000 (272,000) 
Pension-iclated changes other than 

net periodic pension cost (32.221.698) ' (32,221.698) 

(23.035,678) (198.644) 154.725 (23,079.597) 

Balances at June 30, 2015 $10~ 3~ !!23 $ J3!! ISB $8 3l~ ~8~ $l l:1 !1~~ ~ 

See accompanying notes. 
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Operating activities: 

CMC HEALTHCABE SYSTEM, INC • 

. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Emkd.hme 30, 2015 and 2014 

. (Decrease) in=in net assets . . _ . -· __ . __ --·­
Adjustments to reconcile (d=se) iilCiease in net assets 

__ .S.(~.Q.79~JIJJ. ~- ~?.4Q2,~2J 

to net cash provided by opereiing activities: 
Depreciation and amortization · 
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost 

· Restricted gifts and investment income 
Net rcali7.cd gains on sales of investments 
Increase in interest in pc:xpc:tual trust · 
Unrealized depreciation (appreciation) on investments 
Change in fair values of interest rate swaps 

· Loss on sale of property and equipment 
Bond discouDt/prcmium amortization 
Changes in operating. assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable, net 
Inventories 
Other CWJ"C!lt assets 
Other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts 
Amounts payable to thhii"jlarty payers 
Accrued pension and other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities: 
Purchases of property, plaIJi and equipment 
Payments received from notes receivable 
Net change in assets held by trustee under revenue bond agreements 
Proceeds from sales of investments · 
Purchases of investments 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Financing activities: 
. Payments on long-term debt 

Settlement of lntcreSt rate swap 
Payments <in capital leases 
Restricted gifts and inv-ent income 

Net cash used by :financing activities 

D=ease in cash and cash eqaivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

~ and cash equivalents at end of year 

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
· Assets acqujred under capital lease agreements 

See accompanying notes. 
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l"l,770,922 11,045,450 
32,221,698 239,805 

(96,592) {505,028) 
(1,118,293) (5,197,478) 

(167,919) (740,821) 
1,800,108 (7,216,916) 
(302,276) . (408,640) 

1,025,395 
(287,748) (306,808) 

(9,436,532) (3,045,729) 
(113,881) (103,466) 

. (402,590) {653,933) 
(2,124,049) {599,695) 
4,728,306 1,444,686 
1,168,900 1,977,844 

409,971 (1,219,234) 
(2,866,97§) (7,918,882) 
5,103,4~2 15,218,966 

(16,007,424) (11,888,199) 
72,648 74,929 

(46,216) (1,101,525) 
51,291,663 38,417,650 

(51,030,732) (65,05~88) 
(15, 720,066) (39,556,433) 

(2, 740,044) (1,556,140) 
(2,327,000) 

(873,940) . (687,315) 
2~~92 505,028 

(3,517.392) (4,065A2Z) 

(14,134,006) (28,402,894) 

. 54.632046 83,034,240 

$ 4Q49' 040 s s~ ~l212Mi 
' 

$ ~.g§J 2§:Z $ ~22~aa 

·- ..... ··- .. -·· ... 
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2. 

CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June30,2015 and2014 

omuization 

CMCHelilthcareSystcm,Tnc.(theSystcm)isanot-for-profitorganizalionfonnedeffectiveJulyl,2001. 
'The Systcm. fuiictibns as the parent' cl!lliplllly·and sole metnber of Catholib'Mcdical Center (the.Medical"- ·- -·· -·­
Center), Physician P:ractice Associates, Inc. (PPA), Alliance Bntetprlses, Inc. (Enteipriscs), Alliance 
Resources, Inc.' (R.esourees), Alliance Ambulatmy Services, Inc. (AAS), CMC Ailcillaiy Health 
Services, I.LC (CABS) (newly fanned organization in 2015), Alliance Health Service$, Inc. (AHS), 
Doctors Medical Association, Inc. (DMAJ and St. Peter's Home, Inc. · 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidaled financial statements have been prepan:d using the accrnal basis of 
accounting. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include tlie accounts of the Medical Center, PP A, Enterprises, 
Resources, AAS, CABS, AHS, DMA and St. Peter's Home, Inc. Significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eHminated in consolidation. · · 

Use ofEstimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and as~ptions 
that affect the reportedari1oullts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
as of the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affecf the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results eould differ from those estimates. The primary 
·estimates relate to collcctibility of receivables from patients and third-party payors, amounts payable to 
third-partypayors, accrued compensation.and benefits, conditional asset retirement obligations, and self" 
insurance reserves. 

Income Taxes 

The System and all related entities, with the ~lion of Enlcipriscs and CAHS, are not-for-profit 
COIJ>orations as described in Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and are exempt · 
from fedcml income taxes on ielatcd income pursuant to Section 50l(a) of the Code. Management 
evaluated the Systelli.'s tax positions and concluded the System has maintained its tax-exempt status, 
docs not have any significant'unrc!alcd business income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that 
ICquire adjustment to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

2. Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned) 

Enterprises and CAHS arc for-profit organirntions and, iii accordance wi!Jl federal and state tax laws, 
·· -file·income tax retumS;-·Thcrc was no provision for income taxes,for each·oftbe·years ended June-30;-·· · ···· ···· · ·· 

2015 and 2014. Thei:e are no significant dcfclICd tax assets or liabilities. These entities have concluded · 
tht:rc arc no significant uncertain tax positions requiring disclosun: and there is no material liability far 
unrccognized tax benefits. It is the policy of these entities to recognize in1=st related to unrecognized 
tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in income lax exP= · 
With few exceptions, t)ie System is no longer subject to incoIDC tax examination by the U.S. federal or 
state tax authorities for years before 2012. 

Perfonnance IndiClllOr 

Excess of revenues and gains over eicpenses is comprised of operating revenues and expenses and 
nonope:raling gains and losses. For pmposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be 

· ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as opernting revenue and 
expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains or losses, which 
include contn"butions, realized gains and losses on the sales of securities and property and equipmeot, 
unrestricted investment income, and contn"butions to community agencies. 

Charitv Care 

The System has a fonnal charity care policy under which patient care is provided to patients who meet 
certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The System docs not pursue 
collection of amoiints detcnnined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they are not reported as revenues. 

Of the System's $342 millipn and $319 million total expenses reported in 2015 and 2014, 1espectillely, 
an estimated $6.7 million and $13.6 million, respectively, arose from providing services to charity 
patients. The estimated costs of providing charity services are based on a· calculation which applies a 
iatio of costs to chaiges to the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to charity 
patients. The iatio of cost to charges is calculated based on the System's total expenses divided by gross 
patient service revenue. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

F~ instruments which subject the System to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the 

· Systeni's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated 
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party payors and 
amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and uncollectt"ble amounts. The System's 
investment portfolio consists of diversified inveslmel!ts, which are subject to madcet risk. Investments 
that exceeded 10% of investmcn~ include the SSGA S&P SOO Tobacco Free Fund as of June 30, 2015 
and2014. 

\ 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

· 2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include certificates of deposit with matmities of three months or less when 
pmehased and investments in overnight deposits at various banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude 
amounts whose use is limited by board designation and amounts held by trustees under revenue bond 
and other agreements. The System maintains approximately $38,000,000 and $49,000,000 at June 30, 
2015 and 2014, respectively, ofits cash and cash eqllivalent accounts with a single institution. The 
System has not experienced any losses associated with \!q>osits at this institution. 

Net Patient Service Revenues and Accaunts Receivable 

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts different from 
its established rates. Payment ammgements include prospectively determined rates per discharge, 
reimbuxsed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient service revenue 
is reported at !lie estimated net reslizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for 
services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with 
third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accIUeci on an estimated basis in the period the related 
services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are dcteiminea. Changes in 
these estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial· statements in the year in which they occur. 

The System recognius patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have 
third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For uninsured 
patients, the System provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private insurance 

. payors. 

The pro~sion for doubtful accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected 
net collections considering historical business and economic conditions, trends in health care coverage, 
and other collection indicators. The System records a provision for doubtful accounts in the period 

· services are provided related to self-pay patients, including both uninsured patients and patients with 
deducb.'ble and copaymcnt balances due for which third•party coverage exists for a portion of their 
balance. · 

Periodically throughout the year, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounls based upon historical write-off experience. The results of this review are then used to malcc 
any modifications to the provision for doubtful accounts to establish an appropriate allowance for 
dOubtfui accounls. The deerease in the provision for doubtful accounts in 2015 is driven primarily by 

. revisions made in fiscal year 2014 to the System's "charity care policy eligi'bility. Accounts receivable 
are written off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with internal po!fu.ies. 

lnyentories 

Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or 
market. 

I 

9 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Jtine30,201S and2014 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Propertv. Plant and Equipment 
·---· ··-- -·- ·--- ---·--· -·- ···-·· --·-- ··- - - -· -- •···· ·····--· ··-·- --·· 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or fair value at the time of donation, 
less ~ dcprcciaiion. The System's policy iS ·to capitalize expcnditwes for major 
improvements and clwge maintenance and repair.I currcnlly for cxpcnditwes which do not extend the 
lives of the related assets. The provisions for dep/:eciation and amorti7.ation have been detc:nnined using 
the straight-line method at mies intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, 
which range from 2 to 40 years. Asseis which have been purchased but not yet placed in service are 
included in construction in progress and no depreciation expense is recorded. 

Conditional Asset Retirement Obljgations 

The System recognizes the fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset retirementS 
in the period in wfilch the obligation is incurred, in accordance with the Accounting Standanls for 
Accounting/or Asset Retirement Obligations (ASC 410-20). When the liability is initially recorded, the 
cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized by increasing the canying amount of the related 
long lived asset. The liability is accreied to its present value each period, and the capitalized cost 
associated with the retirement obligation is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon 
settlement of the obligation, any difference between the cost to settle the asset retirement obligation and 

. the liability recorded is recogniud as a gain or loss in the consolidated statement of operations. 

As ofJune 30, 2015 and 2014, $1,185,801 and $1,215,036, respectively, of conditional asset retirement 
obligations are included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying coilsolidated 
balance sheets. 

Goodwill 

The System reviews its goodWill and other Jong-lived assets annually to determine whether the canying 
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon dctennination that an impairment has occurred, these assets 
are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 
2014. . 

Retirement Benefits 

The Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan (the Plan) provides retirement benefits fbr certain employees 
of the Medical Center and PPA who have attained age twenty-one and work at least 1,000 hoUis per 
year. The Plan conilists of a benefit accrued to July 1, 1985,'plus 2% of plan year earnings (to legislative 
mniamms) per year. The System's fiJnding policy is to conlribute amounts to the Plan sufficient to 
meet minimum funding requirements set forth in the Employee Rctirepicn1 Income Security J\ct of 1974, 
plus such additillnal amounts as may be dctcrmiJi.cd to be appropriate from time to time, The Plan is 
intended to constitute a plan dcscnl>cd in Section 414{k) of the Code, under which benefits derived from 
employer contn"butions are based on the separate account balanccs of-participants in addition to the 
dcfint:<l bene.lils umlcr I.he Phw. 

JO 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

Slrnmcant Acconnting Policies (Continued) 

Effective Januaxy 1, 2008 the Medical Ccoter decided to close participation iri the Plan to new 
- participants. As ofJanuary-1,.2008, cuxrent participants continued :to.participJrtcjn !he Plim. while.new .... _ -· .. __ 

employees receive a higher matching conlribution to the tax-sheltered annuity benefit program discussed 
below. 

During 2011, the Board of Trustees voted to freeze the accrual of benefits under the Plan effective 
December 31, 2011. 

· The System also mamtains tax-sheltered. annuity bcoefit programs in which it matches one half of 
employee contributions up to 3% of their annual salaly, depending on date of hire. Th.e System made 
matching contributions under the program of $6,005,553 and $5,584,205 for the years coded June 30, 
2015 and 2014, respectively. ·· 

During 2007, the Medical Center created a: nonqualified deferred compensation plan covering certain 
employees under Section 457(b) of the Code. Under the plan, a participant may elect to defer a portion 
of their compc:osation to be held until payment in the future to the participant or his or her beneficiary. 
C~t with the requirements of the Code, all amounts of deferred compensation, including but not 
limited to any investmcots held and all income attnoutable to such "'!'Ounts, property, and rights will 
remain subject to the claims of the Medical Center's creditors, without being-restricted to the payment 
of deferred compensation, until payment is made to the participant or their beneficiary. No contnoutions 
were made by the System for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. · · 

The System also provides a noncontributory supplcmcotal executive retirement plan covering certain 
funner executives of the Medical Center, as defined. The System's policy is to accrue costs Under this 
plan using the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method". and to amortize past service costs over a 
fifteen year period. Bcoefits under this plan are based on the participaot's final average si¥ary, social 
security benefit, rctin:mcot income plan bcoefit, and total years of service. Certain investments have 
been designated for payment of benefits under this plan and are included in assets whose use is limited­
pcnsion and insurance obligations. 

During 2007, the System created a supplcmcotal executive retirement plan covering certain executives 
of the Medical Ccoter. The System m:ordcd compensation cxpcose of $319,990 and $60,000 for the 
years ended June 30, 2015 and ,2014, respectively, related to this plm;i. 

Employee Fringe Benefits 

The System has an "camoo time" plan. Under this plan, each qualifying employee "earns" hours of paid 
leave for each pay period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacations, holidays, or 
illness. Hours earned but not used aic vested.with the employee and are paid to the employee upon 
tcnnination. The System expenses the cost of these bcocfits as they are earned by the employees. 

11 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 20_14 

2. Significant Acco~nting Polldes (Continued> 

Debt Jssugnce Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium 
··- ·~·-----··· .. ----··- ·-···-· ~--·--- ··- .. -·-· -··- .... -··-·- ..• 

The debt issuance costs." incuIIcd to obtain financing for the System's conslluction and ICllOVation 

programs and!Cfin!!J!cing of prior bonds and the original issue discount orprcmilDD arc amortized using 
the straight-line method over the repayment period of the bonds. This approximates the effc:c1ive interest 
method. The original issue discount or pn:milDD is presented as a component of bonds payable. 

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted 

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements, 
pension and insurance obligations, designated assets set aside by the Board ofTIUStees, over wbich the 
Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for otherpUipOses, and donor-restricted 
investments. 

Classificatiorr of Net Assets 

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or pcnnanently rcstricted support if they are received with donor 
stipulations that )imit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets arc those whose use 
by the System lias been limited by donors to a specific time period or puipose. When a donor restriction 
expires (i.e., when a stipulated time restriction ends or pUipOse rcstriction is accomplished), temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of operations 
as either net assets released from restrictions used for operations (for noncapital-rela!ed items and 
included in other revenue) or as net assets released from restrictions used for capital (for capital-related 
items). 

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in 
pexpctuity. Income eamed on permanently restricted net assets, to the extent not restricted by the donor, 
including net unrealized appreciation on investments, is included in the consolidated statement of 
operations as unrestricted resources or as a change in temporarily restricted net assets in accordance with 
donor-intended pmposes or applicable law. 

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported 
as unrestricted contn'butions in the accompanying eonsolidatea financial stat=cnts. 

. Jrrvestments and lnye.rtment ln¢ome 

Investments are cairied at filir value in the accompanying coiisolidated financial statements. See Note 8 
for further discussion regarding filir value measurc:ments. Reali=! gains or losses on the sale of 
investment securities are detennined by the specific idcntificaticin method and aie n!coided on the 
settlement date. Umeali7.ed gains and losses 011 investments are exclwled from tb,c excess of revenues. 
and gains oyer cixpcnses unless the investments are classified as hading securities· or losses are 
considered other-than-temporary. Interest and dividend income on unrestricted investm,ents, 
unrestricted investment income on permanently restricted investments and unrestricted net realized 
gains/losses are reported as nonopcmting gains. . . · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and.2014 

2:. Significant ~ccounting Policies <Continued) 

Derivative Instruments 
.. _ ........... ·-- ··-·- ·- -·-----· -· ·-·· .. -···---··-·· ........ - ·-······ ·- ·····-··-· - .. . ··-····- ... . 

Derivatives an: n:cognized 8s either assets or liabilities in the ciinsolidated balance sheet at fair value 
regardless of the pUipOSC or intent for hoidinl! the instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivatives 
are ICCOgoizcd either in the excess of revenues and gains over expenses or net assets, depending on 
whether the derivative is speculative or being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash flows. Sec 
also note S. 

Beneficial /nJerest in Penietual TnlSI 

The SYstem. is the beneficiazy of trust funds administered by trustees or other third parties. Trusts 
wherein the System has the inevocable right to receive the i!icome earned on the trust assets in perpetuity 
are recorded as permanently restricted net assets at the fair value of the trust at the .date of receipt. 
Income distnbutions from the trusts an: reported as investment income that increase unrestricted net 
assets, unless restricted by the donor. Annual changes in the fair value of the trusts are recorded as 
increases or decreases to permanently restricted net assets. 

/nvesbnent Policies 

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and slcillful management of invested 
assetS with the objective of preserving capital and maidmizing returils. The invested !'SSets include 
endowment, specific pmpose and board designated (unrestric~ funds. 

Endowment funds are identified as permanent in nature, intended to provide support for l:urrent or future 
operations and otherpmposcs identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined loiiger­
tcnn investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable 
events. . . 

Temporarily restricted funds are temponuy in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the 
donor or grantor. These funds have various intermediatellong-tcnn time horizons associated with 
specific identified spending objectives. 

Board designated funds have various intermediatellong-term time horizons associat~ with specific 
spending objectives as determined by the Board ofTrustees. 

Management of these assets is designed to maximi7.C total return while preserving the capital values of 
the funds, protecting the funds from inflation and providing liquidity as needed. The objective is to 
provide a real rate of ldmn that meets inflation, plus 4% to 5%, over a long-term time horizon. 

The System tmgcts a diversified asset allocation that places cmpmisis on achieving its long-tcnn return 
objectives within prudent risk constraints. · 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2.014 

2. Slpn!ficant Accounting Policies !Contlnned) 

Jn accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of !nsdtulWnal Funds Act (UPMIF A), the Systeµi 
con8idem the following fiu:tors in making a determination to appwprialc or accumulate donor-restricted 
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the ozganization and 
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) "the poSSl"ble efli:ct of 
inflation and dcflatioµ; (e) the cxpccted total return from income and the appreciation of investments; 
(f) other resourocs of the organi1'!tion; and (g) the investment policies of the o>ganization. 

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from tiine to time, to provide a stream of funding for 
the support of key programs. The spending policies are stmcturcd in a manner to ensure that the 
purchasing po\ver of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the 
progiams. The System currently has a policy allowing interest and dividend income eamed on 
inveslments to be used for operations with the goal of keeping principal, including its appreciation, 
intact 

Federol Grant Revenue and Emenditures 

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the related expenditure is 
incuned. 

Malpractice Loss Contingencies 

The System has a claims-made basis policy for its malpractice insurance_ coverage. A claims-made basis 
policy provides specific coverage for claims reported during the policy term. . The System has 
established a reserve to cover professional lialiility exposure, which may not be covered by insunmce. 
The possil>ility exists, as a nonnal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance 
"!>verage may be asserted against the System. In the event a loss contingency· should occur, the System 
would give it appropriate recognition in its consolidated financial statements in conformity With 
accounting standards. The System expects to be able to obtain renewal or other coverage .in future 
periods. 

In accordance.with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 
954): Presentalion of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries (ASU 2010-24), at June 30, 
2015 and 2014, the System recorded a liabilityof$11,977,416 and $11,447,463, respectively, related to 
estimated professional liability losses covered under this policy. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the System 

. also recorded a iece:ivable ofSS,060,416 and $7,435,463, respectively, related to estimated recoveries· 
under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potenlial losses. These amounts are included in accmed 
pension and other liabilities, and intangll>lc assets and other, respectively, on the consolidated balance 
sheets. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

· 1une 30, 2ql5 and 2014 

2. Significant Accounting Policies {Continued> 

The System maintains worla:rs' compensation insumm:c under a self-insured plan. The plan offi:n;, 
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against 
cic=sive losses. The System has employed independent actuaries to cstimale the ultimate costs, if any, 
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued worl!:CIS' compc:nsalion losses of $2,909,142 ·and $2,854,873 
at June JO; 2015 and 2014, respectively, have been discountm at 1.25% and, in management's opinion, 
provide an a9cquatc reserve for Io8s contingencies. A1 June 30, 2015, $1,270,628 and $1,638,514 is 
recorded within accounts payable and acCtued expenses and accrued pension and other liabilities, 
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The System has also recorded $266,399 
and $379,572 within other cum:nt assets and intangiole assets and other, respectively, in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets to limit the acc:rucd losses to the rctcntion amount at June 30, 
2015. At June 30, 2014, $1,281,770 and $1,573,103 is recorded within accounts payable and accrued 
expenses and accraed pension and other liabilities, rcspcctively, in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets. The System has also recorded $285,914 and $372,777 within other current assets and 
intangiole assets and other, respectively, in the accompanying balance sheets to limit the accrued losses 
to the retention amount at June 30, 2014. 

Health Insurance 

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company 
which ~ts in determining the current funding requirements of participants under .the terms of the plan 
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System 
is insured above a stop-loss amount of $325,000 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and 
those claims incwrcd but not reported at June 30, 2015 and 2014 of Sl,744,516 and $1,376,638, 
respectively, are reflected in the accompanying consi>lidatcd balance sheets within accounts payable and 
accrued expenses. · 

Advertising Costs 

The System expenses advertising costs as ini;u=d, and such costs totaled approximately $794,000 and 
$1,092,000 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Recent 4ccounlingPronouncernents 

In April 2015, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest -
lmpulalion of Interest: SimplifYing the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (ASU2015-03). ASU 2015-

. 03 simplifies th~ piesentalion of debt issuance costs and requires thiit the debt issuance costs related to 
a recogni=l debt liability be prcsen!ed in the balance sheet as a ~ deduction from the Canying 
amount of that debt liability, consistent withdebt discounts. ASU 2015-03 is effective for.the System's 
year ending June 30, 2017, with early adoption peI!Ilitted. The System is cmrcntly evaluating the impact 
of the pending ac!Option of ASU 2015-03 on the System's consolidated financial statements. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTEs TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

Sigii!ficant Aecounting Policies CContinned) . . ' 
In May 2015, the FASB" issued ASU.No. 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (I'opic 820): Disclosures 
for Investments in Certain Entities ·That CaiculateNet Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent) (ASU ... 
2015-07). ASU 2015-07 removes the requimnent to include investments in the fair value hierarchy for 
which fair value is measured using.the net aSSct value per sbme practical expedient under ASC 820. 
ASU 2015.07 is effective retrospectively forthc System's year eodingJune30, 2018, with early adoption 
pennitted. The System is cum:ntly evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU 2015-07 on 
the System's consolidated :financial statements. 

. Subseauenl Events 

Management "or the System evaluated events occmijng between the end· of its fis;,,,i year and 
Scptembcr22, 2015, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

·3. Net Patient Service Revenue 

The following SUllllDllrizes net patient service nwenue for the years ended June 30: 

Gross patient service nwenuc 
Less contzactual allowances· 
Less provision for doubtful accounts 

Net patient service revenue 

$969,527,343 
616,003,688 
22J6L992 

$902,145,398 
564,417,393 

24.345,766 

The System maintains conbacts with the Social Security Administralion (''Medicare") and the State of 
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (''Medicaid"). The System is paid a . 
prospectively determined fixed price for each Medicare and Medicaid inpatient acute care service 
depending on ~e type of illness or the patient's diagnosis related group classification. Capital costs and 
certain Medicare and Medicaid outpatient services arc also reimbursed on a prospectively detcnnined 
fixed price. The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost 
basis wbii:h arc settled with retroactive adjustments upon completion and audit of related cost finding 
reports. · · · 

Differences between amounts pICViously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be 
recoverable or payable arc included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become 
known. The percentage of net patient service revenues earned froin the Medicare and Medicaid 
pro~ was 35% and 5%, respectively, in 2015 and 36% and 4%, rcspcctively, in 20\4. 

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs arc complex and subject to 
interpremtion. The System believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; 
compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and intmprctalion 
as well as significant rcgulatocy action including fines, pClllllties, and exclusion from the Medicare and 
Medicaid programs (Note 14). . 
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CMC HE~THCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Jw;ie 30, 2015 and2014 

3. Net P~tient Service Revenue (Continued) 

Tho System also maintains conlraets with certain commercial carriers, health maintenance organfutions, 
.. -prefeired provider-organiutions and statc-atid.fedoml agencies. The.basis.fur payment under.these. ....... - -- . 

agreements includes prospectively dete:nnined rates per discharge and per day, discounts from 
established cbmges and fee scrccns. The System does not cnm:ntly hold n::imbursement contracts which 

. contain financial risk components. 

The approximate percentages of patient Service revenues, net of contractual allowances and discounts 
and provision for doubtful accounts for the yc;arn ended June 30, 2015 and 201°4 from third-party payers 
and uninsured patients arc as fullows: 

2015 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual 

allowance and discounts 

2014 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual 

allowance and discounts 

Third-Party Uninsured Total All 
Payors Patients Payors 

99.35% 0.65% 100.0% 

98.7% 1.3% . 100.0% 

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances, discounts and 
provision fur doubtful accounts recogniud in 2015 and 2014 trom major payor sources, is as fullows: 

Net Patient 
Service 

Provision Revenues 
Gross Contmctual for Less Provision 

Patient Service Allowances Doubtful for Doubtful 
Revenues and Di§!;Qunts . Accounts Accounts 

2015 
Private payors (includes 

·coinsurance and dednctihles) $ 367,515,720 $164,384,699 $ 7,659,256 $195,471,765 
Medicaid 90,215,052 73,061,175 580,630 16,573,247 
Medicare 478,608,649 360,443,314 1,584,964 116,580,371 
Self-pay 33.l!fZ.922 18,114.500 12.937.142 2.136.280 

$ 969 Sp.343 $616,003 688 $22 761 992 $330 761 663 

2014 
Private payors [mc!udes 

coinsurance and deducboles) $ 334,759,047 $142,600,503 $ 6,520,130 $185,638,414 
Medicaid 61,199,898 48,401,662 1,874,991 10,923,245 
Medicare 446,277,944 331,879,729 1,640,875 112,757,340 
Self-pay 59.908.509 41.535.499 14..309.770 4.063.240 

$ 902 145 398. $564417 393 $24.345,766 $313 382 239 
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CMC HEALmCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE_MENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 . 

3. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued) 

The System recognizes changes in accoUilling estimates for net patient service ICVCDues and third-party 
. payoi settlcmentS as ·n:cw evcrits ·oceur or as· additional information is obtaincd;-·For the ycam ended ··· 

June 30, 2015 elid 2014, favoiable adjustments xcconlcd for changes to prior year ~ were · 
approximately $2,400,000 and $349,000, ~vely. 

Medicaid Enhancement T~ and Disproportionate Shore Pavment 

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement 
Tax (MET) equal to ~5% of the Medical Center's net patient service revenues, with certain exclusions. 
The amount of tax incwred by the Medical Center for 2015 and 2014 was $14,962,857 and $13,865,109, 
respectively. 

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New 
Hampshiie adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding · (DSH) 
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlib: the folIDCI' funding method, the State's approach led to a payment 
that was not diiectly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legisla,tion 
crea!cd some level oflosses at certain New Hampshire hoSPitals, while other h05Pitals reali7.ed gains. 
DSH payments from the State are recorded in operating revenues and amounted to $2,452,816 in 2015 
and $3,136,409 in 2014. 

During 2014, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) began an audit of the State's 
program and the di5P10portionate share payments made by the State in 2011, the first year that those 
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided ·by New Hampshiie hospitals. It is 
possible that ~ubscqw:nt years will also be audited by cMS. At the date of these consolidated financial 
statements, CMS's audit was still in process, and the System has received no indication of adjustments, 
if any, that may be made to disproportionate share payments received in prior yeazs. As such, no 
amounts have· been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements related to this 
contingency. 

Electronic Health Records Incentive Pavroents 

The CMS Blectroiiic Health Records (EHR) inccnlive programs provide a financial incentive for the 
"meaningful use" of certiiied EHR technology to achieve health and efficiency goals. To qualify for 
incentive paym~, eligi"blc organizations must successfully demonstrate meaningful use of certified 
EHR technology through various stages defined by CMS. The System filed certain meaningful use 
attestations with CMS. Revenue totaling $1,397,358 and $2,348,944 associated with these meaningful 
use attcstatiODI' is recorded as other revenue for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES 1;0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Jnnc30,2015 and2014 

4. Property.Plant and Equipment 

The major categories of property, plant and equipment at June 30 are as follows:. 

Land and lend improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Fixed equipment 
Movable equipment 
Cons1Nction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment 

Useful 
Lives 

2-40years 
2-40ycars 
3.25 years 

3-2:5 years 

MU 

$ 2,450,323 
98,255,404 
42,225,940 

104,692,236 
2,837.272 

250,461,175 
155.985,829 

6!l.li 

$ 2,475,944 
93,524,751 
43,210,158 

102,989,943 
4.321.603 

246,522,399 
159.533.002 

s 94,475 346 . $ 86 989 3?7 

Depreciation expense amounted to $11,582,762 and $10,860,481 for the yean; ended June 30, 2015 and 
2014, respectively. 

The cost of equipment under capital leases was $7,844,527 and $4, 783,240 al June 30, 2015.and 2014, 
respectively. Acrnmulaled amortization of the leased equipment al June 30, 2015 and 2014 was 
$3,906,353 and $2,854,542, respectively. Amortization of assets under capital leases is included in 
depreciation and amortization expense. 

5. Long-Term Debt and Note Payable 

Long-term debt at June 30 consists.of the following: 

New Hampshire Health and Edllcation Facilities 
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds: 

· Series 2006 bonds with interest Illllging from 4.875% to 5.00% 
per year and principal payable in annual installments 
ranging from $430,000 to $2,680,000 through July 2036 

Series 2012 bonds with interest Illllging :6:om 4.00% to 5.00% 
per year and principal payable in annual installment& 
ranging from $1,125,000 to $2,755,000 through July 2032 

Note payable - see below 

Capitalized lease 'obligations 
Unamortized original issue premiums/discounts · 

Less cwrent portion 

19 

$30,430,000 $30,835,000 

32,065.000 
62,495,000 
8.456,208 

70,951,208 
4,285,560 
2,150,353 

77,387,121. 
C4,158,72Sl 

34.250.000 
65,085,000 

8,606,252 
73,691,252 
2,098,213 
2.438.101 

78,227,566 
(3501,677) 

$73 228 396 $74 725 889. 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT~ 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

5. Lone-Term Debt and Note Pavable (Continued) 

In May 2006, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $32,910,000 of tax-exempt 
··fixedrate revenue bonds (Series 2006): Undcrtbe tams of the loan agiccments, the Medical CCD!cr has· ... · ·-·--­
granted the Authority a fust collatcrali=I. interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing 

· and :futme property, plant_ and equipment. ·The Medi~·Ccatcr is required to maintain a minimum debt 
service coverage ratio of 1.25. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant for the year 
ending June 30, 201.5. . The proc:ccds of the Series 2006 bond issue were used to advance refund 
$9,010,000 of Series 2002A bonds, to provide funding for renovating additional space and equipment at 
the Medical Center, and to provide a portion of the funding for the construction of a parking garage. 

In December 2012, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $35,275,000 of tax­
exempt fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2012). Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical 

· Center bas granted the Authority a first collateializcd interest in all gross :n:ceipts and a mortgage lien 
· on existing and :futme property, plant and equipment The Medical Center is required to maintain a 

minimum debi service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant 
for the' year ending June 30, 2015. The proceeds of the Series 2012 bond issue wenrnsed to advance 
refund the remaining 2002A bonds, '!Clvance i:efund ccrtain2002B bonds, pay off a short tam CAN note 
and fund certain capital pun:hases. 

The Medical Center has an agreement with the Autborizy, which provides for the establishment of 
various funds, the use of which is generally restricted to the payment of debt. These funds are 
administered by a trustcc, and income earned on certain of these funds is similarly restricted. One of 
the funds held by the truslcc is a debt service reserve fimd held solely for the benefit of the Series 2006 
bonds. This fund may be used should the Medical Center fail lo meet principal and interest payments 
on the Series ·2006 bonds. The reserve fund requirement was $1,816,565 as of June 30; 2015. The 
reserve fund requirement was subsequently reduced to $557,864 as a result of the Series 2006 bonds 
being partially advanced refunded by the Series 201SA bonds as discussed in Note 15. Any amounts in 
excess of the rcquircments of the fimd may be transfcned at the dhcction of the Medical Center. 

Interest paid by the System totaled $3,264,825 and $3,909,154 for the years enwid June 30, 2015 8nd 
2014, respectively. 

Subsequent to the debt refinancing discussed in Note ·JS, aggregate principal payments doe on the 
revenue bonds and other debt obligations for each of the five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as 
follows: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
Thm:aftcr 

20 

$ 4;158,725 
4,248,463 
4,057,560 

12,013,416 
3,968,602 

49.510.000' 

$779567§6 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June30, 2015 and2014 

S. Long-Term Debt and Note Pavable (Continued) 

The fair value oflhe System's long-tcnn debt is estimated using discollllled cash flow analysis. based on 
· - · the System's cum:nt incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing amngcments,- -The filir- . 

value of the _System's long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease obligations, was $72,751,175 and 
$75,023,322 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, n:spcctively. -

Purswmt to a Gwuanty Agreement dated as of January 1, 1994 by and between Optima Health, Inc. 
(Optima) and the trustee for Hill=t Tcmicc's (Hillcrest) Series 1994 bond issue, later trnnsfcned from 
Optima to the 11\fedical Center, the Medical Center has guaranteed to fund, up to a maximum cumulative 
amount of $1,900,000, any deficiencies in Hillcrest's Debt Service Reserve Fund (the Reserve Fund) to 
the extent that the Reserve Fund Value, as defined, is less than $800,000. The Medical Center bas made 
cumulative payments of $251,564 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 under this guarantee. The Medical 
Centcrhaszcconled a liability for the remaining $1,648,436 as of June 30, 2015 and2014 within accrued 
pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets based upon management's 
estimate offutnre obligations. 

MOB I.LC Note Payable 

During 2007, MOB LLC (a subsidiary of Entexprises) established a nonrevolving line of credit for 
$9,350,000 with a bank in onlcr to fund construction of a medical office building. The line of credit 
bore interest at the LIBOR Jendingratc plus 1 %. Payments of interest only were due on a monthly basis 
until the completed construction of the medical office. During 2008, the building con5traction was 
completed and the line of credit was converted to a note payable with payments of interest (at the onc­
month LIBOR rate plus 1.4%) (1.584% at June 30, 2015) and principal due on a monthly basis, with all 
payments to be made no later than April 1, 2018. 

Derivatives 

The System uses derivative financial instruments principally to manage interest rate risk. During 2005, 
tho Medical Center entered into an interest ratc swap agreement to replace an existing agreement signed 
in 2003. This agreement involved the exchange of fixed ratc payments by the Medical Center for 
variable rate payments from the countcrparty without the exchange of the underlying notional amounts. 
The notional amount for this agreement was $15,000,000, and the agreement was scheduled to expire in 
November 2024. Under the provisions of this agreement, interest was to be paid to the countexparty, by 
theMcdicalCenter,at67%ofUSD-LIBOR-BBAthrough theremainderofthctcnn. OnJune 11,2014, 
the 2005 swap agreement was teminatcd and the Medical Center paid, $2,354,300_ to settle this swap 
agreement, which included a swap payoff amoUD1 of $2,327,000 along with certain tcrmin&tion fees. -

During 2007, MOB LLC entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notlona! amount of 
$9,350,000 in connection with its line of credit. Under this agreement, MOB LLC pays a fixed rate 
equal to 5.21 %, and receives a variable rate of the one-month LIBOR rate (0.184% at June 30, 2015).­
Paymcntsundcrtheswap agreement began April 1, 2008andtheagrccmentwillterminateApril1, 2018. 

The fair value of the MOB LLC interest rate swap agieement amounted to a liability of $993,543 aiid 
$1,295,819 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which amounts have been included within 
accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The changes in 
the liUr value of this derivative of $302,276 and $408,640 have been included within nonoperating 
invcstincnt income for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, n:spcctivcly. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

'Jun~ 30, 2015 and 2014 

6. Notes Receivable 

During Febrwuy 1994, Hillcrest, together with the Authority, restrw:tured $26,000,000 of special 
· · ·- · · · .... obligation revenue bonds (Serles 1990). The bondholder consented to an amendment of the Series 1990 

bond indenture, which permitted the n:dcmption of the Series 1990 bonds at a price of 85% of the' par 
value thereof, or $22,100,000. The redemption was acc0mplished partially with the issuance of 
$18,9s'O,OOO of Series 1994 revenue bonds to the Anthorlty. The Authority then loaned, under.a Loan 
Agr=ment and Mortgage, the proceeds thereof to Hillcrest, which proceeds, after payment of ceitain 
issuance expenses and accrued interest on the Series 1990 bonds, wen: used to pay a portion of the 
redemption price of.the Series 1990 bonds; Jn addition, certain funds deposited into the Series 1990 
Reserve Fund were paid to Fidelity Health Alliance, Inc. (the Medical Center's former parent company 
and one of the organizations which formed Optima and hcn:inaflcr rcfened to as Optima) to repay earlier 
advances. optima then loaned $2,581,528 to Hillcrest pursuant to a subordinated loan agreement 
Hillcrest owed Optima $400,856, which was converted from a current obligation to a long-tcnn 
obligation and included in the subordinated loan agreement resulting in a total of $2,982,384 owed to 
Optima. In conjunction with the disaffiliation from Optima effective July 1, 2000, the subordinated loan 
became payable to the Medical Center. Hillcrest used a portion of the subordinated loan to pay a portion 
of the redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. Also, upon redemption of the Serles 1990 bonds, 
$1,500,000 from the Series 1990 Reserve Fund was transfern:d to the Series 1994 Resi:Ive Fund and the · 
rem•ining amount, $1,074,000, of the Series 1990 Reserve Fund was used to pay a portion of the 
redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. The subordinated loan is subordinated in all respects to the 
Serles 1994 revenue bonds. During 2004, the subordinated loan was restructured by the Medical'Ccnter. 
The principal. due was reduced. The new note bears interest at a stated rate of 5% per annum. The 
balance receivable :from Hillcrest is $879,035 and$947,S77 at June 30, 2015 and2014, respectively. As 
of August 31, 2008, Hillcrest defirul.ted on their debt covenants. As a result, the Medical Center has 
1eserved $7~3,885 and $800,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, against the note ~vable in 
the event ofdefirul.l As of June 30, 2015, all payments are cmrent. 

7. Operating Leases 

The System has various noncancelable agreements to lease various pieces of medical equipment. The 
System also has noncancclable leases for office space. The System has also assumed lease obligations 
for physician practices 1hat became provider based. Rental expense under all leases for the years ended 
June 30, 2015 and 2014was $5,252,520 and $5,747,475, rcspcctively. 

Estim8ted future ll!inimum .lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
Thereafter 

22 

$ 3,087,236 
2,651,294 
2,585,825 
2,371,482 
2,328,245 

13.424.334 

$26 448 416 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOI:JDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

8. Investments and Assets Whose Use Is Limited 

Investments and assets whose use is limited arc c;omprised of the following at June 30: 

2015 ~014 
FairYalue ~ Fair Value Cost 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,881,077 $ 6,881,077 $ 7,135,207 $ 7,135,207 
U.S. federated IIcasury obligations 6,126,802 6,126,802 6,08o;s85 6,080,585 
Marlcctable equity ~cs 32,268,622 27,825,251 31,492,795 25,952,651 
Fixed income securities 47,478,003 47,755,164 47,416,164 46,870,479 
Private investment funds 51.471,785 33..219.309 . 52,830.144 34.865.098 

·SJ~22~282 SJ2J 802 ~3 SJ~2~~B2~ $] 2g 2!li Q2g 

Investment income and r:ealized gains and losses and unrealized appreciation (depreciation) is 
SllIIJill8rized as follows: 

Umcstricted: 
Nonopcrating investment income 
Realized gains on sales of investments, net 
Change in umcalized (depreciation) appreciation on investments 

Restricted: 
Investment income 
Change in unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on investments 
Changes in interest in perpetual trust · 

$ 2,544,837 
1,118,293 

Cl.785.737) 

$ 1877393 

$ 2,314 
(14,371) 
167,919. 

$ 1S~ §~2 

$ 2,101,361 
5,197,478 
7.081,308 

$14 380.147 

s 4,429 
135,608 
740.821 

$ asg a~& 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an 
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous Illlliket for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between maiXet participants on the measmement dale. Jn determining fair value, the use of various 
valuation approaches, including maikct, income and cost approaches, is pennitted. 

A fair value hierarchy has been established based on wheiher the inputs to valuation techniques are 
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect maiket data obtained from sources independent 
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's own assumptions abOut how market 
participants would value an asset or liability based on ·the best information available. Valuation 
techniques used to measure fiiir value must niaximize the use of observable inputs and minimiw the use 
of unobservable inputs. The standard descn'bes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inPuts. of 
which the first two arc considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure 
filir. value. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS · . . . 

June 30, :io1s and 2014 

8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited CContinn~> 

The following dcscn"bcs the hierarchy of inputs used to = fair value and the ptjmaiy valuation 
· methodologies used by the System for financialinslrumen!nneasure(hi fuirvalue on a recurring basis;-···--· 

The three levels of inputs me as follows: 

Level 1 - Ob~lc inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; 

Level·2 -Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active marlrets, that are observable either directly or 
indirectly; and 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs in which there is little .or no marlret data. 

Assets and liabilities measured e1 fair value me based on one or more of three valuation t.cchniques. The 
three valuation techniques are as follows: 

Market approach-Prices and other relevant information gcncraicd by marlret transactions involving 
idenlical or comparable assets or liabilities; 

Cost approach - Amount the1 would be· required to replace the service c;apacity of an asset (i.e., 
replacement cost); and 

Income approOL:h - Techniques to convert fu1ure amounts to a single present amo'unt based on 
market expectations (including prescni value techniques). 

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the application ofval)Ullion techniques applied to 
similar assets and liabilities has been consistent The following is a description of the valuation 
methodologies used: 

. 
U.S. Treasury Oblirrations and Fix£d Income Securities 

The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, external pricing providers, or 
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The System holds :fixed income 
mutual funds and exchange traded funds, gov~ental and federal agency debt instruments, municipal 
bonds, corporate bonds, and foreign bonds which are primarily classified as Level 1 within the fair value 
~by. 

Marketable Equitv Securities 

Marketable equity sCcurities are valued based on statCd marlret prices and at the ii.ct asset value of shares 
held by the S:fstem at year end, which generally results in classification as Level 1 within the fair value 
hierarchy. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYS'fE4\{, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 201·5 and"2014 

8. . Investments and Assets Whose Use is J.imited (Continued) 

f_rivaJe lrrvestment Funds 
.. ··- -·· -- ·-- -

The System invests in private invesbnent fimds that consist primarily of limited partncrnhip interests in 
investment funds, which, in turn, invest in divernified portfolios predominantly comprised of equity and 
fixed income securities, as well as options, futures conlracts, and some olhcr less liquid investments. 
MaDagement has approved procedutes pmsuant to lhe methods in which the S}'Sten! values these 
investments, which ordinarily will be the emo~ equal "? the pro-rata interest in the net assets of the 
limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of; each investment manager from time to 
time, usually monthly and/or quarterly. These investments are classified as Level 2 or 3, depending on 
the redemption terms. 

System :management is responst"ble for !he tair value measurements of investments. reported in the 
consolidated firuincial statements. Such amounts ai:e generally determined using audited finan!'ial 
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactfons.. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation 
of certain private investmi:nt funds, the estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from 
actual values, and diffCICDccs could be significant. Management believes that reported :fuir values of its 
private inWs!ment funds at the consolidated balance sheet dales are reasonable. · 

The following fair value hierarchy tables present infonnation about the System's assets and liabilities 
measured at tair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of signifiC'\Dt input to the 
valuations. 

~ Leve!2 ~ Total 
2015 
Cash and cash equivalems $ 6,881,077 $ $ $ 6,881,077 
U.S. federated treasuzy obligations 6,126,802 6,126,802 
Marketable equity securities 32,268,622 32,26~,622 
Fixed income securities 47,478,003 47,478,003 
Private investment funds 42.682.205 8.789.580 51.471.785 

Total assets at :fillr value $92,754504 $42 682205 $ 8 789 580 . $144 226 289 

Interest rate swap $ $ $ C993 543) $ (993 543) 

2014 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,135,207 $ $ $ 7,135,207 
U.S. federated treasurY obligations 6,080,585 6,080,585 
Marlretablc equity securities 31,492,795 31,492.795 
Fixed income securities 47,416,164 47,416,164 
Private investment funds 42,129,022 1Q,10l,ll5 ~2,830,144 

Total assets at filirvalue $22 l~:Z~l W22li!!~ $J!l 121.ll~ $J~2~8~ 
.. . 

Interest rate swap $ $ $Cl 295 8 ]9) $ Cl 295 819) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

J1111e30, 2015 and2Ql4 

8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued) 

The following tables ptCScntthe assets and liabilities caxrlcdat fair value as ofiunc 30, 201S and 2014 
- that ari: classified Within LcveD of the liiir valili: hicriitc:hy. The tables reflect gainS and1osseif forthe __ _ 

year. Additionally, both observable and 11DDbservable inputs may be used to dctennine the fair :vaJ!lc'. of 
positions that the System has classified within the Level 3 category. As a result, the unrcali7.ed gains 
and losses for assets and liabilities within LCvel 3 may include clllinges in fair value that were attO'lmtable 
to both observable and unobservable inputs. 

Balance at June 30, 2013 
Rca1i:mi gairis 
Sales 
Swap tennination 
Unrealized gains 

Balance at June 30, 2014 

Realiud gains 
Sales 
Unrealized gains 

Balance .at June 30, 2015 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Significant Unobservable Inputs tI..eve! 3) 

Private Interest 
In\'CSl:mcnt Rate 

Funds Swap 

$12,126,858 $(4,031,459) 
724,352 

(3,019,817) 
2,327,000 

269.722 408.640 

10,101,115 (1,295,819) 

566,976 
- (2,000,000) 

121.489 302.276 

·$ 8 789 580 $ (993 543) 

There were no significantlransfen;betwecnLcvels 1, 2 or3 for the years cndcdJune30, 2015 and2014. 

In 2009, new guidance related to the Fair Value Measurement standard was issued for estimating the · 
fair value of invcstmCDts in investment companies Qimited partnerships) that have a calculated value of 
their capital account or net asset value (NA V) in accordance with or in a manner consistent with U.S. 
GA.AP, The System is pcmrlttcd under U.S. GAAP to estimate the fair value of an investment at the 
measurement date using the reported NAV without further wljustm.ent unless the System expects to sell 
the investment at a value other than NA V, or if the NAY is not calculated in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. The 'System's investments in private investment funds are recorded at fair value based on the 
most cunent NAV. 

The System pcrfonns additional proccdnres, including. due diligence reviews on its investmen~ in 
investment companies and other procedures with respect to the capital account or NAV provided, to 
ensure conformity with U.S. GAAP. The System has assessed factms including, but not limited to, 
managers' compliance with the Fair Value Measurement standard, price tnmsparcncy and valuation 
procedures in place, the ability to redecin at NAV at the measurement date, and existence of certain 
redemption rcstrictiops at the measurement date. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATIID FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued) 

The guidance also requires additional disclDSUICS to enable useis of the financial statements to 
"rillderstand the naluIC end"risk' of the·systctii•s investments;· Furthc:nnme; investments which can be 
redeemed at NAV by the System on the measurement date or in the nellr tetm arc classified as Level 2. 
Investments which cannot be redeemed on the mC8SUIClllellt date or in tlie near tc:nn are classified as 
Level 3. In accordance with this guidance, the table below sets forth additional disclosun:s for 
investment· funds valued based on .net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the 
investments by category as ofJunc 30, 2015 end 2014: 

Categorv 

2015 
Private inv~ 

funds-Level 2 
Private investment 

funds -Level 3 

2014 
Private invesbnent 

funds -Level 2 
Private invesbncnt 

funds-Level 3 

Investment SJraJepjes 

Unfunded 
Fair Value Commitments 

$42,682,205 $ -

8,789,580 

$42, 729,029 

10,101,l IS 

$ 

Redemption 
Freouencv 

Daily/monthly 

Quarterly/ 
annually 

Daily/monthly 

Quarterly/ 
annually 

U.S. Federated Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities 

Notice Period 

2-30 day notice 

1-2 year lockup with 
65-95 day notice 

2-30 day notice 

1-2 year lockup with 
60-95 day notjce 

The primary p!llpOse of these investments is to provide a highly predictable aod dependable source of 
income, preserve capital, reduce the volatility of the total portfolio, aod hedge against the risk of 
deflation or protracted economic contraction. 

Marketable F.quity Securities 

The primary p!llpOse of equity investmcnls is to provide appreciation of principal and growth of income 
with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of loss. The 
tOtal equity.portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to ccoiiomic sector, industry, 
number of holdings aod other cbaractcristics, including style and capitalization. The System may 
employ multiple equity investment maoagcrs, each of whom may have ll;istinct investment styles. 
Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not. be fully diveisificd, it is cxpccted that the 
combined equity portfolio '!'ill be broadly diveisificd. 

27 



: 

CMC B;EALTHCARE SYSTEM", INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

· · June 30, 2015 and2014 

8. Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Contiooed). 

9. 

Private Inyes!ment Funds 

The primary pwpose of private investment fimds is to provide further portfolio diversification and to 
iednce overall portfolio volatility by invC:sting in strategies that are less =lated with trnditioual equity 
and fixed income investments.· Pi-ivatc investment funds may provide l\=S to strategies otherwise not 
accessible through traditional equities and fixed income soch as derivative instruments, real estate, 
distressed debt and private equity and debt. 

Fair Va/us o(Other Finmu:ial Instruments 

Other financial instruments consist of accounts rccciiVable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, 
amounts payable to tbiid-party payers and long-teIID. debt. The filir value of a!l financial instruments 
other than long-term debt approximates their relative book values as these financial instruments have 
short-term maturities or are reconled at amounts that approximate fair value. See Note S for discloSUIC 
of the fuir value oflong-term debt · 

Retirement Benefits 

A recoriciliation of the changes in the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan, the Medical Center's 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the New Hampshire Medical Laboratories Retirement 
Income Plan projected benefit obligations and the fair value of assets for the years ended June 30, 2015 
and 2014, and a statement of funded status of the plans.as ofJune 30 for both years follows: 

Changes in benefit obligotions: 
Projected benefit obligations 

Calholic Medic:al Ccnt<r 
Pension Plan 

New Hampshire 
Pre-1987 Supplc:mcnllll Medical l.aboratOrics 

Exmve Re!Uem!!!! Plan 1!!4jmnmt Igrozno Plan 
~ ™ ~ 2014 

al beginning of year $(221,842,560) $(201,367,482) $(5,l IS,270) $(5,136,340) $(2,763.275) $ (2,593,904) 
Service cost (700,000) (625,000) (15,000) (15,000) 
Intcrestcost (10,007,872) (9,576,309) . (175,754) (197,Sll) (107,000) (113,552) 
Br:nefitspaid 5,033,040 4,551,682 466,642 489,771 122,078 · 114,499 
A<tuariaJ less · (22,6BS,780J c1s,4B0,194J (284,460) (274,190) (89,029) (168,114) 
Expc:uses paid 188.309 654 743 2.350 I 2,'196 

Projectcd benefit obligotions 
at end of year (250,014,863) (221,842,560). (5;111,842) (5,118,270) (2,849,876) (2,763.275) 

Changes in plan llSSdl: . 
Fair Vlllue of plan assets 

at begnming of year 
Actu.ol tdum OU 

phmllSSds 
Employer cootn"butioos 
Br:nefits paid 
Expenses paid. 

Fair VBluc of plan llSSds 
al end of year 

Fundod - of plan 
atJunc30 

172,988,705 143,507.222 

885,682 24,687,908 
10,000,000 10,000,000 466,642 489,771 
(5,033,040) (4,551,682) (466,642) .~489,771) 

(188.309) 1654 743) 

178,653,038 1n988,705 

$ 0136JR?J) $ C488"HS5> $CSII1M2) $C511827ID $ 
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2,166,581 1,914,484 

10,348 320,392 
121,0JJO 59,000 

(122,078) (114,499) 
(l.350) (]2,7961 

:Z.173 SOI 2,166581 

£67fi 37.D s (S2fi~) 
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CNIC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Jwie 30, 2015 and 2014 

9. . Retirement Benefits (Continued) 

Cadiolic Medical Cail« ..... 

Ammm!s m:ognmd in the 
consolidated baJmice 
shcels consist of 

Pemjpn Pbm 
-l'ro-1987 Supplanmtal .• 
Execative Jti:dn:mcnt Plan 
~ . ;!QM 

New Hampshire 
. Medical Labomloric:s. 
Rf&imnmt Income ptan 
~ 2014 

Cllmmt liability $ $ $ (44.S,591) $ ·(446,695) $ $ 
Noncum:nt liability at .361 825l C48 8S3 8SSJ 14 666.2S!J C4671.57Sl C676 375\ 1596.694\ 

Net 8maunt r=>g11izcd 

The net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from wuestricted net assets into 
net periodic benefit cost over ~e next fiscal year is $2,639,857. 

The current portion of accrued pension costs included in the above amounts for the System amounted to 
$445,591 and $446,695 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, rcspcctively, and has been included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses. · · 

In 2015, the System began to·usc the RP-2014 mortality tables, which in general· has longer life 
expectancies than the older tables used, which had ao impact oo the projected benefit obligation. 

The amountS recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years ended June 30, 2015 aod 2014 consist 
of: 

Amounts~ in the 
consoliclatcd balenceshJ 
total pion: 

Umestricted net ..setS: 
Net loss 

Net amount r=>g11izcd 

Cadiolic Medical Ceiler 
PensionPl1111 

l'ro-1987 Supplcmmtal 
Executive l\e!jmnmtPlm 

. 2!2li 2014 

New Hamp"1iie 
Medical Leboratori.,. 

Rdimnmt Income Pim 
2llli. a!!li 

$ 1!17,927 049l $166 012.5SO) $12.678.302\ $12.538 0781 SCI 479 988) $ 11.306 6TJ) 

s c27mQ49) S(§§Oi2;ssm sama3pzj sos;,8018) sc147998R> s<13M§TI> 

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 
2014: 

.. New Hmnpshhe ... Catholic Medical Cail« Pro-1987 Supplemental Medical Lebonitori.,. 
lrmria ll!!D R•ccutivc R.etlleu1l!:ftt.~gg Retitunent Jacome f1m 

a!!U a!!li ~ 2J!M. ~ :!2M 

Service cost $ 700,000 $ 625,000 . $ $ $ 15,000 $ 15,000 
In-- 10,007,872 9,576,309 175,754 1!17,511 107,000 113.SS2 
Expected retum on plen llSSCls (12,253,677) (10,872,113) (149,744) (140,-079) 
Amoitimion of ""'1lmial loss 2.139,216 1.>06.24i ~ Jn.l.l!!" SS.114 "274 

Net periodic paision ccSt $ ~2~ {Zl $ ~3S~3§ $~ $~ $ 2ZJ:ZO $ ~QW 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 · 

9. Retirement Benefits CContinue\l) 

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years 
endedJwie30,2015arid2014coiisist"of.·· :· ·-_- ·-· -·- -· ·-· - ---··--·-· ··- -- -· ·· · .... ··· ···- -·· ·- ...... . 

Net loss (gain) 
AmOrlizajjDll of aauarial loss 

Net amount'""°gniml 

Calholic Medical Center 
PmtjonPJan 

Pn>-1987 SupplcmClllel 
Executjye Retirement Plan 

im 2l!li 

S34,053,77S s 1,664,398 s 284,460 ·s 214,190 
(2 139 27§) CJ 506 242) (144 236) (128 !18) 

$31 9144Q9 $ l'R 156 $~ $~ 

The investments of the plans are comprised of the following at June 30: 
I 

Target Pre-1987 
Allocation Catholic Supplemental 

Fiscal Medical Center Executive 
Year Pension flan Retirement Pl!!!! 
2015 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Marketable equity 
securities 70.0% 70.!% 71.4% 0.0% 0.0% 

Fixed income secqrities 20.0 20.0 17.l 0.0 0.0 
Other ...lQ,Q ---2,2 115 0.0 0.0 

.ll!!l.11% .100.!!% .lll!!Jl% .J!Jl.% ..!!Jl.% 

New Hampshin: · 
Mcdiail I:aboniiorios 

Rt:!jmnent Income Plan 
2015 ~ 

$228,425 $ (12,199) 
WJ.W CS2.224) 

SWJ.U S CM AP> 

New Hampshire 
Medical Laboratories 

Retirement 
Income Plan 

2015 2014 

70.1% 71.4% 
20.0 17.l 

_J1,2 115 

.1WlJ!% J.l!!!Jl% 

The assumption for th~ long-tenn rate of retum on plan assets bas been determined by reflecting 
expectations regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio, with consideration given to th.e 
distribution of investments by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual asset class. 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan obligations at 
June 30 are as follows: 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

Catholic 
Medical Center 

Pension Plan 
2015 2014 

Pre-1987 
Supplemental 

Executive 
R.ctirement Plan 
~ 2014 

4.51% 4.37% 3.74% . 3.53% 
NIA NIA NIA NIA 
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New Hampshire 
Medical Laboratories 

Retirement 
Income Plan 

4.15% 3.97% 
NIA NIA 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

9. RetirementBenefits(Continued) 

The weighted~average assumptions uSed to determine the defined beoefit pension plan net periodic 
·!lenefiteoSisfortheyciirSciuledJline-3o·arcas'IolloW&:-· -· ···· --- · ·- ··· ···· ···· · -- - --· ·-··· · 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Medical Center Executive Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

2015 2Qli 2015 2Qli 2015 2014 

Discount rate 4.37% 4.82% 353% 3.96% 3.97% 4.43% 
Rate of compensation llicrcasc NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Expected long-tenn return 

on plan assets 7.50 7.50 NIA NIA 7.50 7.50 

The expected employer contn"butions for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 are not expected to be 
significant. · · 

The benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid for the years 
. ending June 30 are: 

Pre-1987 New Hampshire 
Catholic Supplemental Medical Laboratories 

Medical Center Executive Retirement 
Pension Plan Retirement Plan Income Plan 

2016 $ 6,599,280 $ 443,665 $149,489 
2017 7,338,004 4.32,762 164,312 
2018 8,183,597 421,194 171,414 
2019 9,047,515 408,949 .181,779 
2020-2024 57,682,517 1,836,779 952,616 

· The Medical Center contn"buted SHi,000,000, $466,642 and $121,000 to the Catholic Medical Center 
· Pension Plan, the Prc-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, and the New Hampshire Medical 
Laboratories Retirement Income Plan respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2015. The Medical 
Center plans to make any necessary contributions during the upcoming fiscal 2016 year to ensure the 
plans continue to be adcqoatcly funded given the cmrcnt marlret conditions. 
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CMC BEALTHC.ABESYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

9. RetirementBenefibl CCo,ntinnedl 

The following fair Vllluc hierarchy tables present infoxmatlon about the financial assets of the above 
. j:ibiriii" m~ at fair" va1Uc on. a· recumng "basis" based upon the lowest level of significant. iiiput. . .. 
valualion as ofJune 30, 2015 and 2014: 

The following table presents the assets carried at fuirvalues at June 30, 2015 and 2014 that are classified 
at Level 3 of the :tiiir value hiemrchy. The table reflects gains and losses for the year, including gains 
and losses on assets that were transferred to Level 3 as of Juni: 30, 2015 and 20J4. AdditioDany, both 
observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value of positions that the System 
has classified within the Level 3 catcgmy. As a rcsolt, the unn:a1i7.ed gains and losses for assets within 
Level 3 may include changes in fair value that were atlnDutable to both observable and unobservable 
inputs. 

Balance, beginning of year 

RealizM gains 
Unn:ali7.cd gains 
Sales 

Balance, end of year 

32 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Sirnificant Unobservable Inputs Q..evel 3) 

Private Investment Funds 
2015 2014 

$12,730,169 $11,687,972 

16 
814,627 

C!!.909) 

$13 534.903 

729 
1,061,286 

Cf9.818) 

$12.730 169 



· CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, J;NC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

· June 30, 2015 and 2014 

10. Community Benefiis 

The Systemrcndcrcd charity care in accordance with its fonnal. charity care policy, which, at established 
· · • · cliMgcS, amOulited tO $19,649,927 iind"$39;047,794 ·ror the years "eiidcd June 30;·2015 iltid 2014;· · 

xcspcclivcly. Also, the SyslclD provi~ COIDDllUlity service programs, without charge, such as the 
Medication Assistance Program, Community Education and Wellness, Patient Transport, and the Parish . 
Num: Program. The costs of providing these programs amounted to $716,119 and $789,719 for the 
years ended June 30, 2015 !'Ild2014, respectively. 

11. Functional Emenses 

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location including 
inpatient, outpatient and emergency care. Expenses rclaled to providing these services are as follows at 
June30: 

Health care services 
General and adminlstr.W.ve 

12. Concentration of Credit Risk . 

2015 2014 

$273,846,295 $256,063,051 
68.509,090 63,284.650 

$342355 385 $319 347 701 

The System grants credit without collateral to its paticots, most of whom arc local residents aod arc 
insured under third-party payor agrccmcots. The mix of rcceiva~lcs from patients aod third-partypayors 
is as follows at June 30: 

2015 2014 

Medicare 40% 39% 
Medicaid 13 14 
Commercial insuraocc aod other 20 18 
Paticots (self pay) 10 14 
Anthem. Blue Cross -11 -11 

ll!Q% l!l!i% 

·. 
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CMC BEAL'J;HCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

J~ 3Q, 2015 and 2014 

13. · Endowments 

IuJuly2008, the State ofNcwHampshirecnaclcda versionofUPMIFA(thcAct). The 11CW!aw, wbic!i 
··· hiid an effiictive diw:Of July 1, 2008; eliminates the 'historical dollar lhicshold and establishes prudent - ··- ·- ·· · · 

spending guidelines that consider both the duration aud pieservation of the :fund. As a result of this· 
cuactmcnt,. subject to the donot.s intent as cxprcsscd in a gift agiecmont or similar document, a New 
HmDpshire charl1ablc mganization may now spend the principal and income of 8D endowment fund, 
even from au undc:iwater fund, after considering the factois listed in the Act. 

At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the endowment net asset compositi~n by type of fund consisted of th~ 
following: 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 
Net Assets NetAssel!i Net Assets I!l!!!! 

2015 
Donor-restricted funds $ $330,158 $8,316,483 $ 8,646,641 
Board-desij:oaled funds 90,771.912 90.771.912 

Total funds $90 771 912 s330 158 $8 316483 $99418 S53 

2014 
Donor7restrlcted funds $ $528,802 $8,161,758 $ 8,690,560 

· Board--Oesignated funds 89,763.871 89,763,871 

Total funds Sa22~~.BZ1 S~28 BQ2 $8 lfil ~8 S2B ~~S; ~l 

Changes in endowment net assets consisted of the following for the fiscal yem11 ended June 30: . · 

Balauce at June 30, 2013 

Iuvcstmeot retw:n: 
Iuvcslment income 
Net appreciation (realized 

and umealized) 
Total investment gain . 

Contnlrulions 
Appropriation for operations 
Appropriation for capitsl 

Balaucc at J~ 30; 2014 

Unrestricted 
Net Assets 

Temporarily 
Restricted 
Net Assets 

Permanently 
Restricted 
Net Assets 

$77,880,226 $ 191,861 $7,281,983 $85,354,070 

939,393' 1,083 3,346 943,822 

10.801.727 876.429 11.678.156 
11,741,120 1,083 879,775 12,621,978 

142,525 

89,763,871 
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500,599 
(22,216) 

Cl42.S2Sl 

528,802 8,161,758 

500,599 
(22,216) 

98,454,431 



CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20rs and 2014 

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor requires the System to retain as a fund of petpetual duration. 
There were no such deficiencies as ofJune30, 2015 and2014. 

14. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

Various legal claims, geneially incidental to the conduct ofnonnal bpsincss, arc pending or have been 
threatened against the System. The System intends to defend vigoronsly against these claims. Whlle 
ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is prcscntly indeterminable, it is management's 
opinion that the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the System. 

Regukitorv 

The hcalthi:are indusliy is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local 
governments. ~tly, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations 
conccroing poSS!ole violations by health ~ providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, 
which could result in the imposition of significant fines and pCmtltics as well as signifieant repayments 
for patient services previously billed Compliance with such laws and regulations are subject to 
government review and intctpretations as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasscrtcd at this time. 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

15. Subseonent Event 

On September 3, 2015, the Authority issued $32,720,000 ofRevenuc Bonds, Catholic Medical Center 
Is5uC:'Series 2015, ColiSisting of the $24,070,000 aggregate principal amount sericS' 2015A Bonds aw1·· -
the $8,650,000 aggregate principal amount Series 201SB Bonds sold via dim:t placement to a :financial 
institution. The Series 2015A Bonds were issued to provide fbnds for the pmpose of (i) advance 
refunding a portio11- of the outstanding 2006 Bonds in an amount of$20,655,000 to the first call dale of 
July l, 2016, (il") funding certaio constructipn projects and cqujp.ment purohascs in an amount of 
approximately $3,824;000, and (ili") paying the costs of issuance related to the Series 2015 Bonds. 

The Series 201SB bonds were structured as drawdown bonds. Proceeds will be used together with other 
monies of the Medical Center to currently refund on July 1, 2016 the full amount of 2006 Bonds then 
outstanding which were not already advance refunded by the 201 SA Bonds. The purchaser has agreed 
to advance funds available to be drawn through July 2016 up to a maximum principal of $8,650,000. 
There is no outstanding principal amount of the Series 201SB Bonds and this will only in=se upon a 
drawdown of the proceeds from the purchaser by the Medical Center. The Medical Center expects to 
draw the full balance of the 201SB Bonds on July 1, 2016. The following table s11Il1Il1Bri7.es the principal 
amounts outstanding (funds drawn) and the balance of funds aVailable to be drawn as of September 3, 
2015, and the maximum principal amount for each of the respective Series 2015 Bonds: 

Principal Balance Maxhnum 
Amouot Available Principal 

Qutstanding tobePrawn Amount 

2015 Series A $24,070,000 $ $24,070,000 
2015 Series B 8.650.000 8.650,000 

$24070.000 SB.~S~ggg $3222'1 ggg 
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CMC Health~e System; Inc. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITO~' REPORT 
ON'OTHERFINANCIAL INFORMATION 

'L. 

Our audits were condiicted fqr the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statemeJ'!ts as 
a whole, Tue' accomp?Jlying consoljdating info,mati0n is presented for purpo~s of addition,al arutlysis rattier 
than to prC);ent the l1nahciai position an.d re:s'ults ofop,erati0ns o(the i!idlvidual entiMs and is. not a i~uired 
part' Of the <;Onsolidatiid financial statemen!S. Siich.mformation is the rO,Spon!iibility cif i:n.Uiagement arid was 
derived from and .relates directly to the underlying accounting and other recordS ·used 1o prepare the 
consolidated £n,picial statements; The consolidating inforination has been subjecied io the auditiiig prqcedures 

· appli0d in the· alldit of the consolidated finanCiru staieinents and ·cerfain additional procedures;, incltiding 
comparing and reconeiling such: informaiion directly to the underlying accounting·and·other records used to 

I - - • " • - . - - .• ~ . : . 

prepare the consolidate? financial sf!!tei:Jlerts or to !he consolidate<:! financial •ta!em~n!s th0mselve.s, and otlier. 
addi.tional procedtires in accorqance. with .auditing StaridaidS generally accepted in the United .States of 

·Amen.ca. Jn olir.9J>inioji, the il\formation is fairly stated in ali'material res]ici:ts in·r~lation.to the eonsolidated 
financial statements'ils a whole. · 

Manchester, New Hampshire 
September22i2015 
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CMC HEAL~CARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATINO BALANCE SHE.BT 

rune 30, 201s 

.illllJ]. 

CMC 

~: Physician Allim>oc Anclllazy Allim>oe .~ Samt 
Practice Alllmoc Alllmoc Ambuhtmy 11..Ith Health Mol!eal ....... l!llmi: = ~ ~ ~ Sml;g 

""""" ""°"' - ~ .Am1<!!11iP.D lloll!< l!!liw Qima2li~11ml 

Cash and cash cqulwlc:nta s 36,179,.524 s 331,293 s 1,722,992 s 2S,S8~ s 62,797 s 94,.550 Sl,013,248 s 72,000 S 996,0Sl s s 40,498,040 
Sbmt-tcrm. inveszmmts 26,347,421 26,347,421 
ACCOltcltl receivable. !Id 38,550,588 34,968 1,161,767 ~9,741,323 
Invcntmics 2,124,292 2,124,292 
00.. =t....U 4 387.258 C44JB2l JUIA07 -1!.Qll) --- -- ~ --1.!.22 ..ill.ill) illM§). s 602 808 

Total cmrent aasa 107,589,083 287,011 1,841,399 17,574 62,797 129,518 3,359,6S9 73,197 981,494 (21,848) 114,319,884 

~roperty, plant and eqtaipmmt, nd 80.953,109 9,140,066 2,507,392 254,919 l,~19,860 94,475,346 

oebl:Z' assets: 
Unamortized debt is>uanco ccsts 731,733 - 22,186 7S3,CJ19 
Intangible assets and ether 10,207 121 --- ~ -- --- -- 15 873 415 --

10,938,854 22,186 5,666,294 16,627,334 

Aa8etl whose U6C is limited: 
Pcmion and 1nsmancc obligations 12,333,513 12,333,Sll 
Bcmd designated. mul donor 

Mtricted investments 92,408,487 7,010,066 1>9,418,553 
Held by 1rUStee under revmue 
bond~cnta 6 126 BQ2 --- --- -- --- -- -.-- 6.126 802 

IJ0,868 UQ2 . :zmM§li. --- 117 878 8§8 --- --- -- ---. --
Toi.I ...... S ~H! ~~211~11 s ZllZSUJ S1Jf2il~§~J ~s.i= S~ Slili.llll S.J2J22 s~ SI2,LW) s ~~ ~QI ~~:z 
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CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATINQ STATEMENT OF OF!!RATIONS 

Year Ended Junc 30,2015 

CMC 
Cu1holic Ph,.idan Alllaoco Anclllary Al1laocc Doctors Saint 
Medical Fnctioe Alllaoco Alllaooe Ambulmmy Hwth H"1th Malloai ....... Elimi-
i;,,,i,. ~ ~- :i~m - - A!!oclatfon ~ - ConAAlidated 

Net patient-service revenues, 
net of contnctual lllowmces 
mddisooun~ $ 3311,622,797 $ - $ - s - $ - $125,041 s 14,775,817 $ - $ - $ - .&353,523,m 

Provision For doubtM accounts Wl91~0l - --- - - (594§4D -- --- - (µ7§1992'1 
Nctpatlmt mvicanwmues less 
provision fot daubtfU1 ICCCllills 316,454,647 - - - - 125,346 14,181,170 - - - 330,761,663 

Other revenue 10,153,523 19,132,200 1,964,514 520.279 l,156,804 - 666,498 135,092 2,838,137 (22,001,502) 16,16S,S45 
~oome"'3rcfimding 2 ~~2.~lfi - - - ... 2,452.816 

Total rcvcnuc;, 329,060,986 19,732,100 1,964,.514 T2U79 2,156,804 125,846 14,847,668 135,092 2,838,137 . (22,001,502) 349,380,024 

Expoo= 
Saluies, wDgcs and fringe benefits 163,536,150 33,744,024 27~70 - - - 13,845,295 - 2,610,342 (19,342,'44) 194,420,537 
Supplies and other lll,262,177 1,1'11,m 821,781 617,299 - 146,616 S,619,898 134,446 . 338,933 (2,658,85~· 117,990,069 
New Hampshlro Mallooid 

mhmcemmt ta: 14,962.851 - - - - - - - - - 14,962,857 
Depredation and amortization . 11,031,483 - 370,154 104,243 - - 48,927 - ·lHi,115 - 11,770,912 
lnlam ~632221 - _l1L1l!2 - lli.fil - ---'--=-- - · J,2U ggQ 

Total czpcnsc.s JQJ§l.~B ~~ ~~J ain .l.1W2li 721,542 - 12~1~ 121! ~ 2IDm (2.i QQI ~Q2) 2~2J~~ :JI~ 

lnoomc (loss) &om opmmo;,, 25,629,028 (15,719,601) 173,500 (201,263) 2,156,8D4 (20,770) (4,666,452) 646 621,253) - '1,024,6351 

Nonopmliog g>inJ (lo""): 
Javestmcnt income 1,898,644 - 302,276 II 47 - - - 343,859 - 2,544,837 
Nctraillzcd gains (losses) OD 

(14,507) 1,118,193 sale Qfinvc;tmco.ts 1,131,SOD - - - - - - - -
Olhc:rnonop~ gain (loss) - - ~~ - -- - -- _!.lli. - 11,2§1 

Total aonopen.tins gains, aet 3 031 +44 - _m.w ~ 47 -- - --~ - 3§75 118 -BxCC83 (dcficiau:y) ofmvenues 
end gains over cxpcmcs 28,660,4?2 (15,719,601) 443,375 (158,377) 2,156,851 (20,770) (4,666,452) 646 ! 3,613 - 10,699,;57 

u~ depreciation O!J 
(1,519,Jll) (266,626) (1,785,737) "'-" - - - - - - - -

Assm RI.cased fram rcstrii:tion 
' used for capital 2_72,000 - - - - - - - - - 272,000 

Ptmlon-relalol """'8es other than ' 
net pc:riodic pc:mion cost · (28,985,617) (3,062,770) (173,311) - - - - - - - (32,221,698) 

· Net troasf'cn (to) fum1 affiliates 07250 §83) 15,JSS OQQ _m.QQ2) ..1!12.QM Cliooooo> ~ 4125 OOQ -- --,--CW 
~c) Jncrcase la 
~ctcd net assets $(!8622912) s Q427171) $~ $...JJ...W s !J4l 142) S.1.22.lli s Odj 452> $~ S.Jlil,Wl $ 

' 
- SQJ 015 678) 
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CMC BEALmcARE SYSTEM, INC. 

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

June 30, 2014 

A§filll]_ 

Catholic Physician Allianoe Allionoo Doctors Saint 
Mcdlcol Practice Allianoe Alli= Ambulatory Hoalth Modioal Petds Blimi· 
~ ~ Entcrmis~ ~ !ia::!iCC!! kYim 6eg£iali2!1 !!mM ~ Consoji~a~ 

eummasseu: 
Cash mid oash eqtd.wlcnta s 49,502,444 $ 375,929 s 1,691,041 I 119,518 $ 477.249 Sl,343,831 174,512 s 1,047,462 s s 54,692,046 
Short-term invC3tmeots 26,173,541 26,173,541 
Accom"8 =lvable, ... 29,270,llS 1,040,676 30)10,791 - 2,010,411 2,010,411 
Other cu:rent aascts . 4060 532 (33 568) 78 015 --1ill1 --- lill.lli --2.Jll (9 ]78) --- s 200.218 

TotBl current assets 111,017,043 342,361 1,769,056 139,430 477,249 3,466,831 76,753 1,038,284 118,327,007 

Property, plant am! cquipmcn~ net 72,977;392 9,SOl,454 2,401,525 303,845 1,aoS,111 86,989,397 

Other S&Sats: 
NOttl receivable, nm 72,648 72,548 
Unamortized debt imwic:c costs 810,003 30,254 ;- 840,257 
Intangible assets and other 8 024 989 ---~ --- -- --- 13 819 980 

8,907,640 30,254 S,794,991 14,732,885 

Aaset!: whosi:i use is limited: 
Pension ind insurmcc obligatiOIIS 14,246,337 14,246,337 
Bomd dcslgna1"1 lll!d dollor 

rostriG1od irlvo31mplts '91,473,83"6 6,980,595 98,454,431 
Held by trustee under revenue 

6 080 586 _......,..,.. 6 080 SB!i --- --- --- -- ---
J 11 300 759 --- --- --- -- !i,21Q.S2~ --- ll6 2BIJ~! 

I 

Total asset8. SJ!li :lil2 §~ s 3~~§l sn agg:m s~ s~ SJ.IllWli. s~ S 2 Bli g~g $____.,.... saaa sag~~ 
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LlABJLITtES ANJ) NET ASSETS 

Catholic Physician AllUmoc AllUmoc lloc1cn Saint 
Mcdicol Pmctico Al1im>ec AllUmoc Aml:ulalmy H"11h Medical Peter's Bliml-
~ ~ . Enterprises ~ Smi~ - Auocl11t!211 llomo - Consolida~ 

Cw=! llllbiliti'8: 
Ateounts payable md 

accrued cxpcmC8 s 15,145,165 s 55,3'4 s 250,618 s S4,3SO $. 915 $2,885,370 $ 6,924 s - $ - s 18,398,696 
AcoNed soWic:s,, wages 

16,167,406 and related accounts 14,188,183 1,782,831 .19~,392 
Amowrts po.)'lblc to thild-porty payors 10,125,881 •10,115,881 .. 
-dueto{fmm)dlilWeo 1,311,372 (1,271,696) 10,568 (58,437) IS,332 (7,090) (49) 
Cwrent portion ofloq-tmm debt 3 351 633 . 150 044 --- --- --- -- --- 3 SQ! tm 

Total currcm liobilitica 44,122,234 566,489 411,230 (4,087) m 2,900,702 (166) 190,343 48,1Sl3,660 

Accrued pcimion em1 Dthcr llabilitic:i, 
lesu:,.,... potlion 68,664,176 6,843,641 1,985,480 95,822 255,644 ~ ~ 77,844,763 

Long-tem1 debt,""' cumnl portion 66 262 681 8456208 --- -- 74725 889 --- --- ---
T~ liabilities 179,056,091 7,410,130 10,852,918 91,735 915 3,156,346 (166) 196,343 200,764,312 

Net esscts (dc6.cil): 
~tcd 116,956,183 (J,067,769) 447,856 2,449,220 6,271,325 614,330 76,919 Sl.fi17,707 i29,37S,771 
T_..,;ny RS!ricted 528,802 528,802 
Pennancntlyrcstrlcted 8.161J58 --- --- --- '---"'- --- 8 161.758 

! 
Tollllnot....U (deficit) J2S 646.743 f7,067J69) 447 856 ~ WLm _rum .10.m 9.627707 --- 138 066 331 

Total liabilities and net assots SJ~:zgz a~~ s ~~~~J SJI ~ggm s~s~s~ S..7§.Z.U s~ s___._ S~BBlQ~~ 
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CMCHEALmCARESYSTEM,INC. 

CONSOLIDATING s:rATEMENT OF OFERATIONs 

Year&dcd,June30, 2014 

Calholic Physician Allbmcc. Alliance · Docton 'p= Modicol l'nlcticc Alliancc Alliancc Ambul...,, H<alth Modl<al Blimi· 
l&llm ~ 2IIWJ:!lilg l!a2l!!W sernces ~ A§mi!li2n - llOli2M ~lida~ 

Net patient senice revenues, net of 
S323,6il8,207 S s ~.a119W1DCCS and diaco1llltS s s s $14,119,798 s s - $337,ne,oos 

Provi&ian for doubtful accmmts '23228'.ZD~ --- --- (S§'.Z oss) -- -· <14_34S 766). 
Net patient se:rvice m-emies less 
p,Qvisionfordoahtflll - 299,829,499 13,552,740 

2,806,070 
313,382,239 

Olhcr~ 9,202,827 17,486,207 1,904,010 574,475 2,580,SOI 833,198 178,602 (19,726,119) 13,789,771 
D~sharelUndillg ·313~4Q2 ;! l~§~Q2 

ot.J......., 312,168,735 17,486,207 1,904,010 574,475 2,580,SOI 14,385,938 128,6il2 2,806,070 (19,726,119) 332,308,419 ,..,...,., 
Salmi ca, wagca and frillgc benefits 151,040,530 26,149,068 40,697 13,080,741 2,426,632 (17,13S,990l · 175,601,678 
Supplies and othu 108,712,500 1,480,950 789,507 685,081 5,444,333 126,014 300,048 (2,590,129 114,948,304 
Now llllmpshilo Modica!d 

13,865,109 mbenrement tax . 13,865,109 
Llc:pleclatlon aud amortization 10,312,228 370,509 92,196 "4,926 215,591 11,045,450 
ln"""1 ~ l!J§ 822 -32.m --- m.2li J ~Bl I~ 

Total expenses 28W7196 27630018 ~ 717:J:l7 18,SRO 000 2~2.271 09 726 J19) 319.347J01 ---
Income (loss) from open.lions 24,93l;m (10,143,811) 122,966 (202,802) 2,580,501 (4,194,062) 2,588 (136,201) 12,96il,718 

NOllOJlCl1llln& goins Qossea): 
272,174 14. 27 352,084 2;101,3~1 InVC3~ income . 1,477,062 

Net realized gains (losses) on 
5,242,633 (4S,1S5) S,197,478 Silo of invcatmcnts 

(Lou) gain oo esle ofpn>perty 
(43,175) (988,787) 6,567 (1,025,395l ...i.....,.,... 

Other ~en.~ loss __m.ru) --- -- --- Cl2 485 
Total nonopcrating gaim 

6 676.S20 ~ (988 773'1 ----12 _mili 6 240 9,9 · (losscs);·net --
F.x.ccsa (dcfioiency) ofRVCmlCS 

and gaim over expenses 31,608,059 (10,143,811) 362,m (1,191,575) 2,580,528 (4,194,062) 2,588 177,295 19,201,677 

Unrcalimd appreciation on Investments · 6,901,638 179,670 7,081,308 
AssCIB released from ""1rictioo used 

142,525 for capital 142,525 
Pcmicm-rel!.tcd changes other than 

(239,805) net periodic pcmlon cost (1,696,94~ 1,375,714 81,423 
Not ..... r ... (w) &om Bllillatca Cll.122.61 8 596 500 _ill!QQ 1419116 (2485 000) 3.55QOOO -- ---
Incrc&e (dccreaso) in Ulll'C3tricted ......... s 25·8]2 6§4. $ ·011 ,21> s~ s 227 541 $.....!l.1.m s (644 062) $....UU., s~s - s 'l§ 18, 705 
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